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PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 1K-contains, and other periodic and current repqntsss releases and other public stockholder coriwation:
of BankFinancial Corporation may contain, forwdodking statements within the meaning of Sectiok 2f the Securities Exchange Acl
1934, as amended, which involve significant riskd ancertainties. Forwairdoking statements may include statements relatngur future
plans, strategies and expectations, as well agubuire revenues, expenses, earnings, losses, falgerformance, financial condition, as
quality metrics and future prospects. Forward lagkstatements are generally identifiable by usehef words “believe,” “may,” “will,”
“should,” “could,” “expect,” “estimate,” “intend,™anticipate,” “project,” “plan,” or similar expressions. Forward looking statemeart
frequently based on assumptions that may or maymnaderialize, and are subject to numerous uncéigaithat could cause actual result
differ materially from those anticipated in thevi@ard looking statements. We intend all forwéwdking statements to be covered by the
harbor provisions for forwartboking statements contained in the Private Saesrititigation Reform Act of 1995, and are incluglithis
statement for the purpose of invoking these safledigrovisions.

Factors that could cause actual results to diffatemially from the results anticipated or projectad which could materially and adver:
affect our operating results, financial conditianfature prospects include, but are not limited (ipless than anticipated loan growth du
intense competition for high quality loans and ésagarticularly in terms of pricing and credit endriting, or a dearth of borrowers who r
our underwriting standards; (ii) the impact of memg and competitorgdricing initiatives on loan and deposit producis) &dverse econom
conditions in general and in the Chicago metropoliarea in particular, including high or increasimgmployment levels, that could resu
increased delinquencies in our loan portfolio dealine in the value of our investment securitied the collateral for our loans; (iv) decline
real estate values that adversely impact the vallweir loan collateral, Other Real Estate OwnedRED"), asset dispositions and the leve
borrower equity in their investments; (v) borrowérat experience legal or financial difficultiesaathwe do not currently foresee; (vi) result
supervisory monitoring or examinations by regubataathorities, including the possibility that a uéafory authority could, among other thir
require us to increase our allowance for loan lesseadversely change our loan classificationstewdiown assets, reduce credit concentra
or maintain specific capital levels; (vii) intereate movements and their impact on the econonstpmer behavior and our net interest ma
(viii) changes, disruptions or illiquidity in natial or global financial markets; (ix) the creditks of lending activities, including risks that &t
cause changes in the level and direction of lodmaigencies and chargaffs or changes in estimates relating to the coatmn of ou
allowance for loan losses; (X) monetary and figoalicies of the U.S. Government, including policifsthe U.S. Treasury and the Fed
Reserve Board; (xi) factors affecting our abilityaccess deposits or castective funding, and the impact of competitori¢ipg initiatives ol
our deposit products; (xii) the impact of new Idgfion or regulatory changes, including the Ddetdnk Act and Basel IIl, on our produt
services, operations and operating expenses; ligher federal deposit insurance premiums; (xighlr than expected overhead, infrastruc
and compliance costs; (xv) changes in accountimgiples, policies or guidelines; and (xvi) and daiture to achieve expected synergies
cost savings from acquisitions.

These risks and uncertainties, as well as the Réitors set forth in Item 1A below, should be cdestd in evaluating forwaroking
statements and undue reliance should not be platsdch statements. Forward looking statementksp@g as of the date they are made.
do not undertake any obligation to update any fouM@oking statement in the future, or to reflect aimstances and events that occur afte
date on which the forward-looking statement wasenad

BankFinancial Corporation

BankFinancial Corporation, a Maryland corporaticzadiquartered in Burr Ridge, lllinois (the “Companyiecame the owner of all of 1
issued and outstanding capital stock of BankFir@nE&i.S.B. (the “Bank™on June 23, 2005, when we consummated a plan efcsion an
reorganization that the Bank and its predecessttirttp companies, BankFinancial MHC, Inc. and Bamldricial Corporation, a fede
corporation, adopted on August 25, 2004. BankFirm@orporation, the Maryland corporation, was arigad in 2004 to facilitate the mutual-
to-stock conversion and to become the holding compar the Bank upon its completion.

As part of the mutual-tstock conversion, BankFinancial Corporation, theWénd corporation, sold 24,466,250 shares of comstock in .
subscription offering for $10.00 per share. Theasafe corporate existences of BankFinancial MHCBexkFinancial Corporation, the fede
corporation, ceased upon the completion of the alttistock conversion. For a further discussiothef mutual-tostock conversion, see ¢
Prospectus as filed on April 29, 2005 with the 3#ies and Exchange
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Commission (“SEC”) pursuant to Rule 424(b)(3) af fRules and Regulations of the Securities Act @&31@ile Number 333-119217).

We manage our operations as one unit, and thu®tdioave separate operating segments. Our chieatipgrdecisiormakers use consolidal
results to make operating and strategic decisions.

BankFinancial, F.S.B.

The Bank is a full-service, communityiented federal savings bank principally engagethe business of commercial, family and pers
banking, and it offers our customers a broad rasfgean, deposit, and other financial products aadices through 20 fullervice lIllinois
based banking offices located in Cook, DuPage, laakeWill Counties, and through our Internet Bragnetvw.bankfinancial.com The Bank'
Hyde Park East branch was closed effective Jarja2914 , reducing the total number of full-servi@amking offices to 19 as of that date.

The Banks primary business is making loans and acceptipgsgies. The Bank also offers our customers a waoéffinancial products ar
services that are related or ancillary to loans @egbsits, including cash management, funds tres)dfél payment and other online bank
transactions, automated teller machines, safe ddpmees, trust services, wealth management, andrgkinsurance agency services.

The Banks primary lending area consists of the countiesravlo@r branch offices are located, and contigu@usties in the State of Illino
We derive the most significant portion of our rewres from these geographic areas. Through our Wdlel€ommercial Lending and Natio
Commercial Leasing Departments, we also engageuiti-family lending activities in selected metropolitareas outside our primary lend
area and in commercial leasing activities on somatide basis.

We originate deposits predominantly from the anghsre our branch offices are located. We rely onfaworable locations, customer serv
competitive pricing, our Internet Branch and refatieposit services such as cash management totatrd retain these deposits. While
accept certificates of deposit in excess of theerRddDeposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIQIgposit insurance limits, we generally do
solicit such deposits because they are more diffiouretain than core deposits and at times areerostly than wholesale deposits.

Lending Activities

Our loan portfolio consists primarily of investmearid business loans (muléimily, nonresidential real estate, commercial,starction an
land loans, and commercial leases), which repredeBt.7% of our gross loan portfolio of $1.111 ibill at December 31, 2013 At
December 31, 2013, $396.1 million , or 35.6% owif total loan portfolio consisted of multi-famitgortgage loans; $263.6 million , or 23.7%
of our total loan portfolio consisted of nonresitighreal estate loans; $54.3 million , or 4.9%f our total loan portfolio consisted
commercial loans; $187.1 million , or 16.8% , of tetal loan portfolio consisted of commercial lesisand $6.6 million , or 0.6%of our tota
loan portfolio consisted of construction and landrs. $201.4 million , or 18.1% , of our total lgaortfolio consisted of one-tiwur family
residential mortgage loans (of which $54.9 millioar 4.9% , were loans to investors in non-owneaupeed singldamily homes), includin
home equity loans and lines of credit.

Deposit Activities

Our deposit accounts consist principally of saviagsounts, NOW accounts, checking accounts, morakehaccounts, certificates of depc
and IRAs and other retirement accounts. We proeim@mercial checking accounts and related servioek as cash management. We
provide low€ost checking account services. We rely on ourrihe locations, customer service, competitiveipgcour Internet Branch a
related deposit services such as cash managematitatct and retain deposit accounts.

At December 31, 2013 , our deposits totaled $1128®n . Interest-bearing deposits totaled $1.1M#on and noninteresbearing demar
deposits totaled $126.7 million , which included I &illion in internal checking accounts such askbaashiers checks and money orde
Savings, money market and NOW account depositieth®850.4 million , and certificates of deposiiated $275.6 million , of whic$203.:
million had maturities of one year or less.

Related Products and Services

The Bank provides trust and financial planning E@mw through our Trust Department. The Bani/ealth Management Group provi
investment, financial planning and other wealth aggment services to our customers through arrangemeéth a third-party brokedealer
The Bank’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Financial Asswe Services, Inc. (“Financial Assurances®|ls property and casualty insurance
other insurance products on an agency basis. Dtlimgear ended December 31, 2013, Financial Asserreported net income of $68,000
At December 31, 2013, Financial Assurance hadftivdime employees.
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The Bank’s other wholly-owned subsidiary, BF ASRetovery Corporation, is in the business of holditig to and selling certain Bardwnec
real estate acquired through collection action, r@padrted a loss of $1,000 for the year ended Dbee1l, 2013 .

Website and Stockholder Information

The website for the Company and the Bank is wwwkbaancial.com. Information on this website doeg nonstitute part of this Annt
Report on Form 10-K.

The Company makes available, free of charge, ilsuahReport on Form 10-K, its Quarterly ReportsFamm 109, its Current Reports
Form 8K and amendments to such reports filed or furnispesuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Seagiftxchange Act of 1934,
amended (“Exchange Act"as soon as reasonably practicable after such fareniled with or furnished to the SEC. Copiestafse documer
are available to stockholders at BankFinancial'e wige, www.bankfinancial.comunder Stockholder Information, and at the SE®Eb site

WwWw.Ssec.gov.

Competition

We face significant competition in originating l@aand attracting deposits. The Chicago Metropolkesa and some other areas in whict
operate have a high concentration of financialitimsbns, many of which are significantly largerstitutions that have greater finan
resources than we have, and many of which areaupetitors to varying degrees. Our competitionldans and leases comes principally f
commercial banks, savings banks, mortgage banlangpanies, the U.S. Government, credit unions, hgasompanies, insurance compar
real estate conduits and other companies that gedimancial services to businesses and individuails most direct competition for depo
has historically come from commercial banks, savibgnks and credit unions. We face additional caitigre for deposits from online financ
institutions and non-depository competitors sucthasmutual fund industry, securities and brokerfaiges and insurance companies.

We seek to meet this competition by emphasizinggraalized service and efficient decisioaking tailored to individual needs. In additiorg
reward longstanding relationships with preferred rates anch$esn deposit products based on existing and petispdending business. We
not rely on any individual, group or entity for atarial portion of our loans or our deposits.

Employees

At December 31, 2013 , we had 281 full-time empé&syand 39 patime employees. The employees are not representesl dollective
bargaining unit and we consider our working relasiaip with our employees to be good.

Supervision and Regulation
General

As a federally chartered savings bank, the Bam&gsilated and supervised primarily by the Officehaf Comptroller of the Currency (“OCL”
The Bank is also subject to regulation by the FXiG@nore limited circumstances because the Baeposits are insured by the FDIC. -
regulatory and supervisory structure establishesmaprehensive framework of activities in which aaficial institution may engage, an
intended primarily for the protection of the FD#Cdeposit insurance fund, depositors and the bgnéystem. Under this system of fed
regulation, financial institutions are periodicatlyamined to ensure that they satisfy applicalaedatrds with respect to their capital adeqt
assets, management, earnings, liquidity and seitgito market interest rates. The OCC examinesBhek and prepares reports for
consideration of its Board of Directors on any iifeed deficiencies. After completing an examinatioghe OCC issues a report of examine
and assigns a rating (known as an institusdBAMELS rating). Under federal law and regulatioas institution may not disclose the cont
of its reports of examination or its CAMELS ratingsthe public.

The Bank is a member of, and owns stock in, theefeddHome Loan Bank of Chicago (“FHLBChich is one of the 12 regional banks in
Federal Home Loan Bank System. The Bank also islaegd by the Board of Governors of the FederabResSystem (“FRB"with regard t
reserves it must maintain against deposits, diddeand other matters. The Bask’elationship with its depositors and borrowersoai
regulated in some respects by both federal and ktats, especially in matters concerning the owniprsf deposit accounts, and the form
content of the Bank’s consumer loan documents.

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and ConsumereRtmn Act (“Dodd-Frank Act”)which was signed by the President on July 21, :
provided for the transfer of the authority for réaging and supervising federal savings banks froen@ffice of Thrift Supervision (“OTS"the
Bank’s previous regulator, to the OCC. The Ddtdnk Act also provided for the transfer of auttyfor regulating and supervising savi
and loan holding companies and their non-depos#absidiaries from the OTS to the FRB. The trasséecurred on July 21, 2011. The Dodd
Frank Act also created a new federal agency, thes@uer Financial Protection Bureau (“CFPBA%, an independent bureau within the |
system, to conduct ruleaking, supervision, and enforcement of federalsaamer financial protection and fair lending lawsl aagulation:
The CFPB has examination and primary
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enforcement authority in connection with these laamsl regulations for depository institutions wititall assets of more than $10 billi
Depository institutions with $10 billion or less fatal assets, such as the Bank, continue to bmieed for compliance with these laws
regulations by their primary federal regulatorg] aamain subject to their enforcement authority.

The DoddFrank Act also broadened the base for FDIC assedsner deposit insurance and permanently increfiseanaximum amount
deposit insurance to $250,000 per depositor. ThddBaank Act increased shareholder influence over doaf directors by requirit
companies to give shareholders a non-binding vetexecutive compensation and so-called “golden gbartg” payments. The legislati
directed the FRB to promulgate rules prohibitingessive compensation paid to company executivgardiess of whether the compan
publicly traded. The Dodérank Act also provided for originators of certaiecuritized loans to retain a percentage of tHefdstransferre
credits, directed the FRB to regulate pricing ata@ie debit card interchange fees, repealed réising on paying interest on checking acco
and contained a humber of reforms related to mgegaigination.

There can be no assurance that laws, rules anthtiegns, and regulatory policies will not changethie future, which could make complia
more difficult or expensive or otherwise adversaffect our business, financial condition, resultoperations or prospects. Any chang
these laws or regulations, or in regulatory polighether by the OCC, the FDIC, the FRB, the CFPBanmgress, could have a material adv
impact on the Company, the Bank and their respeaperations. The following summary of laws andutations applicable to the Bank ¢
Company is not intended to be exhaustive and ififgpahin its entirety by reference to the actualk and regulations involved.

Federal Banking Regulation

Business ActivitiesAs a federal savings bank, the Bank derives itslitepand investment powers from the Home Ownéman Act, a
amended, and the regulations, pronouncements dagee of the OCC. Under these laws and regulatibesBank may invest in mortge
loans secured by residential and nonresidentidlestate, commercial business and consumer loansjrt types of securities and certain ¢
loans and assets. Specifically, the Bank may caitgininvest in, sell, or purchase unlimited loangh® security of residential real estate, w
loans on nonresidential real estate generally ntdyon a combined basis, exceed 400% of the Batdtal capital. In addition, secured
unsecured commercial loans and certain types ofrntial personal property leases may not exceed @0%e Banks assets; howewv:
amounts in excess of 10% of assets may only befosexinall business loans. Further, the Bank maner@ly invest up to 35% of its asset
consumer loans, corporate debt securities and coocmh@aper on a combined basis, and up to thetgred its capital or 5% of its asset:
unsecured construction loans. The Bank may invesbul0% of its assets in tangible personal prgpdor rental or sale. Certain leases
tangible personal property are not aggregated wititnmercial or consumer loans for the purposes oéroening compliance with tl
limitations set forth for those investment categsriThe Bank also may establish subsidiaries tlet emgage in activities not otherw
permissible for the Bank directly, including reatate investment and insurance agency activitiegiokation of the lending and investm
limitations may be subject to the same enforcemetthanisms of the primary federal regulator asrotiodations of a law or regulation.

Capital RequirementsFederal regulations require federal savings bamkadet three minimum capital standards: a ratitanfible capital t
adjusted total assets of 1.5%; a ratio of Tierdrg} capital to adjusted total assets of 4.0% (8fdrfstitutions receiving the highest rating
the CAMELS rating system); and a ratio of totalitato total riskadjusted assets of 8.0%. The prompt correctiv@madciandards discuss
below, in effect, establish a minimum 2% tangibpital standard. The OCC is also authorized tobésta individual minimum capit
requirements for federal savings banks in excesisesoAbove minimum capital standards.

The riskbased capital standard for federal savings bartjgnes the maintenance of Tier 1, or core capdtad] total capital (which is defined
core capital and supplementary capital) to riskglved assets of at least 4% and 8%, respectivelgetermining the amount of riskeightec
assets, all assets, including certain off-balarfees assets, are multiplied by a riskight factor of 0% to 100%, assigned by the cé
regulations based on the risks inherent in the offasset. Core capital is defined as common stdkins’ equity (including retained earning
certain noncumulative perpetual preferred stock rtated surplus and minority interests in equitgaunts of consolidated subsidiaries,
intangibles other than certain mortgage servicights and credit card relationships. The componehssipplementary capital currently incl
cumulative perpetual preferred stock, long-termfggred stock, mandatory convertible securities,osdimated debt and intermediatr
preferred stock, allowance for loan and lease bapeto a maximum of 1.25% of riskeighted assets and up to 45% of net unrealizetsga
available-forsale equity securities with readily determinable fizarket values. Overall, the amount of supplemgntapital included as part
total capital cannot exceed 100% of core capitaldiionally, a savings bank that retains credik iiis connection with an asset sale ma
required to maintain additional regulatory caplttatause of the recourse back to the savings bank.

At December 31, 2013, the Bank’s capital exceedegpplicable regulatory requirements and was eagfiitalized.
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Final Capital Regulations.In July 2013, the FDIC and the other federal baggutatory agencies issued a final rule that willise thei
leverage and risk-based capital requirements amdntthod for calculating riskeighted assets to make them consistent with agretsnthe
were reached by the Basel Committee on Banking 18igi@n and certain provisions of the DoBidank Act. Among other things, the r
establishes a new common equity Tier 1 minimumteapéquirement (4.5% of riskeighted assets), increases the minimum Tier ltadaig
risk-based assets requirement (from 4% to 6% &fwisighted assets) and assigns a higher risk welditt%) to exposures that are more
90 days past due or are on nonaccrual status amertain commercial real estate facilities thatfioe the acquisition, developmen
construction of real property. The final rule alemuires unrealized gains and losses on certaiail&ble-for-sale”securities holdings to

included for purposes of calculating regulatoryitdpequirements unless a one-time opt-in or @yitis exercised. The rule limits a bank
organization$ capital distributions and certain discretionaoniis payments to executive officers if the banlionganization does not holc
“capital conservation buffer” consisting of 2.5%afmmon equity Tier 1 capital to riskeighted assets in addition to the amount necegs
meet its minimum risk-based capital requiremente final rule also implements the Dodd-Frank Adlirective to apply to savings and |
holding companies consolidated capital requirem#rds are not less stringent than those applicabl&eir subsidiary institutions. The fii
rule is effective January 1, 2015. The “capital sEwation buffer'will be phased in from January 1, 2016 to Januar019, when the ft
capital conservation buffer will be effective.

The Company and the Bank each have adopted a ReguZapital Plan that require the Bank to maintihier 1 leverage ratio of at least
and a total riskbased capital ratio of at least 12%. The minimuipitairatios set forth in the Regulatory Capitahd will be increased a
other minimum capital requirements will be estdi#id if and as necessary to comply with the Badaletjuirements as such requirem
become applicable to the Company and the Bankctordance with the Regulatory Capital Plans, neithe Company nor the Bank v
pursue any acquisition or growth opportunity, dexlany dividend or conduct any stock repurchasevtibald cause the Bank's total ribkse!
capital ratio and/or its Tier 1 leverage ratio &l below the established minimum capital levets.addition, the Company will continue
maintain its ability to serve as a source of finahstrength to the Bank by holding at least $5illion of cash or liquid assets for that purpose.

Loans-to-One-Borrower.A federal savings bank generally may not make a lmaextend credit to a single or related groufpafrowers il
excess of 15% of unimpaired capital and surplusadditional amount may be loaned, equal to 10%nihpaired capital and surplus, if

loan is secured by readily marketable collaterdljctv generally does not include real estate. ADetember 31, 2013 the Bank was

compliance with the loans-to-one-borrower limitago

Qualified Thrift Lender Test.As a federal savings bank, the Bank is subject qoalified thrift lender (“QTL")test. Under the QTL test, 1
Bank must maintain at least 65% of its “portfoligsats” in “qualified thrift investments” in at leasine months of the most recent d@ntt
period. “Portfolio assetsjenerally means the total assets of a savingsutisti, less the sum of specified liquid asset$oup0% of total asse
goodwill and other intangible assets, and the vafymoperty used in the conduct of the federalrsgasrbank’s business.

“Qualified thrift investments’include various types of loans made for residemtrad housing purposes, investments related to thogmse:
including certain mortgagkacked and related securities, and loans for patstamily, household and certain other purposesoug limit o
20% of portfolio assets. “Qualified thrift investmts” also include 100% of an institutiantredit card loans, education loans and smalhies:
loans. The Bank also may satisfy the QTL test bglifping as a “domestic building and loan assooidtias defined in the Internal Revel
Code of 1986. At December 31, 2018he Bank satisfied the QTL test. A federal sasifigink that fails the QTL test must operate u
specified restrictions, including limits on growtbiranching, new investment and dividends. As alre$uhe DoddFrank Act, noncomplian
with the QTL test is subject to regulatory enforestnaction as a violation of law.

Capital Distributions.The regulations of the OCC govern capital distiiimg by a federal savings bank, which include adistdends, stoc
repurchases and other transactions charged tmskitution’s capital account. A federal savings bank mustdileapplication for approval o
capital distribution if:

» the total capital distributions for the applitmbalendar year exceed the sum of the institusioiet income for that year to date plus
federal savings bank’s retained net income foiptieeeding two years;

» the institution would not be at least adequatepjtetized following the distributiol
» the distribution would violate any applicablatste, regulation, agreement or O@@posed condition; «

» the institution is not eligible for expedited treent of its filings

At December 31, 2013the Bank would be required to file an applicatwith the OCC for approval of a capital distributito the Compan
Whether or not an application to the OCC is requievery federal savings bank that is a subsidifeyholding
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company must file a notice with the FRB at leasti8@s before the board of directors declares a€hd or approves a capital distribution.

The FRB may disapprove a notice or application if:

» the federal savings bank would be undercapitaliabowing the distributior
» the proposed capital distribution raises safetysmddness concerns

» the capital distribution would violate a prohibiticontained in any statute, regulation or agree!

Liquidity. A federal savings bank is required to maintainficgant amount of liquid assets to ensure its safd sound operation.

Community Reinvestment Act and Fair Lending Lawall federal savings banks have a responsibilityamtie Community Reinvestment ,
(“CRA") and related federal regulations to help meke credit needs of their communities, includitoyv- and moderateincome
neighborhoods. In connection with its examinatida éederal savings bank, the OCC is required tduate and rate the federal savings bank
record of compliance with the CRA. In addition, tEgual Credit Opportunity Act and the Fair HousiAgt prohibit lenders froi
discriminating in their lending practices basedtlom characteristics specified in those statutefed&ral savings bank’failure to comply wit
the provisions of the CRA could, at a minimum, kegsuregulatory restrictions on its activities. &lfailure to comply with the Equal Cre
Opportunity Act and the Fair Housing Act could s enforcement actions by the OCC, as well é&eofederal regulatory agencies anc
Department of Justice. The Bank's CRA performanas been rated as “Outstandingye highest possible rating, in all of the sevenAl
Performance Evaluations that have been conduated 4i999.

Privacy StandardsFinancial institutions are subject to regulatiompliementing the privacy protection provisions of tiramm-LeactBliley
Act. These regulations require the Bank to discliaseprivacy policy, including identifying with whmo it shares fionpublic person
information” to customers at the time of establishing the custoralationship and annually thereafter. In additithe Bank is required
provide its customers with the ability to “opt-owf or consent to having the Bank share their nohpudersonal information with unaffiliat:
third parties before it can disclose such inforomtisubject to certain exceptions. The implemenatf these regulations did not hav
material adverse effect on the Bank. The Gramm-h&iitey Act also allows each state to enact legistatthat is more protective
consumers’ personal information.

The OCC and other federal banking agencies havetedoguidelines establishing standards for safetjugrcustomer information
implement certain provisions of the Gramm-LeacHeBli Act. The guidelines describe the agenciegpectations for the creati
implementation and maintenance of an informatiocuggy program, which would include administratitechnical and physical safegue
appropriate to the size and complexity of a finahizistitution and the nature and scope of itsvétets. The standards set forth in the guidel
are intended to ensure the security and confidégt@ customer records and information, to prétagainst any anticipated threats or haz
to the security or integrity of such records, angiotect against unauthorized access to or useaif records or other information that c«
result in substantial harm or inconvenience to @mtomer. The Bank has implemented these guidelmessuch implementation has not h
material adverse effect on our operations.

Transactions with Related PartiesA federal savings bank’s authority to engage imgextions with its “affiliates”is limited by OC(
regulations and by Sections 23A and 23B of the F@deeserve Act and its implementing regulationgtation W. The term “affiliatesfor
these purposes generally means any company thatololor is under common control with an insurecastory institution, althoug
subsidiaries of federal savings banks are genenaliyonsidered affiliates for the purposes of iBast23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve
The Company is an affiliate of the Bank. In gendrainsactions with affiliates must be on termg #ra as favorable to the federal savings
as comparable transactions with raffiliates. In addition, certain types of thesensactions are restricted to an aggregate percewofate
federal savings ban&’capital. Collateral in specified amounts mustallgibe provided by affiliates in order to receieans from the feder
savings bank. Federal regulations also prohibédefal savings bank from lending to any of itsliatés that are engaged in activities tha
not permissible for bank holding companies, andhfpurchasing the securities of any affiliate, ottam a subsidiary.

The Banks authority to extend credit to its directors, exee officers and 10% stockholders, as well asritities controlled by such persc
is currently governed by the requirements of Sestia2(g) and 22(h) of the Federal Reserve Act aeguRtion O of the Federal Rese
Board. Among other things, these provisions reqthiat extensions of credit to insiders be madesoms that are substantially the same as
follow credit underwriting procedures that are lests stringent than, those prevailing for comparafzinsactions with unaffiliated persons
that do not involve more than the normal risk gfagment or present other unfavorable features,radexceed certain limitations on

amount of credit extended to such persons, indalldand in the aggregate, which limits are bagegart, on the amount of the Baslc¢apital
In addition, extensions of credit in excess ofaartimits must receive the prior approval of thenk’s Board of Directors.
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Enforcement.The OCC has primary enforcement responsibility dederal savings banks, and this includes the aityhio bring enforceme
action against the Bank and all “institution-afftied parties,including stockholders, attorneys, appraisers amwbwantants who knowingly
recklessly participate in wrongful action likely bave an adverse effect on an insured institufimmmal enforcement action may range f
the issuance of a capital directive or cease amsistderder to the removal of officers and/or dicest receivership, conservatorship or
termination of deposit insurance. Civil monetaryg@liéies cover a wide range of violations and asj@nd range up to $25,000 per day, ui
a finding of reckless disregard is made, in whielsec penalties may be as high as $1 million per @hg. FDIC also has the authority
recommend to the OCC that an enforcement actidaken with respect to a particular savings insttutlf action is not taken by the OCC,
FDIC has authority to take action under specifiedurnstances.

Standards for Safety and SoundneFederal law requires each federal banking agengydscribe certain standards for all insured depry
institutions. These standards relate to, amongr dltiegs, internal controls, information systemsl audit systems, loan documentation, ¢
underwriting, interest rate risk exposure, asseiwgn, compensation and other operational and maishg#andards as the agency de
appropriate. The federal banking agencies adoptertagency Guidelines Prescribing Standards foet$afind Soundness to implement
safety and soundness standards required undemafdder The guidelines set forth the safety andchsoess standards that the federal bar
agencies use to identify and address problemsatéd depository institutions before capital becomgaired. The guidelines address inte
controls and information systems, internal audgtesms, credit underwriting, loan documentationernest rate risk exposure, asset gro
compensation, fees and benefits. If the appropféateral banking agency determines that an ingfiilftils to meet any standard prescribe
the guidelines, the agency may require the ingtituo submit to the agency an acceptable plach@ése compliance with the standard.

Prompt Corrective Action Regulatior. Under the prompt corrective action regulations,@&C is required and authorized to take superv
actions against undercapitalized federal saving&daror this purpose, a federal savings bankasaal in one of the following five categol
based on the federal savings bank’s capital:

» well-capitalized (at least 5% leverage capidéh tier 1 risk-based capital and 10% total itislsed capital

« adequately capitalized (at least 4% leverag@alag% tier 1 risk-based capital and 8% totakimsed capital

» undercapitalized (less than 3% leverage capitaltier 1 risk-based capital or 8% total ris&ksed capital

» significantly undercapitalized (less than 3%eage capital, 3% tier 1 risk-based capital or 64l riskbased capital); ai

» critically undercapitalized (less than 2% tangitégital)

Generally, the banking regulator is required tocappa receiver or conservator for a federal savibgnk that is “critically undercapitalized.”
The regulations also provide that a capital resitmmgplan must be filed with the OCC within 45 dafghe date a bank receives notice that
“undercapitalized,” “significantly undercapitaliZedr “critically undercapitalized.’A parent holding company for the institution inved/mus
guarantee performance under the capital restoratmup to the lesser of the institutisrcapital deficiency when deemed undercapitaliz
5% of the institutiors assets. In addition, numerous mandatory supeyisgions become immediately applicable to theefabsavings ban
including, but not limited to, restrictions on grihwinvestment activities, capital distributiondaaffiliate transactions. The OCC may also
any one of a number of discretionary supervisoyoas against undercapitalized federal savings ®ainicluding the issuance of a cay
directive and individual minimum capital requirent®and the replacement of senior executive offiaeis directors.

At December 31, 2013, the Bank met the criterieb&ing considered “well-capitalized” as definedtie prompt corrective action regulations.

In connection with the final capital rule descrilbestlier, the federal banking agencies have adagtédions, effective January 1, 2015, to
prompt corrective action framework. Under the rediprompt corrective action requirements, insurggbditory institutions would be requii
to meet the following in order to qualify as “welhpitalized:” (1) a common equity Tier 1 risk-baszgital ratio of 6.5%; (2) a Tier 1 risk-
based capital ratio of 8% (increased from 6%);a(®)tal riskbased capital ratio of 10% (unchanged from cunnglets) and (4) a Tier 1 levere
ratio of 5% (unchanged from the current rules).

Interest on DepositsFederal laws and regulations previously prohibidegository institutions from paying interest on eoercial checkin
accounts. The Dodd-Frank Act authorized the payrogimterest on commercial checking accounts, éffecluly 21, 2011.

Insurance of Deposit AccountsThe Banks deposits are insured up to applicable limitsHgy@eposit Insurance Fund of the FDIC. Unde
FDIC's risk-based assessment system, insuredutistis are assigned to one of four risk categdrésed on
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supervisory evaluations, regulatory capital lexaid certain other factors, with less risky instdng paying lower assessments. An institugon
assessment rate depends upon the category to Wiéchssigned, subject to certain adjustmentsiipedy the FDIC. The FDIC may adji
the scale uniformly, except that no adjustment whayiate by more than two basis points from the Isasée without notice and comment.
institution may pay a dividend if it is in defawolt the federal deposit insurance assessment.

Assessment rates previously ranged from seven.®W&&is points of assessable deposits. The Boaltk Act required the FDIC to revise
procedures to base its assessments upon tota$ dssetangible equity instead of on deposits. HDEC issued a final rule, effective April
2011, that implemented that change. The FDIC asised the assessment schedule and certain obfisthfe adjustments so that the ranc
assessments is now 2.5 basis points to 45 bagitspwiitotal assets less tangible equity.

The DoddFrank Act increased the minimum target Deposit fasoe Fund ratio from 1.15% of estimated insurepodis to 1.35% ¢
estimated insured deposits. The FDIC must seekti@ae the 1.35% ratio by September 30, 2020. éwsinstitutions with assets of $10 bill
or more are supposed to fund the increase. The Boaltk Act eliminated the 1.5% maximum fund ratiostead leaving the ratio to -
discretion of the FDIC. The FDIC recently exercigleal discretion by establishing a long-range feati of 2%.

The FDIC has authority to increase insurance ass®#s. A significant increase in insurance premiwuosld be likely have an adverse ef
on the operating expenses and results of operatibiise Bank. The Bank cannot predict what its iasge assessment rates will be in
future.

An insured institutiors deposit insurance may be terminated by the FIpidhua finding that the institution has engagedrisafe or unsout
practices, is in an unsafe or unsound conditionaictinue operations or has violated any applicéle regulation, rule, order or regulat
condition imposed in writing. The management of Bamk does not know of any practice, condition iotation that might lead to terminati
of deposit insurance.

In addition to the FDIC assessments, the Finan€iagoration (“FICO”)is authorized to impose and collect, with the appr@f the FDIC
assessments for anticipated payments, issuance aagtcustodial fees on bonds issued by the FICeir980% to recapitalize the forrr
Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporationb®hes issued by the FICO are due to mature in #¥bngh 2019.

Prohibitions Against Tying Arrangement. Federal savings banks are prohibited, subject mesexceptions, from extending credit tc
offering any other service, or fixing or varyingethonsideration for such extension of credit oviser on the condition that the customer ot
some additional service from the institution oraffiliates or not obtain services of a competibthe institution.

Federal Home Loan Bank Systerithe Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Eystem, which consists of 12 regional Federal F
Loan Banks. The Federal Home Loan Bank System gesva central credit facility primarily for membestitutions. As a member of t
FHLBC, the Bank is required to acquire and holdretaf capital stock in the FHLBC in specified amisu As of December 31, 2013he
Bank was in compliance with this requirement.

The USA PATRIOT Act and the Bank Secrecy Act

The USA PATRIOT Act and the Bank Secrecy Act regdinancial institutions to develop programs toedétind report monegundering an
terrorist activities, as well as suspicious adtxgt The USA PATRIOT Act also gives the federal ggmament powers to address terrorist thi
through enhanced domestic security measures, eggdandrveillance powers, increased information sigamnd broadened antione)
laundering requirements. The federal banking agsnare required to take into consideration thecg¥feness of controls designed to con
moneylaundering activities in determining whether to mgy@ a merger or other acquisition application afi@mber institution. Accordingly,
we engage in a merger or other acquisition, outrotsidesigned to combat money laundering woulddigsidered as part of the applica
process. In addition, nocempliance with these laws and regulations coutdltén fines, penalties and other enforcement nreas We hay
developed policies, procedures and systems destgrammply with these laws and regulations.

Federal Reserve System

The FRB'’s regulations require federal savings battksnaintain noninteresarning reserves against their transaction accpsotsh a
negotiable order of withdrawal and regular checkaggounts. At December 31, 2013he Bank was in compliance with these res
requirements. The balances maintained to meetaberve requirements imposed by the FRB may be tssdtisfy liquidity requiremen
imposed by the federal regulation.
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Holding Company Regulation

The Company is a unitary savings and loan holdomgmany and is subject to regulation and supervisiothe FRB. The FRB has enforcen
authority over the Company and its nsavings institution subsidiaries. Among other tkinthis authority permits the FRB to restric
prohibit activities that are determined to be & tisthe Bank. The Dod8rank Act provided for the transfer of the authofdr supervising ar
regulating savings and loan holding companies hait hondepository subsidiaries from the OTS to the FRBe fransfer occurred on July
2011.

The Company's activities are limited to the adtdgtpermissible for financial holding companiesfar multiple savings and loan holdi
companies. A financial holding company may engageadtivities that are financial in nature, incluglinnderwriting equity securities &
insurance, incidental to financial activities omg@ementary to a financial activity. The Do#fdank Act specifies that a savings and

holding company may only engage in financial hajdoompany activities if it meets the qualitativétenia necessary for a bank hold
company to engage isuch activities. A multiple savings and loan hofdicompany is generally limited to activities persitide for ban
holding companies under Section 4(c) (8) of thekBHbIding Company Act, subject to the prior approehithe FRB, and certain additiol
activities authorized by FRB regulations.

Federal law prohibits a savings and loan holdinggany, directly or indirectly, or through one ormeubsidiaries, from acquiring contro
another savings institution or holding company ¢oérwithout prior written approval of the FRB.dlso prohibits the acquisition or retent
of, with specified exceptions, more than 5% of ¢lgity securities of a company engaged in actwvitiet are not closely related to bankin
financial in nature or acquiring or retaining camtof an institution that is not federally insured.evaluating applications by holding compa
to acquire savings institutions, the FRB must abaisthe financial and managerial resources anaduyitospects of the savings institution,
effect of the acquisition on the risk to the inswoa fund, the convenience and needs of the comynané competitive factors.

Capital. Savings and loan holding companies are not cugresubject to specific regulatory capital requiretseiThe Dodd-rank Act
however, required the FRB to promulgate consolilatapital requirements for depository institutioolding companies that are no |
stringent, both quantitatively and in terms of cam@nts of capital, than those applicable to thais&liary depository institutions. Instrume
such as cumulative preferred stock and tpseferred securities, which are currently incluéallthin Tier 1 capital by bank holding compal
within certain limits, would no longer be includebhs Tier 1 capital, subject to certain grandfatigerThe previously discussed final r
regarding regulatory capital requirements impleraeéheé Dodd-rank Act as to savings and loan holding compar@emsolidated regulata
capital requirements identical to those applicablthe subsidiary depository institutions will appbd savings and loan holding companies
January 1, 2015. As is the case with institutidnesrtselves, the capital conservation buffer wilpbased in between 2016 and 2019.

Source of Strength DoctrineThe “source of strength doctringéquires bank holding companies to provide findnaissistance to the
subsidiary depository institutions in the event siisidiary depository institution experiences fficial distress. The DodBrank Act extenc
the source of strength doctrine to savings and lhadding companies. The FRB has issued regulatieqairing that all bank holding compar
and savings and loan holding companies serve asiraes of strength to their subsidiary depositorstitations by providing capital, liquidi
and other support in times of financial distress.

The FRB has issued a policy statement regardingdyenent of dividends by bank holding companies ithhas made applicable to savi
and loan holding companies as well. In general piblecy provides that dividends should be paid omly of current earnings and only if
prospective rate of earnings retention by the Imgildiompany appears consistent with the organiZatioapital needs, asset quality and ov
financial condition. Regulatory guidance provides ffrior regulatory review of capital distributioimscertain circumstances such as wher:
companys net income for the past four quarters, net atiéivds previously paid over that period, is insufint to fully fund the dividend or t
company’s overall rate of earnings retention ioimsistent with the compars/capital needs and overall financial conditione Eility of ¢
holding company to pay dividends may be restriéted subsidiary bank becomes undercapitalized. @ megulatory policies could affect -
ability of the Company to pay dividends or otheewngage in capital distributions.

Change in Control Regulations

Under the Change in Bank Control Act, no person a@yuire control of a savings and loan holding canypsuch as the Company unless
FRB has been given 60 daywior written notice and has not issued a noticajgiproving the proposed acquisition, taking intnsigeratiol
certain factors, including the financial and man@geesources of the acquiror and the competiiffects of the acquisition. Control, as defi
under federal law, means ownership, control ofading irrevocable proxies representing more th&% 2f any class of voting stock, con
in any manner of the election of a majority of t@mpanys directors, or a determination by the regulatat the acquiror has the powe
direct, or directly or indirectly to exercise a tamfling influence over, the management or poliadghe institution. Acquisition of more th
10% of any class of a savings
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and loan holding comparg/’voting stock constitutes a rebuttable presumptibcontrol under the regulations under certairturinstance
including where, as is the case with the Compdrg/jdsuer has registered securities under Secaf the Exchange Act.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The Sarbane®xley Act of 2002 was enacted in response to putdiccerns regarding corporate accountability inneation with certai
accounting scandals. The stated goals of the Saesliaxley Act are to increase corporate responsibitityprovide for enhanced penalties
accounting and auditing improprieties at publialgded companies, and to protect investors by inipgothe accuracy and reliability
corporate disclosures pursuant to the securiti@s.l@he SarbaneSxley Act generally applies to all companies thiat 6ér are required to fi
periodic reports with the SEC, under the Exchange A

The Sarbane®xley Act includes specific additional disclosueguirements, requires the SEC and national sessirékchanges to ad
extensive additional disclosure, corporate govestaand other related rules, and mandates furthdiest of certain issues by the SEC.

Federal Securities Laws

The Companys common stock is registered with the SEC underBkehange Act. The Company is subject to the infdirom, prox
solicitation, insider trading restrictions and athequirements of the Exchange Act.

ITEM1A. RISK FACTORS

An investment in our securities is subject to rigkserent in our business and the industry in whighoperate. Before making an investn
decision, you should carefully consider the riskd ancertainties described below and all otherrinfdion included in this report. The ri
described below may adversely affect our businfé@sancial condition and operating results. In aidditto these risks and the other risks
uncertainties described in Item 1, “Business-FodMasoking Statements,” and Item Management's Discussion and Analysis of Fina
Condition and Results of Operationgiere may be additional risks and uncertaintie$ déina not currently known to us or that we currg
deem to be immaterial that could materially andeasiely affect our business, financial conditioroperating results. The value or market
of our securities could decline due to any of thidemtified or other risks. Past financial perfomoa may not be a reliable indicator of fui
performance, and historical trends should not leel tis anticipate results or trends in future pesiod

Our future growth and success will depend on our ality to compete effectively in a highly competitive environment

We face substantial competition in all phases af @perations from a variety of different compettoOur future growth and success
depend on our ability to compete effectively insttiighly competitive environment. To date, our cefitive strategies have focused
attracting deposits in our local markets, and gngwour loan and lease portfolio by emphasizing i$igeloan products in which we ha
significant experience and expertise, identifyimgl daargeting markets in which we believe we caeatifely compete with larger institutic
and other competitors, and offering highly compegitpricing to commercial borrowers with low riskofiles. We compete for loans, depao
and other financial services with other commerbaaiks, thrifts, credit unions, brokerage houseguaidunds, insurance companies, real e
conduits, mortgage brokers and specialized finarepanies. Many of our competitors offer productd aervices that we do not offer, |
many have substantially greater resources andrigriaits, name recognition and market presencelibaefit them in attracting business
addition, larger competitors may be able to pra@nk and deposits more aggressively than we ddyecalise of their larger capital bases,
underwriting practices for smaller loans may beettito less regulatory scrutiny than they woulddresmaller banks. Newer competitors t
be more aggressive in pricing loans and depositsder to increase their market share. Some ofitlaacial institutions and financial servi
organizations with which we compete are not sulijethe extensive regulations imposed on federdhga banks and their holding compar
As a result, these nonbank competitors have ceathiantages over us in accessing funding and wiging various financial services.

Numerous factors could adversely impact future loamgrowth and thus our future profitability

Our future profitability will depend in substantjadrt on our ability to achieve loan and lease gnawwder intensely competitive conditions
manner consistent with our underwriting standarus leBusiness plan objectives. Our ability to achiienare loan and lease growth will dep
on a number of factors, including our ability tdesfloan and lease products at prices and withufeatthat are comparable or superior to t
offered by our competitors and attractive to pasdritorrowers. Because our business plan targets guality loans and leases in spe:
markets and product categories, our underwritingdsirds and our lending requirements relating bateoal eligibility, residual equity, glob
debt service coverage, loan covenants, loan steietnd financial reporting tend to be on the coredre side of the market. This can mal
difficult for us to compete with institutions
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that have comparable loan pricing but more leniemtling requirements. Our loan pricing is also iotpd in a significant way by the financ
strength of the borrower, the guarantor and thiatohl. This enables us to compete very effegtivet highly qualified borrowers, but it ¢
place us at a competitive disadvantage with respelsbrrowers who present acceptable credit risksabe not highly qualified. Our ability
achieve future loan and lease growth will also fected by factors that are not exclusively witbur control, such as the level of loan pay
and regulatory concentrations of credit limits. 3&@nd other factors could weaken our competitogtion, which could adversely affect
growth and profitability. This, in turn, could hasematerial adverse effect on our business, firdueoindition, and results of operations.

Since our business is concentrated in the Chicagoditopolitan Area, local economic, market and compdive conditions can adversel
affect our business

Although we make certain types of loans and ledaselsorrowers located in other states, our lendind deposit gathering activities

concentrated primarily in the Chicago MetropolitArea. Our success can be affected by the geneoaloedc conditions of this area ¢
surrounding areas. In addition, many of the loansur loan portfolio are secured by real estatatkxt in the Chicago Metropolitan Ar
Negative conditions in the real estate markets wiwetlateral for a mortgage loan is located couwdeasely affect the borrower's ability
repay the loan and the value of the collateral seguhe loan. Real estate values are affected bByynother factors beyond our cont
including real estate supply and demand, the imp&anortgage foreclosures and short sales, chamgegneral or regional econor
conditions and unemployment rates, interest rg@gernmental rules or policies and natural disastEne value of real estate located in n
segments of the Chicago Metropolitan Area has laeeincontinues to be adversely impacted by manesfg factors, and this has had, and
continue to have, a negative impact on our loamvtrpour ability to collect certain loans accorditegtheir terms and market other real e:
loans at appraised values, and our results of tpesa

The commercial, multiamily and residential real estate markets in thec&@yo area continue to experience a variety dicdities, including a
oversupply of properties in some market segments tdueconomic conditions, high unemployment rated a high level of foreclos
properties and properties in the process of forerta These adverse conditions have had a vafietgverse consequences for both lender:
borrowers, including a reduction in the value dilrestate collateral and OREO, an increase in loaralue ratios, higher vacancy rates
lower rents, a reduction of the borrowing capacityeal estate borrowers and an increase in sicategaults resulting from the reductior
elimination of the equity that borrowers once hathieir real estate investments.

Historically low interest rates could continue to aversely affect our net interest income and profithility

Our consolidated operating results are largely déeet on our net interest income. Net interestrimeds the difference between interest ea
on loans and investments and interest expenseratton deposits and other borrowings. Our net ésteincome is impacted by change
market rates of interest, changes in credit spredd@mges in the shape of the yield curve, theasteate sensitivity of our assets and liabilj
prepayments on our loans and investments, and ithefrour funding sources and assets, among ottiegs.

In recent years it has been the policy of the Badit@overnors of the Federal Reserve System totaiaimterest rates at historically low lev
through its targeted federal funds rate and thehlmase of securities. As a result, the interessratenew loans we have originated and mat
loans that we have renewed and the yields on sesuwe have purchased during this period have beaistorically low levels. Our ability
offset this by lowering the interest rates thatpag on deposits is severely limited because inteatss on deposits are already at historic |
These factors contributed to a 58 basis pointsmeah our net interest spread in 20IBhe Board of Governors of the Federal Reservées'
has indicated its intention to maintain low intérestes until the national unemployment rate i46 & lower. Accordingly, our net inter
income (the difference between interest incomeezhon assets and interest expense paid on liab)lithay continue to decrease, which
have an adverse effect on our profitability.

Changes in market interest rates could adversely &fct our financial condition and results of operatbns

Our financial condition and results of operations significantly affected by changes in marketri@st rates because our assets, primarily |
and our liabilities, primarily deposits, are momgtan nature. Our results of operations depend tautiglly on our net interest income, whic
the difference between the interest income tha¢ara on our interest-earning assets and the intexpsnse that we pay on our interesaring
liabilities. Market interest rates are affectedrbginy factors beyond our control, including inflatjigecession, unemployment, money suj
domestic and international events, and changdseitunited States and other financial markets. @tiinterest income is affected not only
the level and direction of interest rates, but dgdhe shape of the yield curve and relationsbgtsveen interest sensitive instruments anc
driver rates, including credit risk spreads, andhalance sheet growth, customer loan and depaditn@ences and the timing of changes in t
variables which
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themselves are impacted by changes in market siteates. As a result, changes in market inteegssrcan significantly affect our net inte
income as well as the fair market valuation of assets and liabilities.

While we take measures intended to manage the frisks changes in market interest rates, we canowtral or accurately predict change:
market rates of interest or be sure our protectieasures are adequate. If the interest rates pai@mosits and other interest bearing liabil
increase at a faster rate than the interest rat=sved on loans and other interest earning assatsiet interest income, and therefore earn
could be adversely affected. We would also inchigher cost of funds to retain our deposits ifisang interest rate environment. While
higher payment amounts we would receive on adjiestalbe loans in a rising interest rate environnmeay increase our interest income, s
borrowers may be unable to afford the higher payraerounts, and this could result in a higher rdtdaefault. Rising interest rates also r
reduce the demand for loans and the value of fiatelinvestment securities.

Repayment of our commercial and commercial real eate loans typically depends on the cash flows oféhborrower. If a borrower's
cash flows weaken or become uncertain, the loan maneed to be classified, the collateral securing tHean may decline in value and w
may need to increase our loan loss reserves or reda charge off

We underwrite our commercial and commercial reshtesloans primarily based on the historical angeeted cash flow of the borrow
Although we consider collateral in the underwritimgpcess, it is a secondary consideration thatrgéipeelates to the risk of loss in the e\
of a borrower default. We have also adopted the ©®@ablished guidance for assigning riskings to loans, and it emphasizes the streng
the borrower's cash flow. Specifically, the OC®@anl risk-rating guidance provides that the primaogsideration in assigning risktings t
commercial and commercial real estate loans istieagth of the primary source of repayment, wisctiefined as a sustainable source of
under the borrower's control that is reserved,ieitiyl or implicitly, to cover the debt obligatiolThe OCC's loan riskating guidance typical
does not consider secondary repayment sourcesthatdtrength of the primary repayment source weskand collateral values typically
not have a significant impact on a loan's riskniggi until a loan is classified. Consequently, harower's cash flows weaken or beci
uncertain, the loan may need to be classified, dradr not the loan is performing or fully securkdaddition, real estate appraisers typic
place significant weight on the cash flows genedty incomeproducing real estate and the reliability of thethcdlows in performin
valuations. Thus, economic or borrowgrecific conditions that cause a decline in bormogash flows could cause our loan classificatiam
increase and the appraised value of the collase@lring our loans to decline, and require usdoemse our loan loss reserves or record ¢!
offs.

If our allowance for loan losses is not sufficiernto cover actual loan losses, our earnings would laelversely impacted

In the event that our loan customers do not repaly toans according to their terms, and the cedidtsecuring the repayment of these loa
insufficient to cover any remaining loan balance, @ould experience significant loan losses or @m®eeour provision for loan losses or b
which could have a material adverse effect on qarating results. At December 31, 2013 , our alloseafor loan losses was $14.2 millipn
representing 1.3% of total loans and 76.8Pmonperforming loans as of that date. In deteimgithe amount of our allowance for loan los
we rely on our loan quality reviews, our experieaeal our evaluation of economic conditions, amotigeiofactors. In addition, we me
various estimates and assumptions about the calligity of our loan portfolio, including the crediorthiness of our borrowers and the valu
the real estate and other assets, if any, sendngobateral for the repayment of our loans. We atsake judgments concerning our le
positions and the priority of our interests in amstéd legal or bankruptcy proceedings, and at timesmay lack sufficient information
establish adequate specific reserves for loandvadan such proceedings. We base these estimaesmptions and judgments on informe
that we consider reliable, but if an estimate, agstion or judgment that we make ultimately prowe®¢ incorrect, additional provisions to
allowance for loan losses may become necessagnddition, as an integral part of their supervisang/or examination process, our regula
agencies periodically review the methodology anffidency of the allowance for loan losses. Thegereies may require us to recog!
additions to the allowance based on their incluséelusion or modification of risk factors or difences in judgments of information avail:
to them at the time of their examination.

A substantial portion of our loan portfolio is secued by real estate. Deterioration in the real esta markets could lead to additione
losses, which could have a material negative effemh our financial condition and results of operatims

A substantial portion of our loan portfolio is seed by real estate. At December 31, 2013, our fmatfolio included $396.1 million in multi-
family mortgage loans, or 35.6% of total loans, &Bémillion in nonresidential real estate loans28r7% of total loans, $201.4 million in one:
to four family residential real estate loans, or1®¥8 of total loans (which includes $54.9 million mon-owner occupied orte-four family
residential real estate loans, or 4.9% of totahé)and $6.6 million in construction and land Iqaors0.6%o0f total loans. . Adverse conditic

in the real estate markets, particularly in thed@abo area, have been a significant factor behiedhigher than normal chargéfs anc
provisions for loan losses we have experiencec@emt years. As a result of these and other facteeshave experienced higher level:
charge-offs, loan classifications and provisions fo
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loan losses on our real estate loans and wiotens on our other real estate owned. The persistefithese adverse conditions could rest
additional defaults, charge-offs, provisions faaidosses and loan classifications.

Repayment of our lease loans is typically dependemin the cash flows of the lessee, which may be ueglictable, and the collatere
securing these loans may fluctuate in value

We lend money to small and méikzed independent leasing companies to financeldbhé portion of leases. A lease loan arises whieasin(
company discounts the equipment rental revenuarst@ved to the leasing company by a lessee. Ose leans entail many of the same t
of risks as our commercial loans. Lease loans gdlgeare nonrecourse to the leasing company, and, consequenttyrecourse is limited
the lessee and the leased equipment. As with coaimhénans secured by equipment, the equipmentrggrour lease loans may deprec
over time, may be difficult to appraise and mayfliate in value. We rely on the lesseebdntinuing financial stability, rather than theue o
the leased equipment, for the repayment of alliredutamounts under lease loans. In the event efautt on a lease loan, the proceeds fror
sale of the leased equipment may not be suffidierdtatisfy the outstanding unpaid amounts undertéhmas of the loan. Athecember 3:
2013, our lease loans totaled $187.1 million1&8% of our total loan portfolio.

Our loan portfolio includes loans to healthcare preiders, and the repayment of these loans is largelyependent upon the receipt ¢
governmental reimbursements

At December 31, 2013, we had $37.1 million of loansl unused commitments to a variety of healthpaogiders, primarily lines of cret
secured by healthcare receivables. The repaymettiese lines of credit is largely dependent on liberower's receipt of payments
reimbursements under Medicaid, Medicare and in scases private insurance contracts for the sertieshave provided. The ability of 1
borrowers to service loans we have made to them eagdversely impacted by the financial healthhef $tate or federal payors, man
which have experienced budgetary stress, to makduvesements for the services provided. The faibirene or more state or federal payol
make reimbursements owed to the operators of tfaed@ies, or a significant delay in the making sich reimbursements, could adver
affect the ability of the operators of these fdieiti to repay their obligations to us. In additiohanges to national health care policy invol
private health insurance policies may also affeetliusiness prospects and financial condition eraipns of commercial loan customers
commercial lessees involved in health care-relbtesinesses

The Bank is required to maintain a significant perentage of its total assets in residential mortgageans and investments secured |
residential mortgage loans, which restricts our aldity to diversify our loan portfolio

A federal savings bank or thrift differs from a cmercial bank in that it is required to maintairestst 65% of its total assets iqualified thrift
investments’which generally include loans and investmentstterpurchase, refinance, construction, improvenmntepair of residential re
estate, as well as home equity loans, educatiamslaad small business loans. To maintain our féderdangs bank charter we have to |
“qualified thrift lender” or “QTL"in nine out of each 12 immediately preceding montte QTL requirement limits the extent to which o
grow our commercial loan portfolio, and as a resfilthe DoddFrank Act, failing the QTL test can result in arf@nement action. Howewt
multi-family mortgage loans as well as certain loans exateeding $2 million (including a group of loans doe borrower) that are 1
commercial, corporate, business, or agriculturappses are included in our qualified thrift investits. Because of the QTL requirement
may be limited in our ability to change our asset and increase the yield on our earning assetgdmying our commercial loan portfolio.

The residential loans in our loan portfolio are sesitive to regional and local economic conditions

We originate fixed and adjustable rate loans secbyeone- to foufamily residential real estate. Our general peacts to sell a majority
our newly originated fixed-rate residential realaés loans and to hold in portfolio a limited numio¢ adjustableate residential real est
loans. Our portfolio also includes home equity sired credit and fixedate second mortgage loans. Residential real dstading is sensitive
regional and local economic conditions that sigaifitly impact the ability of borrowers to meet theian payment obligations, making |
levels difficult to predict. The decline in residiah real estate values as a result of the downirthe Chicago Metropolitan Area hous
markets has generally reduced the value of theestate collateral securing these types of loadsrareased the risk that we will incur los
if borrowers default on their loans. Residentiares with high combined loan-t@lue ratios generally will be more sensitive talaeng
property values than those with lower combined {tmamalue ratios and therefore may experience a higiteglence of default and severity
losses. In addition, if the borrowers sell theintes, the borrowers may be unable to repay themslaafull from the sale proceeds. As a re
these loans may experience higher rates of delmzjeg, defaults and losses, which could in turneaskly affect our financial condition ¢
results of operations.
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Proposed and final regulations could restrict our &ility to originate and sell residential loans

The Consumer Financial Protection Bureau has isauede designed to clarify for lenders how they eaoid legal liability under the Dodd-
Frank Act, which would hold lenders accountable émsuring a borrower’s ability to repay a mortgabeans that meet thisqualifiec
mortgage” definition will be presumed to have coimgplwith the new ability-toepay standard. Under the Consumer Financial Rioh
Bureau’s rule, a “qualified mortgage” loan must nohtain certain specified features, including:

» excessive up-front points and fees (those exnge¥s of the total loan amount, less “bona fidecdunt pointsfor prime loans’
* interestenly payment:

e negativeamortization; an

« terms longer than 30 yee

Also, to qualify as a “qualified mortgage,” a boser’s total monthly debt-tiacome ratio may not exceed 43%. Lenders must\asify anc
document the income and financial resources reipgmh to qualify the borrower for the loan and undgée the loan based on a fully amortiz
payment schedule and maximum interest rate duheditst five years, taking into account all apphte taxes, insurance and assessment:
Consumer Financial Protection Burestile on qualified mortgages could limit our ailor desire to make certain types of loans or $o&
certain borrowers, or could make it more expenaiveé/or time consuming to make these loans, whickddomit our growth or profitability.

In addition, the Dodd~rank Act requires the regulatory agencies to issegelations that require securitizers of loansetain not less than £
of the credit risk for any asset that is not a ‘digal residential mortgage.The regulatory agencies have issued a proposedaiteplemer
this requirement. The Dodd-Frank Act provides tihat definition of “qualified residential mortgagean be no broader than the definitiol
“qualified mortgage’issued by the Consumer Financial Protection Bufeapurposes of its regulations. Although the finak with respect
the retention of credit risk has not yet been idstige final rule could have a significant effeatthe secondary market for loans and the 1
of loans we originate, and restrict our abilitynbake loans.

Losses incurred in connection with actual or projeted repurchases and makeavhole payments related to certain residential mortgge:
that we have sold to Fannie Mae may exceed our finaial statement reserves and we may be required focrease such reserves in t
future

We have engaged in the origination and purchasesiflential and multifamily mortgages for sale hord parties, primarily Fannie Mae.
connection with such sales, we made certain reptasens and warranties, and were required to obseertain underwriting a
documentation requirements. If we breached anyessmtation or warranty relating to a sold loanidrmibt observe the applicable underwri
and documentation requirements, the purchaser exyest us to repurchase the loan, and if the leanlted in a loss, the purchaser

request us to make it whole for the amount of #ss.|We have from time to time received requests foan purchasers to repurchase loa
to make the purchaser whole for losses sustaineal loan. We have successfully defended our positiorthe majority of such cases, bu
several cases, our asserted defenses did not pMieintend to defend any loan repurchase requestsake whole payment requests tha
may receive in the future if we believe that we daneritorious defenses. We have also establistreprasentation and warranty reserve
potential losses that may result from any such estguthat we are not able to successfully defesiigua methodology that we believt
appropriate. It is possible that we will receivéufie loan repurchase requests or make whole payreguésts. If we are required to make

repurchases or make whole payments in excess ofepuesentation and warranty reserves or if we rteddcrease our reserves, this ct
have a material adverse effect on our financiabld@m and results of operations.

Our business may be adversely affected by the regibry environment in which we operate

The DoddFrank Act, which was signed by the President oty Afl, 2010, provided for the transfer of the autiyofor regulating an
supervising federal savings banks from the OTSh® ®CC, and the authority for regulating and sugery savings and loan holdi
companies and their natepository subsidiaries from the OTS to the FRBe Tansfer occurred on July 21, 2011, and on tht¢,dhe OC
became the primary federal regulator of the Bank #tve FRB became the primary federal regulatothef Company. The transition of -
Company and the Bank to this new supervisory awgdlatory structure presents risks, potential litivlas and adjustments that were
present when the Company and the Bank were supdreaisd regulated exclusively by the OTS. For exairiple OCC's published guida
and practices for assigning risk ratings to commaétoans focuses more heavily on cash flows tthenldan risk rating guidance and pract
of the OTS, and requires that a performing loanclassified if it exhibits wellefined weaknesses, even if the loan does not mire
probability of default or loss. The OCC's morergjgnt loan riskating practices have contributed to the increaghé Bank's classified lo
and have increased the Bank's risk of being sudgetd supervisory measures. In addition, the Fédeeserve Board takes a m
comprehensive approach than the OTS
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did to holding company supervision and regulatieor. example, the Company is now subject to Fedeeakrve Board Supervisory Letter
094, which has the effect of imposing restrictionsdividends and stock repurchases in certain cirtamegs. The Company does not |
sufficient net income for the past four quarters afedividends previously paid to declare a dividewithout first consulting with and seek
the approval of the Federal Reserve Bank of Chicibe Company's ability to pay dividends on its caon stock could be further limited
the application of the Federal Reserve Board'scgoof strength doctrine, which requires holding pamnies to provide financial support to tl
subsidiary depository institutions if the subsigligg in financial distress, or by regulatory ord€hese regulatory changes have affected
will continue to affect, the regulatory environmémivhich we operate.

FDIC deposit insurance costs have increased and maycrease further in the future

FDIC insurance rates have increased significarglyd we may pay higher FDIC deposit premiums in fitere. The Dodd-rank Ac
established 1.35% as the minimum Designated Re$tatie (“DRR”) for the deposit insurance fund. The FDIC has deterchthat the DR
should be 2.0% and has adopted a plan under whigli imeet the statutory minimum DRR of 1.35% Hhetstatutory deadline of Septerr
30, 2020. The Dodérank Act requires the FDIC to offset the effectipstitutions with assets less than $10 billiontleé increase in tl
statutory minimum DRR to 1.35% from the former staty minimum of 1.15%. The FDIC has not announiced it will implement this offse
The DoddFrank Act also requires the FDIC to base deposiiriance premium on an institution's total assetaimits tangible equity instead
its deposits. The FDIC has adopted regulations blage assessments for banks and thrifts with &xtséts of less than $10 billion o
combination of financial ratios and regulatory mg8. This new method has caused our FDIC depasiframce premiums to increase
presents a risk that they will increase in the feitdf circumstances require the FDIC to imposeitaaithl special assessments or further incr
its quarterly assessment rates, this could alse havadverse impact on our results of operations.

We will become subject to more stringent capital rquirements, which may adversely impact our return @ equity, require us to raise
additional capital, or constrain us from paying dividends or repurchasing shares

In July 2013, the federal banking agencies appravedw rule that will substantially amend the regprdy riskbased capital rules applicable
the Bank and the Company. The final rule implemémésBasel 11l regulatory capital reforms and chesgequired by the Dodd-Frank Act.

The final rule includes new minimum risglased capital and leverage ratios, which will Heative for us on January 1, 2015, and refine:
definition of what constitutes “capitafor purposes of calculating these ratios. The newimum capital requirements will be: (i) a n
common equity Tier 1 capital ratio of 4.5%; (ii)féer 1 to riskbased assets capital ratio of 6% (increased frory @i} a total capital ratio ¢
8% (unchanged from current rules); and (iv) a Tideverage ratio of 4%. The final rule also regsiitmrealized gains and losses on ce
“available-for-sale” securities holdings to be un¢d for purposes of calculating regulatory capiéguirements unless a one-time opt-is
exercised. The final rule also establishes a “eapibnservation bufferdf 2.5%, and will result in the following minimuratios: (i) a commc
equity Tier 1 capital ratio of 7.0%, (ii) a Tiertd risk-based assets capital ratio of 8.5%, and (iii) al toapital ratio of 10.5%. The new caf
conservation buffer requirement would be phasdukiginning in January 2016 at 0.625% of ne#ighted assets and would increase eact
until fully implemented in January 2019. An institlm will be subject to limitations on paying diedds, engaging in share repurchases
paying discretionary bonuses if its capital lewadlsf below the buffer amount. These limitationsl wétablish a maximum percentage of elic
retained income that can be utilized for such astio

We have analyzed the effects of these new camtplirements, and we believe that the Bank and tmapany would meet all of these r
requirements, including the full 2.5% capital canagion buffer, as if these new requirements haghhe effect as of December 31, 2013.

The application of more stringent capital requiratsecould, among other things, result in lower mesuon equity, require the raising
additional capital, and result in regulatory actioghwe were to be unable to comply with such regmients. Furthermore, the impositior
liquidity requirements in connection with the immlentation of Basel Il could result in our having lengthen the term of our fundi
restructure our business models, and/or increasbaldings of liquid assets. Implementation of apemto asset risk weightings for ribkse:
capital calculations, items included or deductedaiculating regulatory capital and/or additionapital conservation buffers could resul
management modifying its business strategy, andtidouit our ability to make distributions, includl paying out dividends or buying b
shares. Specifically, beginning in 2016, the Ban&bility to pay dividends will be limited if doe®t have the capital conservation bu
required by the new capital rules, which may limitr ability to pay dividends to stockholders. S&ugervision and Regulatidrederz
Banking Regulation-New Capital Rule.”
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Our sources of funds are limited because of our hding company structure

The Company is a separate legal entity from itssislidries and does not have significant operatwings own. Dividends from the Ba
provide a significant source of cash for the Conypdiine availability of dividends from the Bank imlted by various statutes and regulati
Under these statutes and regulations, the Ban&tipermitted to pay dividends on its capital sttwkhe Company, its sole stockholder, if
dividend would reduce the stockholders' equityhef Bank below the amount of the liquidation accoestablished in connection with

mutual-tostock conversion. Federal savings banks may pagetids without the approval of its primary fedemedjulator only if they me
applicable regulatory capital requirements befaré after the payment of the dividends and totaidéinds do not exceed net income to

over the calendar year plus its retained net incower the preceding two years. Although the Bankjsital exceeded applicable regula
requirements at December 31, 2018e Bank did not have sufficient net income aberpreceding two years to pay a dividend to thengamny
without receiving prior regulatory approval. Ther@eany has also reserved $5.0 million of its avé@aash to maintain its ability to serve i
source of financial strength to the Bank. If in theure, the Company utilizes its available caghdiner purposes and the Bank is unable tc
dividends to the Company, the Company may not katficient funds to pay dividends.

New or changing tax, accounting, and regulatory rids and interpretations could have a significant imact on our strategic initiatives
results of operations, cash flows, and financial cwlition

The banking services industry is extensively reigaleand the degree of regulation is increasing tduthe DoddFrank Act and regulato
initiatives precipitated by the Dod#ank Act and the economic downturn and the remyltlisruptions that certain financial marl
experienced. These regulations, along with theeatiyr existing tax, accounting, securities, insegrand monetary laws, regulations, rt
standards, policies and interpretations, contmlnttethods by which financial institutions and theitding companies conduct business, en
in strategic and tax planning and implement stiatégtiatives, and govern financial reporting agidclosures. These laws, regulations,
standards, policies and interpretations are cotigtavolving and may change significantly over time

We are subject to security and operational risks riating to our use of technology

We depend on the secure processing, storage amirission of confidential and other informatiorour data processing systems, compt
networks and communications systems. Although We taumerous protective measures and otherwise eoidé&a protect and maintain 1
privacy and security of confidential data, thesgtesms may be vulnerable to unauthorized accesqyuemviruses or other malicious code,
other events that could have a security impaabné or more of such events were to occur, thisntiatéy could jeopardize confidential a
other information processed and stored in, andsimdtted through, our systems or otherwise causgrimitions or malfunctions in our or «
customers' operations. We may be required to expardficant additional resources to modify our teaiive measures or to investigate
remediate vulnerabilities or other exposures, aadnay be subject to litigation and financial losked are not fully covered by our insurai
Security breaches in our internet banking actisitieuld expose us to possible liability and detest@mers from using our systems. We rel
standard internet security systems to provide doaisty and authentication necessary to effectrgetrtansmission of data. These precau
may not fully protect our systems from compromisedreaches of our security measures that couldtri@sdamage to our reputation and
business. Although we perform most data proceshingtions internally, we outsource certain serviteghird parties. If our third pat
providers encounter operational difficulties or @y breaches, it could affect our ability to adately process and account for custc
transactions, which could significantly affect dwsiness operations.

Our operations rely on numerous external vendors

We rely on numerous external vendors to providevitis products and services necessary to maintairday-today operations. According
our operations are exposed to risk that these wenddl not perform in accordance with the conteattarrangements under service |
agreements. The failure of an external vendor tiopa in accordance with the contracted arrangementler service level agreements bec
of changes in the vendor's organizational structiimancial condition, support for existing prodsi@nd services or strategic focus or for
other reason, could be disruptive to our operatiatgch in turn could have a material negative iotgan our financial condition and result:
operations. We also could be adversely affectaeaextent such an agreement is not renewed bhitlieparty vendor or is renewed on te
less favorable to us.

Our business and operations could be significantlynpacted if we or our third party vendors suffer failure or disruptions of information
processing systems or systems failures

We have become increasingly dependent on commignisaidata processing and other information teagyobystems to manage and con
our business and support our day-to-day bankingsitment, and trust activities, some of which amvided through thirgarties. If we or ot
third party vendors encounter difficulties or be@othe source of an attack on or breach of theiratjpmal systems, data or infrastructure,
we have difficulty communicating with any such thparty system, our business and operations
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could suffer. Any failure or disruption to our sgsts, or those of a third party vendor, could impedetransaction processing, service deli
customer relationship management, data procesfiagcial reporting or risk management. Although take ongoing monitoring, detecti
and prevention measures and perform penetration testing and perigk assessments, our computer systems, softaadenetworks ar
those of our third party vendors may be or becomaerable to unauthorized access, loss or destructi data (including confidential clie
information), account takeovers, unavailability sgfrvice, computer viruses, denial of service agaokalicious social engineering or ol
malicious code, or cybeattacks beyond what we can reasonably anticipatesach events could result in material loss. If ahgur financial
accounting or other data processing systems failawe other significant shortcomings, we could keemally adversely affected. Secu
breaches in our online banking systems could aksee han adverse effect on our reputation and coulijest us to possible liabilit
Additionally, we could suffer disruptions to ourssgms or damage to our network infrastructure fements that are wholly or partially beyc
our control, such as electrical or telecommuniceioutages, natural disasters, widespread heakdngemcies or pandemics, or events ar
from local or larger scale political events, indhgl terrorist acts. There can be no assurancedhafpolicies, procedures and protec
measures designed to prevent or limit the effea tilure, interruption or security breach, or g@dicies, procedures and protective meas
of our third party vendors, will be effective.diignificant failure, interruption or security brées do occur in our processing systems or thc
our third party providers, we could suffer damagetr reputation, a loss of customer business tiaddi regulatory scrutiny, or exposure
civil litigation, additional costs and possibledimcial liability. In addition, our business is higldependent on our ability to process, record
monitor, on a continuous basis, a large numberasfsections. To do so, we are dependent on ourogegsd and therefore, the potential
operational risk exposure exists throughout ouapization, including losses resulting from humaroerWe could be materially advers
affected if one or more of our employees causegaifgiant operational breakdown or failure. If walfto maintain adequate infrastruct
systems, controls and personnel relative to o ard products and services, our ability to eféetyi operate our business may be impe
and our business could be adversely affected.

We continually encounter technological change, anthay have fewer resources than many of our competite to continue to invest ir
technological improvements

The financial services industry is undergoing ratgichnological changes, with frequent introductiosiew technologyriven products ar
services. The effective use of technology increa#ésiency and enables financial institutions &itbr serve customers and to reduce costs
future success will depend, in part, upon our gbib address the needs of our customers by usttgnblogy to provide products and serv
that will satisfy customer demands for convenietasewell as to create additional efficiencies in operations. Many of our competitors h
substantially greater resources to invest in teldyical improvements. We also may not be able fec#ively implement new technology-
driven products and services or be successful iketiag these products and services to our custamer

Trading activity in the Company's common stock cou result in material price fluctuations

It is possible that trading activity in the Compangommon stock, including shatlling or significant sales by our larger stocktews, coul
result in material price fluctuations of the priger share of the Company's common stock. In adisach trading activity and the resul
volatility could make it more difficult for the Camany to sell equity or equitselated securities in the future at a time andepifcdeem
appropriate, or to use its stock as consideratomf acquisition.

Various factors may make takeover attempts that youmight want to succeed more difficult to achieve, hich may affect the value ¢
shares of our common stock

Provisions of our articles of incorporation anddws, federal regulations, Maryland law and variotier factors may make it more difficult
companies or persons to acquire control of the Gampwithout the consent of our board of directdfsu may want a takeover attemp
succeed because, for example, a potential acqaineld offer a premium over the then prevailing eriaf our shares of common stc
Provisions of our articles of incorporation anddws$ also may make it difficult to remove our cutrbaard of directors or management if
board of directors opposes the removal. We haweesldo be subject to the Maryland Business ContioimaAct, which places restrictions
mergers and other business combinations with Istagkholders. In addition, our articles of incomuan provide that certain mergers and ¢
similar transactions, as well as amendments tadigles of incorporation, must be approved by ldhotders owning at least twibvirds of ou
shares of common stock entitled to vote on the enaithless first approved by at least tthords of the number of our authorized direct
assuming no vacancies. If approved by at leastthivds of the number of our authorized directossueming no vacancies, the action must
be approved by a majority of our shares entitledai® on the matter. In addition, a director carrdsaoved from office, but only for cause
such removal is approved by stockholders ownirlgagt twothirds of our shares of common stock entitled ttevam the matter. However, i
least twothirds of the number of our authorized directossuening no vacancies, approves the removal ofegtdir, the removal may be w
or without cause, but must still be approved byagomity of our voting shares entitled to vote
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on the matter. Additional provisions include lintitens on the voting rights of any beneficial ownefanore than 10% of our common stc
Our bylaws, which can only be amended by the badrdirectors, also contain provisions regarding timing, content and procedu
requirements for stockholder proposals and nonanati

New lines of business or new products and servicegy subject us to additional risks

From time to time, we may seek to implement newdiof business or offer new products and servid#snaexisting lines of business in ¢
current markets or new markets. There are subataigks and uncertainties associated with thefmtef particularly in instances where
markets are not fully developed. In developing aratketing new lines of business and/or new prodaictsservices, we may invest signific
time and resources. Initial timetables for theddtrction and development of new lines of busineska new products or services may nc
achieved and price and profitability targets mayprove feasible, which could in turn have a malaregative effect on our operating results.

Non-Compliance with USA PATRIOT Act, Bank Secrecy At, Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act, Truth-kbending Act or other
laws and regulations could result in fines or san@ins

Financial institutions are required under the USATRIOT and Bank Secrecy Acts to develop programpr&vent financial institutions fra
being used for monelaundering and terrorist activities. Financial ingtons are also obligated to file suspicious\attireports with the U.¢
Treasury Department's Office of Financial CrimedoEtement Network if such activities are detect&tese rules also require finan
institutions to establish procedures for identifysnd verifying the identity of customers seekiagpen new financial accounts. Failure ot
inability to comply with these regulations couldué in fines or penalties, curtailment of expansipportunities, intervention or sanctions
regulators and costly litigation or expensive addél controls and systems. During the last fewgeseveral banking institutions have rece
large fines for norcompliance with these laws and regulations. Intaidithe U.S. Government imposed and will contituexpand laws al
regulations relating to residential and consumadileg activities that create significant new coraptie burdens and financial risks. We t
developed policies and continue to augment proesdand systems designed to assist in complianbethdse laws and regulations.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We conduct our business at 20 banking offices &mtdat the Chicago metropolitan area. We own a ritgjof our banking center facilitie
except for our Chicago-Lincoln Park, NorthbrookdahicagoHyde Park East offices, which are leased. The H3al& East office was clos
effective January 2, 2014. We also operate twdlgateational commercial leasing offices. We beédhat all of our properties and equipn
are well maintained, in good operating conditiod adequate for all of our present and anticipatstis.

We believe our facilities in the aggregate areaflé and adequate to operate our banking and deltateiness. Additional information w
respect to premises and equipment is presentedtim &of "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statewsieintitem 8 of the Form 10-K.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject tmwsulegal actions arising in the normal coursdwusiness. In the opinion of managem
based on currently available information, the resoh of these legal actions is not expected teeteamaterial adverse effect on the Compsiny
results of operations.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable

PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our shares of common stock are traded on the NAS[GA@al Select Market under the symbol “BFIN'he approximate number of hold
of record of the Company’s common stock as of Ddmam31, 2013 was 1,540. Certain shares of the Coyipa&ommon stock are held
“nominee” or “street” name, and accordingly, thenier of beneficial owners of such shares is notmor included in the foregoing number.

The following table presents quarterly market infation provided by the NASDAQ Stock Market for tBempanys common stock and ce
dividends paid for the periods ended December 313 2nd 2012 .

Cash
Dividends

2012 and 2013 Quarterly Periods High Low Close Paid
Quarter ended December 31, 2013 $ 9.7¢ $ 8.7C $ 9.1¢ $ 0.0zZ
Quarter ended September 30, 2013 9.4( 8.1t 8.84 —
Quarter ended June 30, 2013 8.71 7.2F 8.5(C 0.0z
Quarter ended March 31, 2013 8.4(C 7.1¢ 8.0¢ —
Quarter ended December 31, 2012 $ 88t $ 6.6z $ 7.4z % =
Quarter ended September 30, 2012 9.24 7.31 8.7¢ 0.01
Quarter ended June 30, 2012 7.5€ 5.6€ 7.5: 0.01
Quarter ended March 31, 2012 7.0t 5.2t 6.62 0.01

As a result of the regulatory restructuring occasibby the Dodd-Frank Act, the Company is subjeétdderal Reserve Board Supervisory
Letter SR 094, which provides that a holding company shouldo@agnother things, notify and make a submissiorméoRederal Reserve Be
prior to declaring a dividend if its net income fitre current quarter is not sufficient to fully flithe dividend, and consider eliminati
deferring or significantly reducing its dividenddts net income for the current quarter is noffisignt to fully fund the dividends, or if its r
income for the past four quarters, net of dividepdssiously paid during that period, is not sufici to fully fund the dividends. The Compi
will continue to consult with, and seek the prippeoval of, the Federal Reserve Bank prior to déajany dividends.
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The Company is also subject to state law limitation the payment of dividends. Maryland law gemgiahits dividends to an amount equa
the excess of our capital surplus over paymentsvtbald be owed upon dissolution to stockholder®senpreferential rights upon dissolu
are superior to those receiving the dividend, andrt amount that would not make us insolvent predjdowever, that even if the Company’
assets are less than the amount necessary toy shtesfrequirement set forth above, the Company make a distribution from: (1)t
Company’s net earnings for the fiscal year in whicé distribution is made; (2) the Compagyiet earnings for the preceding fiscal yea
(3) the sum of the Comparsyhet earnings for the preceding eight fiscal quartDividends from the Bank provide a significaatirce of cas
for the Company. The availability of dividends frahe Bank is limited by various statutes and retipihas. For a discussion of the Bagsk’
ability to pay dividends, see Part I, Item 1, “Bweds — Supervision and Regulation — Federal BanRiegulation — Capital Distributions.”

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
The Company had no sales of unregistered stockgltine quarter ended December 31, 2013 .
Repurchases of Equity Securities

Our Board of Directors had authorized the repurehasup to 5,047,423 shares of our common stock. r€purchase authorization expirec
November 15, 2012. The authorization permittedesh#w be repurchased in open market or negotiededéctions, and pursuant to any tra
plan that may be adopted in accordance with Rulgbd0of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Thboaation was utilized
management's discretion, subject to the limitatiseisforth in Rule 1048 of the Securities and Exchange Commission aher atpplicabl
legal requirements, and to price and other intelingtations established by the Board of Directoks. of December 31, 201,3the Compan
had repurchased 4,239,134 shares of its commoR staicof the 5,047,423 shares that had been auttbffior repurchase. Federal Res
Board Supervisory Letter SR @Bprovides that holding companies experiencingriinea weaknesses such as operating losses shatifiyl arwo
make a submission to the Federal Reserve Bankéedoieeming or repurchasing common stock. The Coynpas no plans to conduct s
discussions with the Federal Reserve supervisaff@t engage in stock repurchases at this time.
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Stock Performance Graph

The following line graph shows a comparison ofthenulative returns for the Company, the Russel020@dex, the NASDAQ Bank Index a
the America’s Community Bankers NASDAQ Index fortperiod beginning December 31, 2008 and endingember 31, 2013 The
information assumes that $100 was invested at lit&ing price on December 31, 2008 in the CommorckiSand each index, and that

dividends were reinvested.
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BankFinancial Corporation
Fussell 2000 Index
—l— NASDAQ Bank index
—d— America's Community Bankers NASDAQ Tndex
12/31/2008 12/31/2009 12/31/2010 12/31/2011 12/31/2012 12/31/2013
BankFinancial Corporation 100.0( 99.8: 101.0¢ 58.5¢ 78.91 97.8¢
Russell 2000 Index 100.0( 127.1° 161.3: 154.5¢ 179.8¢ 249.6¢
NASDAQ Bank Index 100.0( 81.5( 91.1¢ 79.8¢ 92.4¢ 128.4:
America’s Community Bankers NASDAQ Index 100.0( 78.6: 85.8¢ 78.5¢ 90.6¢ 126.2(
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following information is derived from the awatitconsolidated financial statements of the Compaayadditional information, reference
made to ltem 7, “Management’s Discussion and Arnsglg$ Financial Condition and Results of Operatiorad the Consolidated Financ
Statements of the Company and related notes indledewhere in this Annual Report.

At and For the Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Selected Financial Condition Data:

Total assets $ 145359 $ 148119 $ 1,56357" $ 1,530,65 1,566,96.
Loans, net 1,098,07 1,030,46! 1,227,39: 1,050,76! 1,218,541
Loans held-for-sale — 2,16¢ 1,91¢ 2,71¢ —
Securities, at fair value 110,90° 77,83: 92,83: 120,74 102,12¢
Goodwill — — — 22,56¢ 22,56¢
Core deposit intangible 2,43: 3,03¢ 3,671 2,70( 4,29t
Deposits 1,252,70i 1,282,35. 1,332,55: 1,235,37 1,233,39!
Borrowings 3,05¢ 5,561 9,327 23,74¢ 50,78¢
Equity 175,62° 172,89( 199,85 253,28! 263,60:

Selected Operating Data:

Interest and dividend income $ 49,39: $ 60,727 $ 69,70¢ $ 64,93¢ $ 74,10¢
Interest expense 3,65 4,447 6,91¢ 13,18¢ 20,557
Net interest income 45,73¢ 56,28( 62,79! 51,75( 53,55:
Provision for (recovery of) loan losses (687) 31,52; 22,72¢ 12,08 8,811
Net interest income after provision for
(recovery of) loan losses 46,42t 24,75¢ 40,07( 39,66 44,74
Noninterest income 8,13¢ 7,72: 8,14« 7,917 8,022
Noninterest expens@ 51,26: 59,59( 84,53t 54,63¢ 53,51¢
Income (loss) before income taxes 3,29¢ (27,109 (36,32) (7,059 (757)
Income tax expense (benefit) — — 12,37¢ (2,747 (13
Net income (loss) $ 3,29¢ % (27,109 $ (48,69¢) $ (4,307 $ (73¢)
Basic earnings (loss) per common share $ 0.1¢ $ (1.3¢) $ (2.46) $ 0.22) $ (0.09
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share $ 0.1€ $ (1.3¢) $ (2.4¢) $ (0.22) $ (0.04)

(footnotes on following pag
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At and For the Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Selected Financial Ratios and Other Data:
Performance Ratios:
Return on assets (ratio of net income (loss) toage
total assets) 0.25% (1.79% (3.00% (0.28% (0.09%
Return on equity (ratio of net income (loss) torage
equity) 1.8¢ (13.3¢) (19.49) (1.69 (0.2¢)
Net interest rate spredd 3.2¢ 3.8¢ 4.0¢ 3.3¢ 3.3¢
Net interest margif? 3.3 3.9¢ 4.2C 3.57 3.6¢
Efficiency ratio ® 95.1¢ 93.11 85.5¢ 91.57 86.91
Noninterest expense to average total as@ets 3.52 3.92 3.74 3.5(C 3.41
Average interest-earning assets to average interest
bearing liabilities 121.5( 123.17 122.6¢ 122.5¢ 123.4:
Dividends declared per share $ 004 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.22 $ 0.2¢ $ 0.2¢
Dividend payout ratio 25.€% N.M. N.M. N.M. N.M.
Asset Quality Ratios:
Nonperforming assets to total asséts 1.7% 2.61% 6.35% 3.9¢% 3.4:%
Nonperforming loans to total loans 1.6€ 2.7C 6.0¢ 4.34 4.0z
Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming loans 76.8¢ 63.64 41.4 47.6¢ 37.52
Allowance for loan losses to total loans 1.27 1.72 2.52 2.07 1.51
Net charge-offs to average loans outstanding 0.31 3.91 1.04 0.7t 0.3¢
Capital Ratios:
Equity to total assets at end of period 12.08% 11.67% 12.7¢ % 16.55 % 16.82 %
Average equity to average assets 12.0¢ 13.3¢ 15.4% 16.7 17.0Z
Tier 1 leverage ratio (Bank only) 10.1¢ 9.6( 10.4¢ 12.4¢ 12.4¢
Other Data:
Number of full-service office® 20 20 20 18 18
Employees (full-time equivalents) 301 352 357 32¢ 372
Q) Noninterest expense for the year ended Decembe2@1], includes a full goodwill impairment of $2318llion. Noninterest expense for the y
ended December 31, 2009 includes $401,000 of immesit loss on securities.
2) Income tax expense for the year ended Decembe031, includes a full valuation allowance for théetdied tax asset of $22.6 millic
3) The net interest rate spread represents fiieratice between the yield on average interestiegrassets and the cost of average intdyeatin(
liabilities for the period.
(4) The net interest margin represents net intémesme divided by average total interearning assets for the peri
5) The efficiency ratio represents noninterest expgiess goodwill impairment, divided by the sum ef mterest income and noninterest incc
(6) The noninterest expense to average total assetgeptesents noninterest expense less goodwithimment, divided by average total as:
©) Nonperforming assets include nonperforming loars@her real estate own

(8) The Bank's Hyde Park East branch was closed orada@y2014.

N.M. Not Meaningful
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The discussion and analysis that follows focusetherfactors affecting our consolidated financiahdition at December 31, 2013 and 2Q12
and our consolidated results of operations fortinee years ended December 31, 2008ir consolidated financial statements, the rdlate:
and the discussion of our critical accounting peficappearing elsewhere in this Annual Report shdé read in conjunction with tl
discussion and analysis.

Overview of 2013

Total loans increased in 2013 due to increased etiatk and deployment of new loan and lease prod@ssistent with our practices
previous years, we actively managed our loan pastto exit certain multifamily, commercial realtate and commercial loan relationst
based on their risk rating. We managed our dejpastfolio to retain higher value core deposit r@laships and reduce our cost of funds tc
lowest practicable levels. We ended 2013 with aghést-ever core deposit ratio at 78.0% of totplod#s and our lowest-ever cost of funds.

We continued to reduce our core noninterest expen2613, focusing principally on efficiencies red to staffing, facilities and our ongo
initiatives to utilize technology-based transactocessing and customer information delivery cépials.

We executed our plan to achieve a material redudgtimonperforming assets and future nonperformasgpt expenses during 2013. Our rat
non-performing assets to total assets was 1.70Beeember 31, 2013Absent currently unforeseen developments, we expeachieve ot
goal of restoring our asset quality to its longniéistorical levels by the end of 2014.

Outlook for 2014

The combined effect of low market interest rated gields and competitive forces in the Chicago omtfitan area will maintain pressure
asset yields throughout 2014. Continued deployrogakcess liquidity through loan growth within dargeted asset classes should enable
continue to expand our net interest margin graguall014. As we expect the present economic enmient in the Chicago metropolitan &
to continue for a considerable period of time, wi# gontinue to accelerate the evolution of ourdgaortfolio towards a configuration tl
permits better growth rates in multiple, independsyments with comparable risk-adjusted yields.

We expect to release new deposit-related prodocimprove noninterest income during the course of 2014, in adidjtwe may also |
successful in increasing revenues related to tnatdeposit wealth management, and commercial proerty casualty sales due to t
product capabilities and increased dedicated sapacity. Core nointerest expense is expected to continue to dedéspite increases
advertising and marketing expenses related to émehdeposit growth initiatives. Through these axtjove hope to further improve our ¢
operating earnings in 2014 to a level consistett peer institutions in our market.

Results of Operation
Net Income

Comparison of Year 2013 to 2012Ve recorded net income of $3.3 million for the yended December 31, 2018ompared to a net loss
$27.1 million for 2012 . The net loss for 2012 vpasnarily due to a $31.5 million provision for lodosses and $12.7 millioof expense fc
nonperforming asset management and operationhef otal estate owned. The $31.5 million provigmmioan losses in 20liacluded a $11.
million charge relating to the consummation of tatdk loan sales and a $5.9 million charge relatmthe transfer of loans to the held for
portfolio in preparation for a bulk sale. Our eags per share of common stock was $0.16 for the ¢leded December 31, 20p8r share
compared to loss per share of common stock of Hbi3he year ended December 31, 2012 .

Comparison of Year 2012 to 2011We recorded a net loss of $27.1 million for teewyended December 31, 201@mpared to a net loss
$48.7 million for 2011 . The net loss for 2012 vpasnarily due to a $31.5 million provision for lodosses and $12.7 millioof expense fc
nonperforming asset management and operation$ief cgal estate owned. The $31.5 millmovision for loan losses included a $11.5 mil
charge relating to the consummation of two bullnlsales and a $5.9 million charge relating to thedfer of loans to the held for sale portf
in preparation for a bulk sale. The net loss in122@&s primarily due to the recording of a goodwitbairment expense of $23.9 milligre
$22.6 million valuation allowance for deferred tassets, a $22.7 million provision for loan lossesl $10.8 millionof expense fc
nonperforming asset management and operations hafr otal estate owned. Our loss per share of comstock for the year ende
December 31, 2012 was $1.36 per share, compa&2i46 per share for the year ended December 31, 201
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Net Interest Income

Net interest income is our primary source of rexerNet interest income equals the excess of iritéresme (including discount accretion
purchased impaired loans) plus fees earned oreBttearning assets over interest expense incurrédterestbearing liabilities. The level
interest rates and the volume and mix of interastiag assets and interdstaring liabilities impact net interest income ehetst rate spread ¢
net interest margin are utilized to measure andagxjghanges in net interest income. Interest sptead is the difference between the yiel
interest-earning assets and the rate paid forestbearing liabilities that fund those assets. The intdfrest margin is expressed as
percentage of net interest income to average stt@@ning assets. The net interest margin exdbedsterest rate spread because nonintere
bearing sources of funds, principally noninterestting demand deposits and stockholders' equéy,aalpport interest-earning assets.

The accounting policies underlying the recognitidrinterest income on loans, securities, and oiiterestearning assets are included in M
1 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsitém 8 of this Form 10-K.
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Average Balance Sheets

The following table sets forth average balance tshemverage yields and costs, and certain otharnmdtion. No taxequivalent yiel
adjustments were made, as the effect of thesetatuss would not be material. Average balanceslaily average balances. Nonaccrual I«
are included in the computation of average balarimgishave been reflected in the table as loanyiogra zero yield. The yields set forth be
include the effect of deferred fees and expenssspdnts and premiums, purchase accounting adjussnteat are amortized or accrete
interest income or expense.

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Average Average Average
Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding
Balance Interest Yield/Rate Balance Interest Yield/Rate Balance Interest Yield/Rate

(Dollars in thousands)
Interest-earning Assets:

Loans $ 1,031,240 $ 47,69 462% $ 1,155,821 $ 58,71t 50 $ 1,261,700 $ 66,70¢ 5.2¢%
Securities 72,69¢ 981 1.3t 80,03( 1,48t 1.8¢ 106,06( 2,66¢ 2.51
Stock in FHLBC 6,73¢ 22 0.3¢ 10,72¢ 29 0.27 16,24: 1€ 0.1C
Other 262,42! 69€ 0.27 185,96: 497 0.27 112,06: 321 0.2¢

Total interest-earning

assets 1,373,10 49,39 3.6( 1,432,54. 60,727 4.2¢ 1,496,07 69,70¢ 4.6€
Noninterest-earning assets 78,46 86,19: 125,93
Total assets $ 145156 3 151878 $ 162200

Interest-bearing Liabilities:
Savings deposits $ 147,44. 152 01C $ 144,68: 14¢ 01C $ 135,12 211 0.1€
Money market accounts 343,82 1,16¢ 0.3¢ 346,11t 1,26 0.3¢ 350,22t 1,59¢ 0.4t
NOW accounts 347,52 37¢ 0.11 335,55: 41€ 0.12 323,29 50( 0.1t
Certificates of deposit 288,35! 1,93¢ 0.67 328,52 2,517 0.71% 398,05¢ 4,38¢ 1.1C

Total deposits 1,127,14 3,63¢ 0.32 1,154,88: 4,347 0.3¢ 1,206,70 6,69: 0.5t
Borrowings 2,96¢ 14 0.47 8,16 104 1.27 12,75¢ 222 1.7¢

Total interest-bearing

liabilities 1,130,101 3,65°% 0.32 1,163,04: 4,445 0.3¢ 1,219,46 6,91¢ 0.57

Noninterest-bearing deposit 129,75! 134,80 131,69!
Noninterest-bearing
liabilities 16,81¢ 18,03¢ 20,69¢

Total liabilities 1,276,68 1,315,88: 1,371,85
Equity 174,87 202,84! 250,15(

Total liabilities and

equity $ 1,451,56 $ 1,518,73 $ 1,622,00
Net interest income $ 45,73¢ $ 56,28( $ 62,79
Net interest rate spreéd 3.28% 3.86% 4.09%
Net interest-earning assets $ 242,99 $ 269,49 $ 276,60:
Net interest margif? 3.39% 3.9% 4.2(%

Ratio of interest-earning
assets to interest-bearing
liabilities 121.5(% 123.1% 122.6%%

Q) Net interest rate spread represents the differbatgeen the yield on average inte-earning assets and the cost of average intbessing liabilities

2) Net interes-earning assets represents total interest-earssgisless total interesearing liabilities
?3) Net interest margin represents net interest incdivided by average total inter-earning asse!
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Comparison of Year 2013 to 2012Net interest income decreased by $10.5 million ,18r7% , to $45.7 milliorfor the year ende
December 31, 2013 , from $56.3 million for the yeaded December 31, 2012 . Our net interest ratmadplecreased 58 basis point8.28%
for the year ended December 31, 2013, compar8dB&%s for 2012 . Our net interest margin decred&se80 basis points to 3.33fér the yea
ended December 31, 2013 , from 3.93% for 2012 . &arage interest-earning assets decreased $58ghnn $1.373 billionfor the yea
ended December 31, 2013, from $1.433 billion far year ended 2012 , and our average interestrgel@abilities decreased $32.9 millida
$1.130 billion for the year ended December 31, 20i8m $1.163 billion for 2012 .

Comparison of Year 2012 to 201 Net interest income decreased by $6.5 million1@A% , to $56.3 million for the year endedcember 3:
2012 , from $62.8 million for the year ended Decenfil, 2011 . Our net interest rate spread deate2@dasis points to 3.8686r the yea
ended December 31, 2012 , compared to 4.09% fot 2@ur net interest margin decreased by 27 basigpto 3.93%December 31, 20:
from 4.20% for 2011 . Our average interest-earrdsgets decreased $63.5 million to $1.433 billiantfie year ended December 31, 2012
from $1.496 billion for 2011 , and our average lagt-bearing liabilities decreased $56.4 million ®b.163 billion for the year ende
December 31, 2012 , from $1.219 billion for 2011 .

Rate/Volume Analysis

The following table presents the dollar amountlodriges in interest income and interest expengddomajor categories of our interestrning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities. Informatie provided for each category of interest-earrasgets and interelsearing liabilities wit|
respect to changes attributable to changes in wl{im®., changes in average balances multiplietheéypriorperiod average rate), and char
attributable to rate (i.e., changes in average matkiplied by priorperiod average balances). For purposes of thig,tahbnges attributable
both rate and volume that cannot be segregatediiemreallocated proportionately to the change du®iume and the change due to rate.

Years Ended December 31,

2013 vs. 2012 2012 vs. 2011
Increase (Decrease) Due to Increase (Decrease) Due to
Total Total
Increase Increase
Volume Rate (Decrease) Volume Rate (Decrease)

(Dollars in thousands)
Interest-earning assets:

Loans $ (5,99) $ (5,039 % (11,029 $ (5429 $ (2,56€) $ (7,990
Securities (12€) (37¢) (504) (579 (60€) (2,180)
Stock in FHLBC (12) 5 @) @) 2C 13
Other 201 — 201 20C (29 17€
Total interest-earning assets (5,929 (5,407 (11,339 (5,80%) (3,17¢) (8,98))
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Savings deposits 4 — 4 16 (79 (63)
Money market accounts (20 (83) (93 (18) (313) (331)
NOW accounts 9 (46) (37 18 (102) (84)
Certificates of deposit (280) (29¢) (57¢) (68¢) (1,189 (1,872
Borrowings (45) (45) (90 (67) (52) (11¢)
Total interest-bearing liabilities (322) (472) (799 (740 (1,72¢) (2,46%)
Change in net interest income $ (5,606 $ (493) $ (1054) $ (5,065 $ (1,449 $ (6,519
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Provision for Loan Losses

We establish provisions for loan losses, whichcii@rged to operations in order to maintain thenadlace for loan losses at a level we con:
necessary to absorb probable incurred credit lasstee loan portfolio. In determining the level thie allowance for loan losses, we cons
past and current loss experience, evaluationsabiestate collateral, current economic conditimadyme and type of lending, adverse situat
that may affect a borrower’ability to repay a loan and the levels of nonprning and other classified loans. The amount efdtiowance |
based on estimates and the ultimate losses mayfreemysuch estimates as more information becomasadle or events change. We asses
allowance for loan losses on a quarterly basisnaakle provisions for loan losses in order to mamthe allowance.

We recorded a recovery of loan losses of $687,00@he year ended December 31, 2013 , comparedotowasion for loan losses &31.-
million in 2012 and $22.7 million in 2011The provision for loan losses is a function o #llowance for loan loss methodology we us
determine the appropriate level of the allowangérfberent loan losses after net chaogis-have been deducted. The portion of the allms
for loan losses attributable to loans collectivelaluated for impairment decreased $2.6 million 127% , to $13.8 million @december 3:
2013 , compared to $16.3 million at December 31,220The primary reason for this decrease is thatgtloevth that occurred in our lo
portfolio in 2013 focused on loan types that haddoloss ratios based on our historical loss egpeg. Net charge-offs were $3.2 million
2013, compared to $45.2 million in 2012 and $18ilion in 2011 . Net charge-offs for 2012 includads10.8 million chargeff relating tc
compliance with the OCC's regulatory transitiondgumice concerning the elimination of special vatratillowances, as well as a $17.4 mil
charge relating to the consummation of two bulkilsales and the transfer of loans to the helddta gortfolio in preparation for a bulk st
For further analysis and information on how we datae the appropriate level for the allowance fmarl losses and analysis of credit que
see “Critical Accounting Policies” and “Risk Clafssation of Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses.”

Noninterest Income

Years Ended December 31, Change
2013 2012 2011 2013vs. 2012 2012 vs. 2011
(Dollars in thousands)

Deposit service charges and fees $ 2,008 $ 2,17¢ $ 2,661 $ 171 $ (497
Other fee income 2,25( 2,39: 2,42¢ (149 (32
Insurance commissions and annuities income 474 51C 65¢ (36) (149
Gain on sale of loans, net 1,46¢ 841 34C 62¢ 501
Loss on disposition of premises and equipment (43) (15¢) (29 11z (137)
Loan servicing fees 461 48€ 53¢ (25) (52
Amortization of servicing assets (239) (26%) (252 32 (13
Recovery (impairment) of servicing assets 65 (55) (15) 12C (40)
Earnings on bank owned life insurance 313 43¢ 62€ (12%) (18¢)
Trust income 711 733 67€ (22 57
Other 662 622 49¢ 40 12¢
Total noninterest income 813 § 7,727 $ 8144 § 411 (421)

Comparison of Year 2013 to 201Dur noninterest income increased by $411,00@t fillion for the year ended December 31, 20f8m
$7.7 million for the year ended December 31, 200@ninterest income for the year ended Decembe2@13 included a $1.5 milliogain or
sale of loans, which included recurring loan saiévdy combined with the completion of the saletb& owner-occupied and investmrnec
oneto four family residential loans that we designatesd held for sale at December 31, 2012. The coroplaif this sale represen
approximately $1.3 million of the $1.5 million gaim sale of loans that we recorded for the yeaeeérdecember 31, 2013We recorded
recovery of an impairment of servicing assets d,860 for the year ended December 31, 2013 , cadpar an impairment of $55,000
2012 . Bank-owned life insurance produced earnafgb313,000 for 2013 , a decrease of $125,0002805% , compared to a $438,0f0
2012 due to decreased annualized policy returns.

Comparison of Year 2012 to 201Dur noninterest income decreased by $421,000 @ iillion for the year ended December 31, 20fidm
$8.1 million for the year ended December 31, 20Fhctors affecting the change in noninterest incametuded a $491,000 , or 18.4%
decrease in deposit service charges and fees 2onilion , from $2.7 million for 2011 , primarilgttributable to the impact that the Dodd
Frank Act had on certain deposit service chargek faps. Bank-owned life insurance produced earnofg$438,000for the year ende
December 31, 2012 , a decrease of $188,000 , 6#380compared to a $626,000 for 2011 .
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Noninterest Expense

Years Ended December 31, Change
2013 2012 2011 2013vs. 2012 2012 vs. 2011
(Dollars in thousands)
Compensation and benefits $ 26,19 $ 25,79 $ 26,10¢ $ 404 $ (315
Office occupancy and equipment 7,547 8,06( 8,541 (513 (487)
Advertising and public relations 92t 733 89t 192 (162)
Information technology 3,091 3,06z 2,77¢ 29 287
Supplies, telephone and postage 1,69 1,84( 1,82¢ (149 11
Amortization of intangibles 60% 633 1,68¢ (28) (1,056
Nonperforming asset management 2,63¢ 5,211 4,431 (2,579 78C
Loss on sale other real estate owned 14¢ 252 15 (109 237
Valuation adjustments of other real estate owned 55(C 5,56( 3,97( (5,010 1,59(
Operations of other real estate owned 91t 1,67¢ 2,35( (764) (677)
FDIC insurance premiums 1,91 1,77¢ 1,441 134 33¢
Acquisition costs — — 1,761 — (1,767
Goodwill impairment — — 23,86: — (23,867)
Other 5,03¢ 4,99( 4,87(C 48 12
Total noninterest expense $ 51,26: $ 59,59( $ 8453t $ (8,325) $ (24,945)

Comparison of Year 2013 to 201ZFor the year ended December 31, 2013, nonintexgsinse decreased by $8.3 million , or 14.0%$5t:
million , from $59.6 million for 2012 . Compensati@nd benefits expense included $175,000 in severanpensdor the year ende
December 31, 2013 , compared to $147,000 for 201@an-related incentive compensation was $500,@0GHe year endeB®ecember 3:
2013 , compared to $187,000 for the year ended rhleee31, 2012 . Stock-based compensation for the geded December 31, 200
$933,000, an increase of $206,000 , or 28.3% pewed to $727,000 for the year ended December@®R .2This increase is a result of 2(
restricted stock grants combined with increased E®&®pense as a result of a higher stock price at ged. Noninterest expense #01:
included $4.3 million of nonperforming asset mamagat and OREO expenses, compared to $12.7 milbor2®12. Nonperforming ass
management expenses decreased $2.6 million ton$ilién for the year ended December 31, 2013 , camag to $5.2 million in 20120REC
expenses for the year ended December 31, 2013dedtla $550,000 valuation adjustment to OREO prigzettompared to &5.6 millior
valuation adjustment in 2012 . Other noninteregbemse for the year ended December 31, 2idtBided the payment of $203,000
settlements concerning two sold mortgage loanseiQibninterest expense for the year ended Deced®ihe&013also included a provision
$118,000 for the establishment of a mortgage reptation and warranty reserve for mortgage loaits 3tie amount of the representation
warranty reserve was calculated by applying publishannie Mae data relating to the percentageamislohat it required to be repurchased
to breaches of representations and warrantieetB8aimk's outstanding sold loans.

Comparison of Year 2012 to 2011For the year ended December 31, 2012 , nonintesgsnse decreased by $24.9 million , or 29,5%
$59.6 million from $84.5 million for 2011 . The dease was primarily due to the recording of a $23illon goodwill impairment expense
2011, increased nonperforming asset management and OdRig€ations expenses, and expenses recorded irea@mm with acquisition
Noninterest expense 2012 included $12.7 million of nonperforming assetnagement and OREO expenses, compared to $10i@&nfolr
2011 . OREO expenses for the year ended Decemb@032 included a $5.6 milliomaluation adjustment to OREO properties compares
$4.0 million valuation adjustment in 201The increase in valuation adjustments was dygaihto a revision of our disposition strategy
certain income-producing OREO properties from adinarydiquidation pricing model to an aggressive pricimgpdel designed to stimul:
market demand. Acquisition expenses reflected 4 8illion expense relating to the acquisition ofvideers Grove National Bank, includi
$518,000 for data processing contracts and opesdtiexpenses and $675,000 contract and severanyceepts, and a $396,000 expe
relating to our Chicago area multi-family loan phmse from Citibank.

Income Taxes

Comparison of Year 2013 to 201Zor the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2@&2ecorded no income tax expense or benefitaltie
full valuation allowance we established for defdrtax assets.
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Comparison of Year 2012 to 2011For the year ended December 31, 204 recorded no income tax expense or benefit dubadull
valuation allowance we established for deferred dagets. The recognition of the $12.4 million ineotax expensédor the year ende
December 31, 2011 resulted from a mash charge of $22.6 million for the establishmeina full valuation allowance for our deferred
assets.

Comparison of Financial Condition at December 31,@13 and December 31, 2012

Total assets decreased $27.6 million , or 1.9% $1t@54 billion at December 31, 2013 , from $1.48lion at December 31, 2012The
decrease in total assets was primarily due to eedse in cash and cash equivalents, other reé estemed, and FDIC prepaid insurance, w
was partially offset by increases in loans recdwamd securities. Net loans increased $67.6 mil@$1.098 billion at December 31, 2013
from $1.030 billion at December 31, 2012 . Net castl cash equivalents decreased by $114.8 mithidi61.0 million at December 31, 20,13
from $275.8 million at December 31, 2012 . In Debem2012 , we designated certain owner-occupiedrarebtor-owned one-tfeur family
residential loans with a carrying value of $7.5limil as “held for sale” in preparation for a bulides The bulk sale of these oneftayr family
residential loans was completed in February 2013.

Our loan portfolio consists primarily of investmearid business loans (muléimily, nonresidential real estate, commercial, starction an
land loans, and commercial leases), which togettee up 81.7% of gross loans at December 31, 2BiE3 loans receivable increasg@l7.¢
million , or 6.6% , to $1.098 billion at Decembdr, 2013 . Multi-family mortgage loans increased$#y.0 million , or 12.5% commercie
loans decreased by $7.1 million , or 11.6% ; nadesgial real estate loans decreased $1.1 million 0.4%; construction and land loe
decreased $2.0 million , or 23.2% . One-to-four ifpmesidential mortgage loans decreased $17.2iamill or 7.9%. Commercial leas
increased by $47.3 million , or 33.9% .

Our allowance for loan losses decreased by $3.8omil or 21.5% , to $14.2 million at December 2013 , from $18.0 millionat
December 31, 2012 . The decrease reflected theinechbimpact of a $687,000 recovery of loan losses%8.2 million in net chargeffs. Ne
charge-offs for 2012 included a $10.8 million cheoff relating to compliance with the OCC's regulgttransition guidance concerning
elimination of special valuation allowances.

Securities increased $33.1 million , or 42.5% $id0.9 million at December 31, 2013 , from $77.8liom at December 31, 2012 due
primarily to the purchase of $74.2 million of sdaties partially offset by the receipt of principapayments of $13.5 millioon residentic
mortgage-backed and collateralized mortgage olidigat During 2013 and 2012we also invested in FDIC insured certificatesdeposi
issued by other insured depository institutions.

Deposits decreased $29.6 million , or 2.3% , t®9%3.billion at December 31, 2013 , from $1.282iduillat December 31, 201,2due to
decrease in certificates of deposits. Core depdsi#tsings, money market, noninterbstaring demand and NOW accounts) increasec
percentage of total deposits, representing 78.0%taf deposits at December 31, 2013 , comparé&® 2% of total deposits &tecember 3:
2012.

Certificates of deposit decreased $29.6 million 9.3% , to $275.6 million at December 31, 2013fr$305.3 million at December 31, 2012
The decrease was primarily due to a lessening ptompetitive pricing position in anticipation ofiditional excess liquidity resulting frc
loan payments and bulk sales of loans.

Total stockholders’ equity was $175.6 million atd@mber 31, 2013 , compared to $172.9 million atdbdwer 31, 2012 The increase in tof
stockholders’ equity was primarily due to $3.3 roitl of net income that we recorded for the yeareenBecember 31, 2013which wa:
partially offset by the $844,000 dividends that were paid to our stockholderse Thallocated shares of common stock that our EQ@R
were reflected as a $11.3 million reduction to klmdders’ equity at December 31, 2013 , comparekilé2 million at December 31, 2012 .

Securities

Our investment policy is established by our BodrBioectors. The policy emphasizes safety of theegiment, liquidity requirements, poten
returns, cash flow targets, and consistency withiterest rate risk management strategy.

At December 31, 2013, our mortgage-backed seesrénd collateralized mortgage obligations (“CMQsf)ected in the following table we
issued by U.S. governmesponsored enterprises and agencies, Freddie MaoieFislae and Ginnie Mae, and are obligations witiehfederz
government has affirmed its commitment to supphlitsecurities reflected in the table were classifias available-for-sale Becember 3:
2013, 2012 and 2011 .

We hold FHLBC common stock to qualify for membepsim the Federal Home Loan Bank System and toigéld to borrow funds under t
FHLBC's advance program. The aggregate cost oF6li'BC common stock as of December 31, 2013 was $ilibn based on its par vall
There is no market for FHLBC common stock. Dueuo receipt of stock dividends in prior years
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and the amount of our outstanding FHLBC advances,owned more shares of FHLBC common stock than wee wequired to own

maintain our membership in the Federal Home LoankB3ystem and to be eligible to obtain advancescéss” or “voluntary’capital stock’
We redeemed $2.3 million and $7.9 million of excEsH BC stock during 2013 and 2012, respectively Décember 31, 2013 we ownad
excess shares of FHLBC common stock.

The following table sets forth the composition, atized cost and fair value of our securities.

At December 31,
2013 2012 2011

Amortized Amortized Amortized
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

(Dollars in thousands)

Securities:
Certificates of deposits $ 65,01 $ 65,01 $ 33,45¢ % 33,45¢ $ 30,44¢ % 30,44¢
Municipal securities 18C 187 35C 36¢ 51k 551
Equity mutual fund 50C 497 50C 52¢ 50C 524
SBA - guaranteed loan participation
certificates 35 35 42 42 47 47
Total 65,72t 65,72¢ 34,34¢ 34,39: 31,51¢( 31,57(

Mortgage-backed Securities:
Mortgage-backed securities -

residential 27,22¢ 28,36¢ 32,57. 34,23:; 34,69: 36,07¢
CMOs and REMICs - residential 16,85 16,81« 9,111 9,20¢ 24,83 25,18¢
Total mortgage-backed securities 44,08( 45,17¢ 41,68 43,43] 59,52¢ 61,26

$ 109,80 $ 110,907 $ 76,03. $ 77,83 $ 91,03¢ $ 92,83:

The fair values of marketable equity securitiesgererally determined by quoted prices, in actiek®ats, for each specific security. If quc
market prices are not available for a marketablétggecurity, we determine its fair value basedtmquoted price of a similar security tra
in an active market. The fair values of debt sdimgiare generally determined by matrix pricingjaliis a mathematical technique widely L
in the industry to value debt securities withouyireg exclusively on quoted prices for the spec#iecurities, but rather by relying on
securities’relationship to other benchmark quoted securifié® fair value of a security is used to determime amount of any unrealiz
losses that must be reflected in our other commisitie income and the net book value of our seeusriti

We evaluate marketable investment securities wghificant declines in fair value on a quarterlysizato determine whether they shoulc
considered other-thaemporarily impaired under current accounting gnaa which generally provides that if a marketaggeurity is in a
unrealized loss position, whether due to generaketaonditions or industry or issuspecific factors, the holder of the securities masstes
whether the impairment is other-than-temporary.
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Portfolio Maturities and Yields

The composition and maturities of the securitiedfptio and the mortgage-backed securities powfali December 31, 20E3e summarized
the following table. Maturities are based on theaficontractual payment dates, and do not refleetimpact of prepayments or e:
redemptions that may occur. Municipal securitiedds have not been adjusted to a tax-equivaleris,t@sthe amount is immaterial.

More than One Year More than Five Years
One Year or Less through Five Years through Ten Years More than Ten Years
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Amortized Average Amortized Average Amortized Average Amortized Average
Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield
(Dollars in thousands)
Securities:
Certificates of deposit $ 65,01( 0.52% $ — —% $ — —% $ — —%
Municipal securities 18C 4.6( — — — — — —
Equity mutual fund 50C 1.8t — — — — — —
SBA guaranteed loan participation
certificates — — — — 35 1.7¢ — —
65,69( 0.5t — — 35 1.7¢ — —
Mortgage-backed Securities:
Pass-through securities:
Fannie Mae — — 89¢ 5.6¢ 13 2.3C 11,91¢ 2.9z
Freddie Mac — — 10& 1.6¢ 12¢ 2.2¢ 1,571 3.3¢
Ginnie Mae — — — — 104 1.65 12,49: 2.57
CMOs and REMICs — — — — 251 1.74 16,60( 0.6¢
— — 1,004 5.2¢ 497 1.87 42,57¢ 1.9¢
Total securities $ 65,69( 0.55% $ 1,00¢4 5.2¢% $ 532 1.8¢% $ 42,57¢ 1.9€%
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Loan Portfolio

We originate multfamily mortgage loans, nonresidential real estasng, commercial loans, commercial leases, andtroatisn and lan
loans. In addition, we originate oneftmir family residential mortgage loans and consulo&ns, and purchase and sell loan participatitoms
time-to-time. Our principal loan products are dissed in Note 4 of the "Notes to Consolidated Firzr&tatements” in Item 8 of this Form 10.
K.

The following table sets forth the composition af toan portfolio, excluding loans held-for-salg,thpe of loan.

At December 31,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent

(Dollars in thousands)
One-to-four family

residential $ 201,38: 18.12% $ 218,59 20.8t% $ 272,03 21.6% $ 256,30( 23.9% $ 289,62 23.4%
Multi-family mortgage 396,05¢ 35.6¢ 352,01¢ 33.6( 423,61t 33.6i 296,91¢ 27.71 329,22 26.6¢
Nonresidential real estate 263,56 23.7: 264,67: 25.2¢ 311,64: 24.71 281,98 26.31 316,60 25.62
Construction and land 6,57( 0.5¢ 8,55 0.82 19,85: 1.5¢ 18,39¢ 1.72 32,57 2.64
Commercial loans 54,25t 4.8¢ 61,38t¢ 5.8¢ 93,93: 7.4¢€ 64,67¢ 6.04 88,067 7.1%
Commercial leases 187,11: 16.8¢ 139,78: 13.3¢ 134,99( 10.7¢ 151,10° 14.1C 176,82: 14.31
Consumer 2,315 0.21 2,74% 0.2¢ 2,147 0.17 2,182 0.2C 2,53¢ 0.21

1,111,26 100.0%  1,047,75 100.0% 1,258,220 100.0%  1,071,56! 100.0%  1,235,46 100.0(%
Net deferred loan - - - - -

origination costs 97( 74¢ 90¢ 1,37 1,701

Allowance for loan losses (14,159 (18,03Y) (31,72¢) (22,180 (18,627)
Total loans, net $1,098,07 $1,030,46! $1,227,39: $ 1,050,76! $ 1,218,541

Loan Portfolio Maturities

The following table summarizes the scheduled remasof our loan portfolio at December 31, 20I3emand loans, loans having no st
repayment schedule or maturity and overdraft I@aeseported as being due in one year or less.

One Year
Within Through Beyond
One Year Five Years Five Years Total

(Dollars in thousands)
Scheduled Repayments of Loans:

One-to-four family residential $ 28,197 $ 65,45. $ 107,73. $ 201,38:
Multi-family mortgage 34,88¢ 130,44. 230,72 396,05¢
Nonresidential real estate 96,19¢ 151,68t 15,68¢ 263,56
Construction and land 5,44¢ 1,121 — 6,57(
Commercial loans and leases 123,75t 114,21t 3,39t 241,36
Consumer 582 1,274 461 2,31i
$ 289,06¢ % 464,19. $ 358,00 % 1,111,26.
Total
Loans Maturing After One Year:

Predetermined (fixed) interest rates $ 601,26¢
Adjustable interest rates 220,92!
$ 822,19:
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Nonperforming Loans and Assets

We review loans on a regular basis, and generddlgepoans on nonaccrual status when either pahcipinterest is 90 days or more past
In addition, the Company places loans on nonaccastalis when we do not expect to receive full paynod interest or principal. Intere
accrued and unpaid at the time a loan is placedomaccrual status is reversed from interest incdnterest payments received on nonact
loans are recognized in accordance with our sicgmifi accounting policies. Once a loan is placech@amaccrual status, the borrower n
generally demonstrate at least six months of payrperformance before the loan is eligible to rettoraccrual status. We may have Ic
classified as 90 days or more delinquent andastikuing. Generally, we do not utilize this catggof loan classification unless: (1) the loa
repaid in full shortly after the period end dat®) the loan is well secured and there are no a&sbertpending legal barriers to its collectior
(3) the borrower has remitted all scheduled paymant is otherwise in substantial compliance withterms of the loan, but the processir
loan payments actually received or the renewaheflban has not occurred for administrative reasAh®ecember 31, 2013, we had doar
totaling $228,000 in this category.

We typically obtain new thirdsarty appraisals or collateral valuations when Vaeg a loan on nonaccrual status, conduct impairtesting o
complete a TDR unless the existing valuation infation for the collateral is sufficiently current tmmply with the requirements of «
Appraisal and Collateral Valuation Policy (“ACV ko”). We also obtain new thirgearty appraisals or collateral valuations whenjtiuécial
foreclosure process concludes with respect to estte collateral, and when we otherwise acquireahor constructive title to real est
collateral. In addition to thirgsarty appraisals, we use updated valuation infdondiased on Multiple Listing Service data, brokpimions o
value, actual sales prices of similar assets spldsband approved sales prices in response tosdffepurchase similar assets owned by
provide interim valuation information for consolidd financial statement and management purposesACJ Policy establishes the maxim
useful life of a real estate appraisal at 18 manBecause appraisals and updated valuations uliisgerical or “ask—sidetata in reachir
valuation conclusions, the appraised or updatedi¥iain may or may not reflect the actual salesepiti@t we will receive at the time of sale.

Real estate appraisals may include up to threeoappes to value: the sales comparison approacimebme approach (for inconproducing
property) and the cost approach. Not all appraistilize all three approaches. Depending on theneadf the collateral and market conditic
we may emphasize one approach over another inndieieg the fair value of real estate collateral.pfgisals may also contain differ
estimates of value based on the level of occupan@fanned future improvements. “As-igéluations represent an estimate of value bas
current market conditions with no changes to the aiscondition of the real estate collateral. “Aabdlized” or “as-completed¥aluation:
assume the real estate collateral will be impraeed stated standard or achieve its highest andulsesin terms of occupancy. “As-stabilized
or “as-completed” valuations may be subject toesent value adjustment for market conditions ostiteedule of improvements.

As part of the asset classification process, weldgvan exit strategy for real estate collateraDREO by assessing overall market conditi
the current use and condition of the asset, ankiigisest and best use. For most incopreducing real estate, we believe that investohge
most highly a stable income stream from the assgtsequently, we perform a comparative evaluatiodetermine whether conducting a :
on an “as—is”, “as—stabilized” or “as—improved” tsas most likely to produce the highest net rediiz value. If we determine that the “as
stabilized” or “as—improvedbasis is appropriate, we then complete the negesaarovements or tenant stabilization tasks, whit applicabl
time value discount and improvement expenses imcated into our estimates of the expected costsetb As of December 31, 2013

substantially all impaired real estate loan cofi@tand OREO were valued on an “as—is basis.”

Estimates of the net realizable value of real estatlateral also include a deduction for the efg@costs to sell the collateral or such c
deductions from the cash flows resulting from tpheration and liquidation of the asset as are apjatep For most real estate collateral sul
to the judicial foreclosure process, we apply &% deduction to the value of the asset to deteritiaeexpected costs to sell the asset.
estimate includes one year of real estate taxéss sammissions and miscellaneous repair and ¢Jasists. If we receive a purchase offer
requires unbudgeted repairs, or if the expectediusn period for the asset exceeds one year,her include, on a case-logse basis, tl
costs of the additional real estate taxes and repad any other material holding costs in the etqzbcosts to sell the collateral. For OREO
only apply a 7.0% deduction to determine the exgabcbsts to sell, as expenses for real estate saxkrsepairs are expensed when incurred.
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Nonperforming Assets Summary

The following table below sets forth the amountd aategories of our nonperforming loans and nopetihg assets.

At December 31,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

(Dollars in thousands)

Nonaccrual loans

One-to-four family residential $ 4641 % 729¢ % 10,62: $ 10,05¢ $ 11,45:
Multi-family mortgage 7,09¢ 3,517 14,80° 13,22¢ 13,96:
Nonresidential real estate 4,21¢ 8,98t 29,927 12,42¢ 11,07
Construction and land 382 2,21( 3,24¢ 6,13¢ 8,841
Commercial 77 25€ 2,92( 3,76¢ 4,16(
Commercial leases — — 22 72 —
Consumer 12 — 3 3 —

16,42« 22,267 61,547 45,69¢ 49,48¢
Loans Past Due Over 90 Days, still accruing 22¢ 32¢ 35( 81¢ 14¢
Loans held-for-sale — 1,752 — — —

Other real estate owned

One-to-four family residential 901 1,76( 5,32¢ 3,01t 601
Multi-family mortgage 1,921 72C 3,65t 2,48¢ 97¢
Nonresidential real estate 1,181 3,504 4,90t 7,37¢ 1,41¢€
Land 27¢ 1,322 2,23 1,74¢ 1,091
4,27¢ 7,307 16,12¢ 14,62: 4,08¢
Nonperforming assets (excluding purchased impdaads and
purchased other real estate owned) 20,93( 31,65¢ 78,02: 61,13t 53,72:
Purchased impaired loans
One-to-four family residential 10C 38C 3,941 — —
Multi-family mortgage — — 1,41¢ — —
Nonresidential real estate 1,632 2,56¢ 3,37¢ — —
Construction and land — 1,021 4,78¢ — —
Commercial 23 20 1,07¢ — —
1,75¢ 3,98¢ 14,60( — —
Purchased other real estate owned
One-to-four family residential 17¢€ 32C 327 — —
Nonresidential real estate — 462 2,54¢ — —
Land 1,852 2,26¢ 3,48 — —
2,02¢ 3,051 6,35¢ — —
Purchased impaired loans and other real estatecbwne 3,78¢ 7,04C 20,95¢ — —
Total nonperforming assets $ 24,71 3 38,698 $ 98,977 % 61,138 $ 53,72.
Ratios
Nonperforming loans to total loans 1.6€% 2.7(% 6.08% 4.34% 4.02%
Nonperforming loans to total loafts 1.5C 2.3z 4,92 4,32 4,02
Nonperforming assets to total assets 1.7¢ 2.61 6.3 3.9¢ 3.45
Nonperforming assets to total ass8ts 1.44 2.14 4,9¢ 3.9¢ 3.4¢
Q) These asset quality ratios exclude purchaspdired loans and purchased other real estate oresalling from the Downers Grove National Bank
acquisition.
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Nonperforming Assets

Nonperforming assets decreased by $14.0 millio20ib3, due in substantial part to the execution of tihenfany's plan to materially red
future nonperforming asset expenses and acceldratesturn to the Company's historical asset quéditels. Nonperforming assets tote
$24.7 million at December 31, 2013 and $38.7 millet December 31, 2012The decrease in nonperforming assets for the grde:
December 31, 2013 reflected the disposition of $8ildon in OREO, the disposition of the $1.7 nuifi of one-tcfour family mortgage loai
that we designated as held for sale in the fourthrtgr of 2012, and numerous other nonperformirsgtagesolutions. These actions v
partially offset by the placement of $17.9 milliohloans on nonaccrual status during the year efdmgmber 31, 2013The number of loal
placed on nonaccrual status in 2013 was impacteddscision we made in the fourth quarter of 2@lake affirmative steps to accelerate
resolution of certain performing classified and periorming multifamily and nonresidential real estate loans. Spadij, we determined th
for certain performing classified and nonperforminglti-family and nonresidential real estate loathg most coséffective and expeditiol
resolution method was to decline to renew the lagom maturity, or to utilize other remedies pr@ddy our loan documents to accelerat:
maturity date of the loans, coupled with an atteniptappropriate cases, to negotiate a final remoluin the form of a deed-itieu ol
foreclosure. Of the $17.9 million in loans placedrmnaccrual in 2013, $9.0 million related to affative expedited resolution cases. Of
amount, $7.4 million involved mulfamily loans to ten unaffiliated borrowers. We au&rsuing various actions to attempt to obtain it
these multi-family properties so that they can lzekated for sale.

Other Real Estate Owned
Real estate that is acquired through foreclosuiedred in lieu of foreclosure is classified as ORItil it is sold. When real estate is acqu
through foreclosure or by deed in lieu of foreclesdt is recorded at its fair value, less thereated costs of disposal. If the fair value of

property is less than the loan balance, the diffeggés charged against the allowance for loan fosse

The following represents the rollfoward of OREO dhed composition of OREO properties.

At and For the Years Ended December

31,
2013 2012
(Dollars in thousands)
Beginning balance $ 10,35¢ $ 22,48(
New foreclosed properties 5,512 7,03t
Valuation adjustments (57¢) (5,750
Sales (8,98¢) (13,407
Ending balance $ 6,306 $ 10,35¢
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December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Valuation Net OREO Valuation Net OREO
Balance Allowance Balance Balance Allowance Balance

(Dollars in thousands)

One-to—four family residential $ 1,011 $ (110 $ 901 $ 1,827 $ 67) $ 1,76(
Multi-family mortgage 1,921 — 1,921 72C — 72C
Nonresidential real estate 1,45¢ (274 1,181 3,88: (379 3,50¢
Land 41¢€ (147) 27¢ 1,557 (239 1,32¢

4,80: (525) 4,27¢ 7,981 (680C) 7,307

Acquired other real estate owned:

One—to—four family residential 18C (4) 17¢€ 32C — 32C
Nonresidential real estate — — — 56& (209 462
Land 2,22t (379 1,85z 2,66¢ (397) 2,26¢
2,40¢ (377) 2,02¢ 3,551 (500 3,051

Total other real estate owned $ 7,20¢ $ (902) $ 6,30¢ $ 1153¢ $ (1,18() $ 10,35¢

Activity in the valuation allowance:

At and For the Years Ended December

31,
2013 2012
(Dollars in thousands)
Beginning of year $ 1,18 $ =
Additions charged to expense 55C 1,18(
Recoveries credited to expense — —
Reductions from sales of other real estate owned (82¢) —
Direct write downs — —
End of year $ 902 % 1,18(

Loan Extensions and Modifications

Maturing loans are subject to our standard loarenmdting policies and practices. Due to the needlitain updated borrower and guara
financial information, collateral information or fwepare revised loan documentations, loans irptheess of renewal may appear as pas
because the information needed to underwrite awealnef the loan is not available to us prior to thaturity date of the loan. At times, short
term administrative extensions, which are typica§ days in duration, are granted to facilitate pgprounderwriting. In general, lo
modifications are subject to a risk-adjusted pgcamalysis.

When appropriate, we evaluate loan extensions adifioations in accordance with ASC 340 and related federal regulatory guide
concerning TDRs and the FFIEC workout guidanceetemine the required treatment for nonaccrualistahd risk classification purposes
general, if we grant a loan modification or extensihat involves either the absence of principapdization (other than for revolving lines
credit which are customarily granted on interasly terms), or if we grant a material extensioranfexisting loan amortization period in ex
of our underwriting standards, the loan will beggld on nonaccrual status and impairment testinglwded to determine whether a spe
valuation allowance or loss classification / chaoffeis required. If the loan is well secured byatyundance of collateral and the collectak
of both interest and principal is probable, thenlogay remain on accrual status, but it will be siféesd as a TDR due to the concession ma
the loan principal amortization payment componénkan in full compliance with the payment requiremts specified in a loan modificat
will not be considered as past due, but may notethebe placed on nonaccrual status or be clatsiBea TDR, as appropriate under
circumstances.

In accordance with the FFIEC workout guidance,@oenpany will restructure a note into two separatees (A/B structure), charging off 1
entire B portion of the note. The A note is struetlwith appropriate loan-to-value and cash flowerage ratios
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that provide for a high likelihood of repayment.eTA note is classified as a npesforming note until the borrower has displayeddisiorica
payment performance for a reasonable time pri@nth subsequent to the restructuring. A period efesned repayment for at least six mo
generally is required to return the note to accstaus provided that management has determinethéh@erformance is reasonably expect
continue. The A note will be classified as a restrced note (either performing or nonperformingptigh the calendar year of the restructc
that the historical payment performance has beebkshed.

Troubled Debt Restructurings
The Company had $3.3 million of TDRs at December2®13 , compared to $11.2 million at December281,2 , with $53,000 an$i318,00!
in specific valuation allowances allocated to thtéz@ns at December 31, 2013 and 2QX2spectively. The Company had no outstar

commitments to borrowers whose loans are classifs&etiDRs.

The following table presents TDRs by class.

At December 31,

2013 2012
(Dollars in thousands)

One-to-four family residential real estate $ 2,09 $ 2,80z
Multi-family mortgage 51¢ 1,201
Nonresidential real estate — 5,18¢
Accrual troubled debt restructured loans 2,611 9,192
One-to-four family residential real estate 34z 767
Multi-family mortgage 384 93¢
Nonresidential real estate — 27C
Nonaccrual troubled debt restructured loans 72€ 1,97¢
Total troubled debt restructured loans $ 3331 % 11,16%

Risk Classification of Loans

Our policies, consistent with regulatory guidelinpsovide for the classification of loans and othssets that are considered to be of I
quality as substandard, doubtful, or loss assedesignated as special mention.

A substandard asset is inadequately protectedéygufrent sound worth and paying capacity of thegobor of the collateral pledged, if al
Assets so classified must have a vasfined weakness, or weaknesses, that jeopardizdgytiidation of the debt. They are characterizedha
distinct possibility that the Bank will sustain sertoss if the deficiencies are not corrected. Tibk rating guidance published by the C
clarifies that a loan with a wetlefined weakness does not have to present a plitpabidefault for the loan to be rated substanidand the
an individual loars loss potential does not have to be distinct lierlban to be rated substandard. An asset classifiedoubtful has all t
weaknesses inherent in one classified as substamdtr the added characteristic that the weaknessd® collection or liquidation in full, «
the basis of currently existing facts, conditioasd values, highly questionable and improbablee#ssslassified as loss are those consic
uncollectible and of such little value that theintinuance as assets is not warranted; such balamweepromptly chargeaff as required k
applicable federal regulations. A special mentissea has potential weaknesses that deserve manatyegiese attention. If left uncorrect
these potential weaknesses may result in deteinaraf the repayment prospects for the asset dheninstitutions credit position at sor
future date. Special mention assets are not adyetsssified and do not expose an institutionufiisient risk to warrant adverse classificati

Based on a review of our assets at December 313 2@lassified loans consisted of $23.4 millionfpening substandard loans afd8.1
million of nonperforming loans. As of December 2013 , we had $15.8 million of assets designatespasial mention.

Allowance for Loan Losses
We establish provisions for loan losses, whichciugrged to operations in order to maintain thenadloce for loan losses at a level we con:
necessary to absorb probable incurred credit lasstt® loan portfolio. In determining the level thie allowance for loan losses, we cons

past and current loss experience, trends in nonathryans, evaluations of real estate collatetarent economic conditions, volume and 1
of lending, adverse situations that may affect mdweer’s ability to repay a loan and the
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levels of nonperforming and other classified loaftsee amount of the allowance is based on estinzatdghe ultimate losses may vary from
estimates as more information becomes availabéw@nts change.

We provide for loan losses based on the allowanethod. Accordingly, all loan losses are chargethéorelated allowance and all recove
are credited to it. Additions to the allowance li@an losses are provided by charges to income basegrious factors that, in our judgmi
deserve current recognition in estimating probaiderred credit losses. We review the loan porfaih an ongoing basis and make provis
for loan losses on a quarterly basis to maintagnalfowance for loan losses in accordance with @aiiog principles generally accepted in
United States of America. The allowance for loass&s consists of two components:

» specific allowances established for any impaneidential non-owner occupied mortgage, mfaltirily mortgage, nonresidential r
estate, construction and land, commercial, and oemiad lease loans for which the recorded investnierthe loan exceeds t
measured value of the loan; and

» general allowances for loan losses for each loasschased on historical loan loss experience; diubtanents to historical lo
experience (general allowances), maintained to rcomeertainties that affect our estimate of probahturred credit losses for ei
loan class.

The adjustments to historical loss experience ased on our evaluation of several factors, inclgdevels of, and trends in, past due
classified loans; levels of, and trends in, chastje-and recoveries; trends in volume and termafs, including any credit concentration
the loan portfolio; experience, ability, and depfhlending management and other relevant staff; rmattbnal and local economic trends
conditions.

We evaluate the allowance for loan losses based thm combined total of the specific and generahpanents. Generally, when the |
portfolio increases, absent other factors, thewallice for loan loss methodology results in a higtheliar amount of estimated proba
incurred credit losses than would be the case witlioe increase. Conversely, when the loan poctfdecreases, absent other factors
allowance for loan loss methodology generally rissil a lower dollar amount of estimated probabksés than would be the case withou
decrease.

We review our loan portfolio on an ongoing basisiatermine whether any loans require classificatind impairment testing in accorda
with applicable regulations and accounting priregplWhen we classify loans as either substandadduatful and in certain other cases,
review the collateral and future cash flow projees to determine if a specific reserve is necesSdrg allowance for loan losses repres
amounts that have been established to recognimer@ttcredit losses in the loan portfolio that laoéh probable and reasonably estimable ¢
date of the consolidated financial statements. Whelassify problem loans as loss, we chargetaffismounts.

We refined the calculation of the general compormdrihe allowance for loan losses during the fowytfarter of 2010 in response to the
FASB disclosure requirement that each loan podfolitegory must be segmented into specific loassel (FASB Standards Update 2@T0-
(ASU 210-20), “Receivables (Topic 310): Disclosuagsut the Credit Quality of Financing Receivalaad the Allowance for Credit Lossgs”
Loan class segmentation tables are presented ia Nof the "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statgsiein Item 8 of this Form 18- To
maintain consistency, the loan class segmentatias also applied within the Ifisarter loss history that we use to calculate taretp
component of the allowance for loan losses, intteiisk factor weightings were adjusted based onemaduation of their relevance to the r
loan classes, and duplicative historical loss facteere eliminated from the loan class segmentation

While we use the best information available to mekaluations, future adjustments to the allowaneg become necessary if conditions d
substantially from the information that we usedriaking the evaluations. Our determinations as ¢origk classification of our loans and
amount of our allowance for loan losses are sulifeceview by our regulatory agencies, which caguiee that we establish additional |
allowances.
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Net Charge-offs and Recoveries

The following table sets forth activity in our allance for loan losses.

At or For the Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(Dollars in thousands)
Balance at beginning of year $ 18,03t $ 31,72¢ % 22,18 % 18,62: $ 14,74¢
Charge-offs
One-to-four family residential (1,505 (12,36¢€) (5,31¢€) (2,2972) (467)
Multi-family mortgage (1,839 (7,207%) (3,519 (2,385 (297)
Nonresidential real estate (577) (18,167 (69¢) (2,897) (1,519
Construction and land (943 (4,317 (2,519 (525) (2,262)
Commercial loans (42%) (4,960 (1,399 (1,179 (46%)
Commercial leases — (127 (72 — (22
Consumer (55) (203%) (93 (16) (42)
(5,337) (47,23) (13,60¢€) (9,289 (5,06%)
Recoveries
One-to-four family residential 447 238 51 69 82
Multi-family mortgage 23€ 53¢ 12t 3 —
Nonresidential real estate 51¢ 32¢ 73 633 36
Construction and land 463 25C — 58 —
Commercial loans 47C 62€ 17z 1 3
Commercial leases — — — — 6
Consumer 8 42 7 — 3
2,14: 2,01¢ 42¢ 764 13C
Net charge-offs (3,199 (45,219 (13,179 (8,52%) (4,935
Provision for (recovery of) loan losses (687) 31,52: 22,72: 12,08 8,811
Balance at end of year $ 14,15¢  $ 18,03t $ 31,72¢ $ 22,18 % 18,62:
Ratios
Net charge-offs to average loans outstanding 0.31% 3.91% 1.04% 0.75% 0.3%%
Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming loans 76.8¢ 63.6¢ 41.4] 47.6¢ 37.52
Allowance for loan losses to total loans 1.27 1.72 2.52 2.07 1.51

Our allowance for loan losses decreased $3.9 millior 21.5% , in 2013 primarily due to three factors: the growth in ¢daen portfolio wa
focused on loan types with lower loss ratios basedur historical loss experience, the historicanl loss factors improved as the lo
incurred in earlier periods aged and, thereforeewezighted less in the calculation, and the portibthe allowance for loan losses attributi
to loans individually evaluated for impairment deased $1.3 million , or 77.9% , to $375,000 at Demer 31, 2013 , compared $ad.7 millior
at December 31, 2012 .

Although our loan portfolio increased by $63.5 ruoiil for the year ended December 31, 2013e combined impact of these three factors
sufficient to fully fund the allowance to reflettetincrease in the loan portfolio.

Net charg-offs were $3.2 million and $45.2 million , respgety, for the years ended December 31, 2013 ari@ 2@&nd $13.2 milliotior the
year endecDecember 31, 2011 . The $31.5 million provision foan losses for 201icluded a $11.5 million charge relating to
consummation of two bulk loan sales and a $5.9aniltharge relating to the transfer of loans tohbkl for sale portfolio in preparation fc
bulk sale.

A loan balance is classified as a loss and chaofiedhen it is confirmed that there is no readipparent source of repayment for the amou
the loan that is classified as loss. Confirmatian occur upon the receipt of updated third-parpraisal
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valuation information indicating that there is avlprobability of repayment upon sale of the collatethe final disposition of collateral whi
the net proceeds are insufficient to pay the lcaarxe in full, our failure to obtain possessiort@ftain consumepan collateral within certa
time limits specified by applicable federal regigdas, the conclusion of legal proceedings wherebihieowers obligation to repay is lega
discharged (such as a federal Chapter 7 bankryptmeeding), or when it appears that further foro@lection procedures are not likely
result in net proceeds in excess of the costslteato

Allocation of Allowance for Loan Losses
The following table sets forth our allowance foamolosses allocated by loan category. The allow#mrclan losses allocated to each cate

is not necessarily indicative of future losses iy garticular category and does not restrict the afsthe allowance to absorb losses in ¢
categories.

At December 31,
2013 2012 2011
Percent Percent Percent
of Loans of Loans of Loans
in Each in Each in Each
Allowance Loan Category Allowance Loan Category Allowance Loan Category
for Loan Balances by to Total for Loan Balances by to Total for Loan Balances by to Total
Losses Category Loans Losses Category Loans Losses Category Loans
(Dollars in thousands)
One-to-four family
residential $ 384¢ $ 201,38: 18.12% $ 4,72t $ 218,59¢ 20.8% $ 6,10: $ 272,03: 21.62%
Multi-family
mortgage 4,44¢ 396,05¢ 35.6¢4 4,58( 352,01¢ 33.6( 6,08 423,61! 33.6i
Nonresidential real
estate 3,73¢ 263,56 23.7:2 5,54t 264,67: 25.2¢ 13,75¢ 311,64: 24.71
Construction and
land 39z 6,57( 0.5¢ 1,031 8,552 0.8z 1,68¢ 19,85: 1.5¢
Commercial loans 731 54,25¢ 4.8¢ 1,32¢ 61,38¢ 5.8€ 3,53¢ 93,93 7.4¢€
Commercial leases 94¢€ 187,11: 16.8¢ 66€ 139,78: 13.3¢ 504 134,99( 10.7:
Consumer 57 2,31 0.21 162 2,74¢ 0.2¢€ 58 2,147 0.17
$ 14,15« $ 1,111,26 100.0% $ 18,038 $ 1,047,75 100.0%0 $ 31,72¢ $ 1,258,20 100.0%
At December 31,
2010 2009
Percent of Percent of
Loans in Each Loans in Each
Allowance for Loan Balances Category to Allowance for Loan Balances Category to
Loan Losses by Category Total Loans Loan Losses by Category Total Loans
(Dollars in thousands)
One-to-four family
residential $ 3,55¢ $ 256,30( 23.9% $ 3,33: $ 289,62: 23.4%
Multi-family mortgage 7,03z 296,91¢ 27.71 3,597 329,22 26.6¢
Nonresidential real
estate 5,71¢ 281,98’ 26.31 5,69¢ 316,60° 25.62
Construction and land 2,461 18,39¢ 1.7z 1,861 32,57% 2.64
Commercial loans 2,87¢ 64,67¢ 6.04 2,52( 88,067 7.1%
Commercial leases 51¢ 151,10° 14.1C 1,591 176,82: 14.31
Consumer 20 2,182 0.2C 24 2,53¢ 0.21
$ 22,18( $ 1,071,56! 100.000 $ 18,62: $ 1,235,46: 100.0(%
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Sources of Funds

Deposits.At December 31, 2013 , our deposits totaled $113#8®n . Interest-bearing deposits totaled $1.126on and nonintereshearing

demand deposits totaled $126.7 million .

NOW, sgsiand money market accounts totaled $850.4 millidioninteresbearing demar

deposits at December 31, 2013 included $3.1 miliiointernal checking accounts, such as account8é&mk cashies checks and mon
orders. At December 31, 2013 , we had $275.6 milibcertificates of deposit outstanding, of wh&203.4 millionhad maturities of one ye
or less. Although we have a significant portioroaf deposits in shorteerm certificates of deposit, we believe, basedhigtorical experienc
and our current pricing strategy, that we will neta significant portion of these accounts uponurigt

The following table sets forth the distributiontofal deposit accounts, by account type.

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average Average Average Average
Balance Percent Rate Balance Percent Rate Balance Percent Rate
(Dollars in thousands)
Noninterest-bearing demand:
Retail $ 39,16 3.11% —% $ 39,17: 3.0%% —% $ 39,31 2.9% —%
Commercial 90,59¢ 7.21 — 95,63t 7.41 — 92,37¢ 6.9C —
Total noninterest-bearing
demand 129,75¢ 10.32 — 134,80 10.4¢ — 131,69! 9.84 —
Savings deposits 147,44 11.7: 0.1C 144,68: 11.22 0.1C 135,12 10.1(C 0.1¢
Money market accounts 343,82 27.3¢ 0.3¢4 346,11¢ 26.8¢ 0.3¢ 350,22¢ 26.1% 0.4t
Interest-bearing NOW
accounts 347,52¢ 27.65 0.11 335,55! 26.0z 0.1z 323,29! 24.1°F 0.1%
Certificates of deposit 288,35 22.9¢ 0.67 328,52¢ 25.47 0.77 398,05¢ 29.7¢ 1.1C
$ 1,256,90: 100.0% $ 1,289,69 100.0%6 $ 1,338,40. 100.00%
The following table sets forth certificates of dsjpdoy time remaining until maturity at December 3013 :
Maturity
3 Months or Over 3t0 6 Over 6 to 12 Over 12
Less Months Months Months Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Certificates of deposit less than $100,00'$ 41,89 $ 38,28 $ 57,15 $ 47,76¢ $ 185,09¢
Certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more 22,03¢ 17,28 26,76" 24,43: 90,52
$ 63,93( $ 55,56¢ $ 83,92( $ 72,20 $ 275,62.

Total certificates of deposit

Borrowings. Our borrowings consist primarily of Federal Homeahdank advances and repurchase agreements. Twifng table sets for

information concerning balances and interest ratesur borrowings.

Balance at end of year

Average balance during year

Maximum outstanding at any month end
Weighted average interest rate at end of year
Average interest rate during year
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At or For the Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in thousands)
$ 3,05¢ $ 5,567 $ 9,327
2,96¢ 8,16: 12,75¢
3,39¢ 10,08: 15,55(
0.25% 1.72% 1.1%
0.47% 1.21% 1.748%
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At December 31, 2013 , we had the capacity to woan additional $251.4 millionnder our credit facilities with the FHLBC. Furtheore, w
had unpledged securities that could be used toostippexcess of $37.3 million of additional FHLB®rrowings.

At December 31, 2013 , we had a line of credit wfith Federal Reserve Bank of Chicago. At DecembgefPB13, there were no outstand
federal funds borrowings and there was no outstandalance on the line of credit.

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The Companys consolidated financial statements and the relatéels have been prepared in accordance with G&MAP generally require
the measurement of financial position and operatgsglts in terms of historical dollars without eafering changes in the relative purcha
power of money over time due to inflation. The impaf inflation, if any, is reflected in the inciesd cost of our operations. Unlike indus
companies, our assets and liabilities are primaribnetary in nature. As a result, changes in mairketest rates have a greater impac
performance than the effects of inflation.

Management of Interest Rate Risk

Qualitative AnalysisA significant form of market risk is interest raigk. Interest rate risk results from timing di#aces in the maturity
repricing of our assets, liabilities and off balarsheet contractsi.g., forward loan commitments), the effect of loan psepants and depo
withdrawals, the difference in the behavior of lexgdand funding rates arising from the use of défe indices and “yield curve rislkdrising
from changing rate relationships across the spectofi maturities for constant or variable creditkrimvestments. In addition to direc
affecting net interest income, changes in markera@st rates can also affect the amount of new toaginations, the ability of borrowers
repay variable rate loans, the volume of loan pyepnts and refinancings, the carrying value of gtweent securities classified as available
for-sale and the flow and mix of deposits.

The general objective of our interest rate risk aggment is to determine the appropriate level Sk given our business strategy and
manage that risk in a manner that is consistertt witr policy to reduce, to the extent possible, ékposure of our net interest incomi
changes in market interest rates. Our Asset/LigbiMlanagement Committee (“ALCO”)which consists of certain members of se
management, evaluates the interest rate risk inhénecertain assets and liabilities, our operatemyironment and capital and liquic
requirements, and modifies our lending, investimyl aleposit gathering strategies accordingly. Thar8oof Directors’ Asset/Liability
Management Committee then reviews the ALE@ttivities and strategies, the effect of thosategies on our net interest margin, anc
effect that changes in market interest rates whaige on the economic value of our loan and seeangortfolios as well as the intrinsic valu
our deposits and borrowings, and reports to tHeBiird of Directors.

We actively evaluate interest rate risk in conrmattvith our lending, investing and deposit actestiIn an effort to better manage intenegt¢-
risk, we have demphasized the origination of residential mortglages, and have increased our emphasis on thenatign of nonresidenti
real estate loans, mulamily mortgage loans, commercial loans and comiakleases. In addition, depending on market irsterates and o
capital and liquidity position, we generally selll @ a portion of our longer-term, fixed-rate msntial loans, usually on a servicingtainet
basis. Further, we primarily invest in shorter-dioma securities, which generally have lower yieltsmpared to longeierm investment
Shortening the average maturity of our intereshiegrassets by increasing our investments in shteten loans and securities, as well as |
with variable rates of interest, helps to bettetainahe maturities and interest rates of our asseddiabilities, thereby reducing the exposut
our net interest income to changes in market isteates. Finally, we have classified all of ourastment portfolio as available-fegle so as
provide flexibility in liquidity management.

We utilize a combination of analyses to monitor Baenk's exposure to changes in interest rates. The edonatue of equity analysis is
model that estimates the change in net portfolioev@'NPV") over a range of interest rate scenarios. NPV igdtheounted present value
expected cash flows from assets, liabilities anfibafance sheet contracts. In calculating changeBlRV, we assume estimated |
prepayment rates, reinvestment rates and deposdydates that seem most likely based on histoggpkerience during prior interest t
changes.

Our net interest income analysis utilizes the digdaved from the dynamic GAP analysis, describelbeand applies several additio
elements, including actual interest rate indiced emargins, contractual limitations such as interat floors and caps and the U.S. Tree
yield curve as of the balance sheet date. In anfditive apply consistent parallel yield curve shiftsboth directions) to determine poss
changes in net interest income if the theoreti@bycurve shifts occurred instantaneously. Netrigsgt income analysis also adjusts the dyn
GAP repricing analysis based on changes in prepalyrates resulting from the parallel yield curvétsh

Our dynamic GAP analysis determines the relatidarit® between the repricing of assets and liadslibver multiple periods of time (rang
from overnight to five years). Dynamic GAP analyisisludes expected cash flows from loans and mgegzcked
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securities, applying prepayment rates based omlifferential between the current interest rate #rel market interest rate for each loan
security type. This analysis identifies mismatcireshe timing of asset and liability repricing bdbes not necessarily provide an acct
indicator of interest rate risk because it omits fdoctors incorporated into the net interest incamalysis.

Quantitative Analysis.The following table sets forth, as of December 3213 , the estimated changes in the BarkPV and net intere
income that would result from the designated irtsta@ous parallel shift in the U.S. Treasury yialdve. Computations of prospective effect
hypothetical interest rate changes are based oremws assumptions including relative levels of ratikterest rates, loan prepayments
deposit decay, and should not be relied upon asdtide of actual results.

Decrease in Estimated

Estimated Decrease in NPV Net Interest Income
Change in Interest Rates (basis points) Amount Percent Amount Percent
(Dollars in thousands)

+400 $ (32,789 (20.29% $ (8,49)) (19.21)%
+300 (17,119 (10.56) (6,14¢) (13.97)
+200 (11,65% (7.19 (3,92¢) (8.8¢)
+100 (5,389 (3.39 (2,000 (4.59)

0 — — — —

The Company has opted not to include an estimata ftecrease in rates at December 31, 231tBe results are not relevant given the cu
targeted fed funds rate of the Federal Open Matketmittee. The table set forth above indicatesdh&tecember 31, 201,3n the event of ¢
immediate 200 basis point increase in interessrdtee Bank would be expected to experience a 7.d8&ease in NPV and%8.9 millior
decrease in net interest income. This data doeseflett any actions that we may undertake in respdo changes in interest rates, suc
changes in rates paid on certain deposit accowagedcbon local competitive factors, which could sedthe actual impact on NPV and
interest income, if any.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the methodolaged in the above interest rate risk measurembtadeling changes in NPV and
interest income requires that we make certain agsans that may or may not reflect the manner incihactual yields and costs respon
changes in market interest rates. The NPV andntetest income table presented above assumeshthatomposition of our interest-rate-
sensitive assets and liabilities existing at thgitr@ng of a period remains constant over the pebeing measured and, accordingly, the
does not reflect any actions that we may undertak@sponse to changes in interest rates, suclhasges in rates paid on certain dej
accounts based on local competitive factors. Theetalso assumes that a particular change in siteages is reflected uniformly across
yield curve regardless of the duration to matueitghe repricing characteristics of specific asseis liabilities. Accordingly, although the NI
and net interest income table provides an indioadioour sensitivity to interest rate changes padicular point in time, such measurement:
not intended to and do not provide a precise fatechthe effect of changes in market interestsrate our net interest income and will di
from actual results.

Liquidity Management

Liquidity Management— Bank. The overall objective of our liquidity managemesnta ensure the availability of sufficient cashdario mee
all financial commitments and to take advantageneéstment opportunities. We manage liquidity imlexrto meet deposit withdrawals
demand or at contractual maturity, to repay borngwias they mature, and to fund new loans andtimezgs as opportunities arise.

Our primary sources of funds are deposits, prin@pd interest payments on loans and securitie, tare lesser extent, wholesale borrowi
the proceeds from maturing securities and steort+ investments, and the proceeds from the sdlédsans and securities. The sched
amortization of loans and securities, as well ax@eds from borrowings, are predictable sourcesiruds. Other funding sources, howe
such as deposit inflows, mortgage prepayments anthage loan sales are greatly influenced by maritetest rates, economic conditions
competition.

Our cash flows are derived from operating actisitimvesting activities and financing activitiesraported in the Consolidated Statemen
Cash Flows in our Consolidated Financial Statemédts primary investing activities are the origipatfor investment of one-ttsur family
residential mortgage loans, muiéimily mortgage loans, nonresidential real estatm$, commercial leases, construction and lands)o@m
commercial loans and the purchase of investmenirgies and mortgage-backed securities. Duringyders ended December 31, 201201z
and 2011 , our loans originated for investmentléot&524.6 million , $364.6 million , and $573.2llioh , respectively. Purchases of lo
totaled $5.6 million and $154.2 million for the ysa
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ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 , respectivelgreTho loan purchases in the year ended Decemb&03B. Purchases of securit
totaled $74.2 million , $35.4 million and $37.6 loih for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2@t 2011 , respectively.

These activities were funded primarily by principabayments on loans and securities, and the $atmms and securities. During the ye
ended December 31, 2013 , 2012 and 2011 , princg@yments on loans totaled $453.2 million , $31@&illion , and $632.9 million
respectively. During the years ended December 8132 2012 and 2011 , principal repayments on #eeuitotaled $13.5 million $19.%
million , and $30.7 million , respectively. Duririge years ended December 31, 2013 , 2012 and 2ffiteeds from maturities and sale
securities totaled $26.8 million , $30.6 millioand $43.8 million , respectively. During the yeamsled December 31, 2013 , 2012 and 201:
the proceeds from the sale of loans held for safded $11.7 million , $21.0 million , $17.6 milliq respectively.

Loan origination commitments totaled $29.3 mill@nDecember 31, 2013, and consisted of $17.3anithf fixed-rate loans ar{L2.0 millior
of adjustable-rate loans. Unused lines of credd atandby letters of credit granted to custometaléd $118.2 million and $922,000
respectively, at December 31, 2013 . At DecembeB13 , commitments to sell mortgages totaled ¥X®P.

Deposit flows are generally affected by the levieimarket interest rates, the interest rates andrddgrms and conditions on deposit prod
offered by our banking competitors, and other fexctdVe had net deposit decreases of $29.6 milliwh $50.0 millionfor the years end:
December 31, 2013, and 2012 , respectively, amet @eposit increase of $97.2 million in 201At times during recent periods, we have
actively competed for higher cost deposit accountduding certificates of deposit, choosing instda fund loan growth from the loan ¢
lease repayments. Certificates of deposit thaseneduled to mature in one year or less from Deeeidb, 2013 totaled $203.4 milliorBase!
upon prior experience and our current pricing stggf we believe that we will retain a significawotrion of these deposits upon their maturit

We anticipate that we will have sufficient fundsadable to meet current loan commitments and lioesredit and maturing certificates
deposit that are not renewed or extended. We gijneeanain fully invested and may utilize additidreources of funds through FHLE
advances, of which none were outstanding at Dece81he2013 . At December 31, 2013 we had the ghititborrow an additiona$251.
million under our credit facilities with the FHLBC. Furthesre, we have unpledged securities that could lee trs support borrowings
excess of $37.3 million . Finally, at December 3013, we had a line of credit available with the Feti&aserve Bank of Chicago.
December 31, 2013 , there was no outstanding balamc¢his credit line.

Liquidity Management- Company.The liquidity needs of the Company on an unconsddid basis consist primarily of operating expel
dividends to stockholders and stock repurchases.pfimary sources of liquidity for the Company emtty are $11.4 milliorof cash and ca:
equivalents. and any cash dividends from the Bank.

The Dodd+rank Act provided for the transfer of the authofir regulating and supervising federal savingskisafrom the OTS to the OC
and the authority for regulating and supervisingirsgs and loan holding companies and their m@pesitory subsidiaries from the OTS to
FRB. The transfer occurred on July 21, 2011.

As a result of the regulatory restructuring occasi by the Doddrrank Act, the Company is subject to Federal Res@ward Superviso
Letter SR 094, which provides that a holding company shouldpagnother things, notify and make a submissioméoRederal Reserve B:
prior to declaring a dividend if its net income fitve current quarter is not sufficient to fully flithe dividend, and consider eliminati
deferring or significantly reducing its dividendsts net income for the current quarter is noffisignt to fully fund the dividends, or if its r
income for the past four quarters, net of dividepdsviously paid during that period, is not sufici to fully fund the dividends. The Compi
will continue to consult with, and seek the prippeoval of, the Federal Reserve Bank prior to déagany dividends. Our Board of Direct
declared four quarterly cash dividends of $0.01gb@re during 2013, totaling $844,000 .

Supervisory Letter SR 09-4 also sets forth guidalipertaining to share repurchases.

As of December 31, 2013ve were not aware of any known trends, eventmoertainties that had or were reasonably likelgawee a materi
impact on our liquidity. As of December 31, 2038e had no other material commitments for capitgleexitures.

Capital Management
Capital Management - BankThe overall objectives of our capital managemeattarensure the availability of sufficient captimlsupport loar
deposit and other asset and liability growth opptties and to maintain capital to absorb unforadesses or writelowns that are inherent

the business risks associated with the bankingsimguWe seek to balance the need for higher ddpials to address such unforeseen
and the goal to achieve an adequate return oraghigatinvested by our stockholders.
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The Bank is subject to regulatory capital requireteeadministered by the federal banking agenciedufe to meet minimum capi
requirements can initiate certain mandatory, arssipty additional discretionary, actions by the O®@&t, if undertaken, could have a di
material effect on the Bankfinancial statements. Under capital adequacyedjiniels and the regulatory framework for prompt ective actior
the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines thablve quantitative measures of the Bank’s asditsilities, and certain off-balanchee
items as calculated under regulatory accountingtigess. The Banls capital amounts and classification are also stibjequalitative judgmen
by regulators about components, risk weightingd, @her factors.

The prompt corrective action regulations provideeficlassifications, including well capitalized, gdately capitalized, undercapitaliz
significantly undercapitalized, and critically umdapitalized, although these terms are not usedepoesent overall financial conditi
Adequately capitalized institutions require regoitgtapproval to accept brokered deposits. If uralgitalized, a financial institutios’capita
distributions, asset growth and expansion aredidhiand for the submission of a capital restorasarquired.

The Company and the Bank have each adopted Regul@apital Plans that require the Bank to maintaifier 1 leverage ratio of at least
and a total riskeased capital ratio of at least 12%. The minimuipitehratios set forth in the Regulatory Capitahid will be increased a
other minimum capital requirements will be estdi#id if and as necessary to comply with the Badalefjuirements as such requirem
become applicable to the Company and the Bankcéordance with the Regulatory Capital Plans, neithe Company nor the Bank v
pursue any acquisition or growth opportunity, dexkany dividend or conduct any stock repurchasewibald cause the Bank's total ribkse:
capital ratio and/or its Tier 1 leverage ratio &l below the established minimum capital levefs.alddition, the Company will continue
maintain its ability to serve as a source of finahstrength to the Bank by holding at least $5illion of cash or liquid assets for that purpose.

At December 31, 2013, actual capital ratios angimmiim required ratios were:

Minimum required

to be Well Minimum Capital
BankFinancial Capitalized Under  Ratios Established
Consolidated F.S.B. Prompt Corrective under Capital
Actual Ratio Actual Ratio Action Provisions Plans
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets) 17.2¢% 14.9% 8.0(% 12.0%
Tier 1 (core) capital (to risk-weighted assets) 16.0: 13.6¢ 4.0C 8.0C
Tier 1 (core) capital (to adjusted total assets) 11.92 10.1¢ 4.0C 8.0C

See Note 11 of the "Notes to Consolidated Finargfatements” in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for a necitiation of the Banks equity unde
GAAP to regulatory capital.

As of December 31, 201tBe Bank was well capitalized under the regulafaaynework for prompt corrective action. There apeconditions ¢
events since those notifications that managemdiaies have changed the Bank’s prompt correctivi@mcapitalization category.

Capital Management - CompanyOn June 23, 2005, the Company completed its muitustiock conversion and sold 24,466,250 shar
common stock in a subscription offering at $10.@0 ghare and raised $240.3 million in offering pexds, net of offering expenses.

Company contributed $120.9 million of the net pedto the Bank, paid off $30 million of term bavings, loaned $19.6 million to our ES
and retained the remaining net proceeds of $72amilSubsequent to the mutualdtock conversion, the Bank declared aggregate elindd o
$60.0 million to the Company. During this periog tB@ompany paid dividends totaling $35.1 million angended $64.6 milliofior shar
repurchases.

Total stockholders’ equity was $175.6 million atd@mber 31, 2013 , compared to $172.9 million atebdwer 31, 2012 The increase in tof
stockholders’ equity was primarily due to the congal impact of our $3.3 millioof net income and our declaration and payment ef
dividends totaling $844,000 during the year endeddnber 31, 2013 The unallocated shares of common stock that @®FE owns wel
reflected as a $11.3 million reduction to stockleosd equity at December 31, 2013 , compared to2Za2$million reduction to stockholders’
equity at December 31, 2012 .

Quarterly Cash DividendsOur Board of Directors declared four quarterly cdshdends of $0.01 per share during 2013 , totp$844,000.

As a result of the regulatory restructuring occasib by the Doddrrank Act, the Company is subject to Federal Res&ward Superviso
Letter SR 09-4, which provides that a holding conmypshould, among other things, notify and maketargssion
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to the Federal Reserve Bank prior to declaringvaddnd if its net income for the current quartends sufficient to fully fund the dividend, a
consider eliminating, deferring or significantlydreing its dividends if its net income for the @ant quarter is not sufficient to fully fund 1
dividends, or if its net income for the past fowagers, net of dividends previously paid duringttheriod, is not sufficient to fully fund t
dividends. The Company will continue to consulthyiand seek the prior approval of, the Federal ResBank prior to declaring a
dividends.

Stock Repurchase ProgranOur Board of Directors had authorized the repurehasup to 5,047,423 shares of our common stoclke
repurchase authorization expired on November 1%22The authorization permitted shares to be réyased in open market or negotie
transactions, and pursuant to any trading planrttegt be adopted in accordance with Rule 10kB-the Securities and Exchange Commis:
The authorization was utilized at management'srelin, subject to the limitations set forth in BRulOb48 of the Securities and Excha
Commission and other applicable legal requiremeants, to price and other internal limitations ed&iigdd by the Board of Directors. As
December 31, 2013the Company had repurchased 4,239,134 sharés arnmon stock out of the 5,047,423 shares trdblean authorize
for repurchase. Federal Reserve Board SupervisetieiL,SR 0% provides that holding companies experiencingriona weaknesses such
operating losses should notify and make a submmisgiothe Federal Reserve Bank before redeemingmurchasing common stock. 1
Company has no plans to conduct such discussidhgivé Federal Reserve supervisory staff or engagmck repurchases at this time.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Aggregate Contraual Obligations

CommitmentsAs a financial services provider, we routinely ar@arty to various financial instruments with offléncesheet risks, such
commitments to extend credit, standby letters edlitr unused lines of credit and commitments tbleahs. While these contractual obligati
represent our future cash requirements, a signifip@rtion of commitments to extend credit may expiithout being drawn upon. St
commitments are subject to the same credit polaiesapproval process afforded to loans that weemakhough we consider commitment:
extend credit in determining our allowance for ldasses, at December 31, 201&e had made no provision for losses on commitm&
extend credit, and had no specific or general alue for losses on such commitments, as we havendnddstorical loss experience w
commitments to extend credit and we believed tbapmobable and reasonably estimable losses weegdnhin our portfolio as a result of «
commitments to extend credit. For additional infatibn, see Note 14 of the "Notes to Consolidatethiicial Statements” in Item 8 of t
Form 10-K.

Contractual Obligations.In the ordinary course of our operations, we eités certain contractual obligations. Such obligasi includ
operating leases for premises and equipment.

The following table summarizes our significant fixand determinable contractual obligations and rotheding needs by payment date

December 31, 2013 The payment amounts represent those amountsodthe trecipient and do not include any unamortipegimiums ¢
discounts or other similar carrying amount adjusttee

Payments Due by Period

One to
Less than Three Three to More than
One Year Years Five Years Five Years Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Contractual Obligations
Certificates of deposit $ 203,41¢ $ 64,29¢ $ 7,908 % — 3 275,62:
Borrowings — — — — —
Standby letters of credit 912 1C — — 922
Operating leases 43¢ 88¢ 94¢ 5,63 7,90¢
Total $ 204,771 65,19 $ 8,85: 5637 $ 284,45;

Commitments to extend credit $ 147,42( — 8 — — § 147,42(

Critical Accounting Policies
Critical accounting policies are defined as thdsa @are reflective of significant judgments and antainties, and could potentially resul

materially different results under different asstioqs and conditions. We believe that the mosicaiitaccounting policy upon which ¢
financial condition and results of operation depeardl which involves the most complex subjectiveigiens or assessments, is as follows:
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Allowance for Loan Losse. Arriving at an appropriate level of allowance foah losses involves a high degree of judgment.alowance fo
loan losses provides for probable incurred losssgd upon evaluations of known and inherent riskbé loan portfolio. We review the le
of the allowance on a quarterly basis and estaltiishprovision for loan losses based upon histblbea loss experience, the nature and vol
of the loan portfolio, information about specifiorbower situations, estimated collateral valuesneenic conditions and other factors to as
the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. Apbe material estimates that we must make to kstathe allowance are loss exposur
default; the amount and timing of future cash flawsaffected loans; the value of collateral; aregermination of loss factors to be applie
the various elements of the loan portfolio. Alltbése estimates are susceptible to significantggaflthough we believe that we use the
information available to us to establish the alloeafor loan losses, future adjustments to thenaliece may be necessary if borrower finan
collateral valuation or economic conditions difseibstantially from the information and assumptiosed in making the evaluation. In addit
as an integral part of their supervisory and/omgiration process, our regulatory agencies peridigicaview the methodology and sufficier
of the allowance for loan losses. These agencigsraguire us to recognize additions to the alloveabased on their inclusion, exclusiot
modification of risk factors or differences in judgnts of information available to them at the tiofeheir examination. A large loss co
deplete the allowance and require increased pomgdio replenish the allowance, which would negdyiaffect earnings.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE AB OUT MARKET RISK

For information regarding market risk see Item“Kanagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations
Management of Interest Rate Risk.”

ITEM 8. EINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINAN CIAL REPORTING
Management of BankFinancial Corporation is respgdador establishing and maintaining effective intd control over financial reporting.

Management evaluates the effectiveness of interoadrol over financial reporting and tests for abliity of recorded financial informatic
through a program of ongoing internal audits. Aggtem of internal control, no matter how well desid, has inherent limitations, includ
the possibility that a control can be circumventedverridden and misstatements due to error ardfraay occur and not be detected. #
because of changes in conditions, internal comffelctiveness may vary over time. Accordingly, eweneffective system of internal con
will provide only reasonable assurance with respeéinancial statement preparation.

The Companys internal control over financial reporting is sogess designed to provide reasonable assurancaliregdhe reliability o
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordante agicounting principles generally acce|
in the United States of America. The Companiyiternal control over financial reporting inclsdihnose policies and procedures that (i) pe
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonabtaild accurately and fairly reflect the transagcticand dispositions of the assets of
Company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance thatsa@ions are recorded as necessary to permit ratepa of financial statements
accordance with accounting principles generallyepted in the United States of America, and thatipgs and expenditures of the Comg
are being made only in accordance with authorinatiof management and directors of the Company;(déih@rovide reasonable assura
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauited acquisition, use, or disposition of the Compa assets that could have a mat
effect on the financial statements.

Management assessed the Company’s internal camiesl financial reporting as of December 31, 2018 required by Section 404 of
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, based on the criteviaffective internal control over financial regog described in the “1992 Internal Control-
Integrated Framework,adopted by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatioh the Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on
assessment, management concludes that, as of Dec8ii2013 , the Company’s internal control owearficial reporting is effective.

The Company’s independent registered public ac@ogifitm has issued their report on the effectivwnef the Compang’internal control ov
financial reporting. That report follows under theading, Report of Independent Registered Publaiwating Firm.

/sl F. Morgan Gasior /sl Paul A. Cloutier
F. Morgan Gasior Paul A. Cloutier
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer &resident Executive Vice President and Chieéficial Officer

48




Table of Contents

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have audited the accompanying consolidated nséattis of financial condition of BankFinancial Corgiion (the “Company”)as o
December 31, 2013 and 2012 , and the related ddased statements of operations, comprehensivariacghanges in stockholdeejuity
and cash flows for each of the years in the thesa-period ended December 31, 2013 . We also haditeed the Company’internal contre
over financial reporting as of December 31, 208sed on criteria established in &892 Internal Control— Integrated Framework issued
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of theadway Commission (COSOlJhe Companys management is responsible for tl
financial statements, for maintaining effectiveemmal control over financial reporting, and for &ssessment of the effectiveness of int
control over financial reporting, included in thecampanying Managemest’Report on Internal Control Over Financial Remayti Ou
responsibility is to express an opinion on thegarftial statements and an opinion on the Comgaingérnal control over financial report
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversightuBiogUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audits to iobtaasonable assurance about whether the finastaéments are free of mate
misstatement and whether effective internal cordr@r financial reporting was maintained in all &l respects. Our audits of the finan
statements included examining, on a test basisleage supporting the amounts and disclosures irfitlaacial statements, assessing
accounting principles used and significant estisiatade by management, and evaluating the ovemnalhdial statement presentation. Our &
of internal control over financial reporting inckdl obtaining an understanding of internal contk@rdinancial reporting, assessing the risk
a material weakness exists, and testing and euadutite design, and operating effectiveness ofiralecontrol based on the assessed risk
audits also included performing such other proceslas we considered necessary in the circumstavwedelieve that our audits provid
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranaeiregthe reliability of financi:
reporting and the preparation of financial stateisidor external purposes in accordance with gelyeealcepted accounting principles
companys internal control over financial reporting inclgdidose policies and procedures that (1) pertatheéanaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseottimpany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accor@amdgth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withosizations of management :
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanaslsurance regarding prevention or timely deteatfounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohwver financial reporting may not prevent or @ttmisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteereferred to above present fairly, in all materespects, the financial position
BankFinancial Corporation as of December 31, 20182012, and the results of its operations and its cashdlfor each of the years in
three-year period ended December 31, 281&nformity with accounting principles generatlgcepted in the United States of America. .
in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over fical reporting as of December 31, 2013
based on criteria established in ##92 Internal Control-+ntegrated Framework issued by the Committee oh§gming Organizations of tl
Treadway Commission (COSO).

/s/ Crowe Horwath LLP

Oak Brook, lllinois
March 14, 2014
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

December 31,

2013 2012
Assets
Cash and due from other financial institutions $ 15,78. $ 20,36:
Interest-bearing deposits in other financial ingitins 145,17¢ 255,40:
Cash and cash equivalents 160,95 275,76:
Securities, at fair value 110,90 77,83
Loans held-for-sale — 2,16¢
Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses:
December 31, 2013, $14,154 and December 31, 2082086 1,098,07 1,030,46!
Other real estate owned, net 6,30¢ 10,35¢
Stock in Federal Home Loan Bank, at cost 6,06¢ 8,412
Premises and equipment, net 35,32¢ 38,25
Accrued interest receivable 3,93 4,14¢
Core deposit intangible 2,43: 3,03¢
Bank owned life insurance 21,95¢ 21,64¢
FDIC prepaid expense — 2,65¢
Other assets 7,62 6,457
Total assets $ 1,453,59. $ 1,481,19:
Liabilities
Deposits
Noninterest-bearing $ 126,68( $ 134,59
Interest-bearing 1,126,02 1,147,75.
Total deposits 1,252,70:i 1,282,35
Borrowings 3,05t 5,56
Advance payments by borrowers taxes and insurance 10,43: 10,70¢
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities 11,77: 9,67¢
Total liabilities 1,277,96 1,308,30:
Commitments and contingent liabilities
Stockholders’ equity
Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value, 25,000,000 stard®rized, none issued or outstanding — —
Common Stock, $0.01 par value, 100,000,000 shathe@zed;
21,101,966 shares issued at December 31, 20131a0d22966 shares
issued at December 31,2012 211 211
Additional paid-in capital 193,59« 193,59(
Retained earnings (deficit) (7,342 (9,79¢)
Unearned Employee Stock Ownership Plan shares (11,259 (12,237
Accumulated other comprehensive income 41¢ 1,11¢
Total stockholders’ equity 175,62 172,89(
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 1,453,559 $ 1,481,19.

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

For the years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Interest and dividend income
Loans, including fees 47,69 $ 58,71t $ 66,70t
Securities 981 1,48t 2,66¢
Other 72C 52¢ 337
Total interest income 49,39 60,72’ 69,70¢
Interest expense
Deposits 3,63¢ 4,34: 6,69:
Borrowings 14 104 222
Total interest expense 3,65: 4,44 6,91t
Net interest income 45,73¢ 56,28( 62,79
Provision for (recovery of) loan losses (687) 31,52: 22,72
Net interest income after provision for (recovery € loan losses 46,42¢ 24,75¢ 40,07(
Noninterest income
Deposit service charges and fees 2,00t 2,17¢ 2,667
Other fee income 2,25( 2,39: 2,42°¢
Insurance commissions and annuities income 474 51C 65¢
Gain on sale of loans, net 1,46¢ 841 34C
Loss on disposition of premises and equipment, net (43 (15€) (19
Loan servicing fees 461 48¢€ 53¢
Amortization and impairment of servicing assets (16¢) (320 (267)
Earnings on bank owned life insurance 31z 43¢ 62€
Trust 711 73¢ 67¢€
Other 662 622 49¢
Total noninterest income 8,13¢ 7,728 8,14«
Noninterest expense
Compensation and benefits 26,19¢ 25,79: 26,10¢
Office occupancy and equipment 7,54 8,06( 8,541
Advertising and public relations 92t 738 89t
Information technology 3,091 3,06: 2,77¢
Supplies, telephone, and postage 1,697 1,84( 1,82¢
Amortization of intangibles 60= 633 1,68¢
Nonperforming asset management 2,63¢ 5,211 4,431
Operations of other real estate owned 1,61z 7,491 6,33¢
FDIC insurance premiums 1,91z 1,77¢ 1,441
Acquisition costs — — 1,761
Goodwill impairment — — 23,86
Other 5,03¢ 4,99( 4,87(
Total noninterest expense 51,26: 59,59( 84,53
Income (loss) before income taxes 3,29¢ (27,109 (36,329
Income tax expense — — 12,37:
Net income (loss) 329¢ $ (27,109 $ (48,69¢)
Basic earnings (loss) per common share 0.1¢ $ (1.3¢) $ (2.4¢)
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share 0.1¢ $ (1.3c) $ (2.46)
Weighted average common shares outstanding 20,020,83 19,888,51 19,770,02
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 20,025,32 19,888,51 19,770,02



See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteilements
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In thousands)

For the years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Net income (loss) $ 3,29¢  $ (27,109 $ (48,69¢)
Unrealized holding gain (loss) on securities agsiluring the period (699 7 (1,119
Tax effect — — 424
Other comprehensive income (loss) on securitiegspinax effect (699) 7 (689)
Comprehensive income (loss) $ 259¢ $§ (27,109 $ (49,38

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteigements
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(In thousands, except per share data)
Unearned
Employee
Stock Accumulated
Additional Retained Ownership Other
Common Paid-in Earnings Plan Comprehen-sive
Stock Capital (Deficit) Shares Income (Loss) Total

Balance at January 1, 2011 $ 211 $ 194,18t $ 71,27¢ $ (14,190 $ 1,80¢ 253,28!
Net loss — — (48,69¢) — — (48,69¢)
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax effect — — — — (68¢9) (68¢9)
Nonvested stock awards-stock-based compensation

expense — 53 — — — 53
Cash dividends declared on common stock ($0.:

per share) — — (4,63¢€) — — (4,636
ESOP shares earned — (43¢ — 97¢ — 54C
Balance at December 31, 2011 211 $ 193,80: 17,94¢ (13,219 1,111 199,85
Net loss — — (27,109 — — (27,109
Other comprehensive income, net of tax effect — — — — 7 7
Nonvested stock awards-stock-based compensation

expense — 41 — — — 41
Cash dividends declared on common stock ($0.(

per share) — — (633) — — (639
ESOP shares earned — (252) — 97¢ — 727
Balance at December 31, 2012 211 193,59( (9,79€) (12,237 1,11¢ 172,89(
Net income — — 3,29¢ — — 3,29¢
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax effect — — — — (699) (699)
Nonvested stock awards-stock-based compensation

expense — 86 — — — 86
Cash dividends declared on common stock ($0.(

per share) — — (844) — — (844)
ESOP shares earned — (82 — 97¢ — 89¢
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 211 $ 19359 $ (7,34) $ (11,255 $ 41¢ 175,62

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteilements
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

For the years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income (loss) $ 3,29t % (27,109 $ (48,69¢)
Adjustments to reconcile to net income (loss) tbaash from operating activities
Provision for (recovery of) loan losses (687) 31,52: 22,72
Goodwill impairment — — 23,86:
ESOP shares earned 89¢€ 727 54C
Stock—based compensation expense 86 41 53
Depreciation and amortization 4,45: 4,54¢ 4,55¢
Amortization of premiums and discounts on secwgitind loans (73€) (2,507) (1,290
Amortization of core deposit and other intangitdsets 60t 633 1,68¢
Amortization and impairment of servicing assets 16¢€ 32C 267
Net change in net deferred loan origination costs (225) 165 46¢
Net loss on sale of other real estate owned 14¢ 25¢ 15
Net gain on sale of loans (1,469 (847 (340
Net loss on disposition of premises and equipment 43 15€ 19
Loans originated for sale (20,777 (18,639 (16,46¢)
Proceeds from sale of loans 11,67( 20,98« 17,60«
Other real estate owned valuation adjustments 55( 5,55¢ 3,97(
Net change in:
Deferred income tax — — 12,41¢
Accrued interest receivable 213 1,427 172
Earnings on bank owned life insurance (313 (438 (62€)
Other assets (243 1,40C (70)
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities 2,09t (1,189 (8949
Net cash from operating activities 9,77¢ 17,01 19,97¢
Cash flows from investing activities
Securities
Proceeds from maturities 26,81 30,59( 34,10:
Proceeds from principal repayments 13,49: 19,66¢ 30,69:
Proceeds from sales of securities — — 9,67
Purchases of securities (74,22() (35,360 (37,557
Loans receivable
Principal payments on loans receivable 453,15: 518,33 632,91¢
Purchases of loans — (5,647 (154,179)
Originated for investment (524,59) (364,599 (573,18
Proceeds from sale of loans 2,86¢ 10,98t —
Proceeds of redemption of Federal Reserve Bank stoc — — 15t
Proceeds of redemption of Federal Home Loan Barhidago stock 2,34¢ 7,93¢ —
Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned 8,83¢ 13,15¢ 9,07
Purchase of premises and equipment, net (20 (2,339 (2,370
Cash acquired in acquisition — — 61,61¢
Net cash from (used in) investing activities (91,319 192,73. 10,95(

(Continued)
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Cash flows from financing activities
Net change in deposits
Net change in borrowings
Net change in advance payments by borrowers fastard insurance
Cash dividends paid on common stock
Net cash used in financing activities
Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Beginning cash and cash equivalents
Ending cash and cash equivalents

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Interest paid

Income taxes paid

Income taxes refunded

Loans transferred to other real estate owned
Loans transferred to held for sale

Supplemental disclosures of noncash investing acties — Acquisition:

Noncash assets acquired:
Securities
Loans receivable
Other real estate owned
Stock in Federal Home Loan Bank and Federal Redgam&
Goodwill
Premises and equipment, net
Accrued interest receivable
Core deposit intangible
FDIC prepaid expense
Income tax receivable
Deferred taxes, net
Other assets
Total noncash items acquired
Liabilities assumed:
Deposits
Advance payments by borrowers taxes and insurance
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities
Total liabilities assumed

Cash and cash equivalents acquired

For the years ended December 31,

2013

2012

2011

$ (29,64%)
(2,517)

(279

(844)

$

(50,026)
(3,755
271)
(639)

$

(115,589
(14,42)
3,617
(4,636)

(33,279

(54,68%)

(131,03))

(114,80)
275,76

155,06(
120,70

(100,10¢)
220,81

$ 160,95

$

275,76

120,70«

$ 3,691

461
5,51:

4,50z

1,42
7,03t
12,74(

6,84¢

761
14,13:

10,177
118,14°
6,96¢
908
1,29¢
7,44:
35¢
2,66(
774
774
2,662
42

152,19°

212,93¢
34
84:

213,81¢

61,61¢

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteiements
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Table amounts in thousands, except share anchpez data)

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentatior: BankFinancial Corporation, a Maryland corporatimadquartered in Burr Ridge, lllinois (the “Compgnis the owne
of all of the issued and outstanding capital stocBankFinancial, F.S.B. (the “Bank”).

Principles of Consolidatior: The consolidated financial statements includeatteounts of and transactions of BankFinancial Gepon, th
Bank, and the Bank’s wholly-owned subsidiaries,aRitial Assurance Services, Inc. and BF Asset Regd@erporation (collectively, the
Company”). All significant intercompany accountslaransactions have been eliminated.

Nature of Business: The Companys revenues, operating income, and assets are pyinfltam the banking industry. Loan originati
customers are mainly located in the greater Chiaagtropolitan area. To supplement loan originatidhe Company purchases mortg
loans. The loan portfolio is concentrated in lota are primarily secured by real estate.

Use of Estimates To prepare financial statements in conformityhwatcounting principles generally accepted in tinitddl States of Ameri
(“GAAP”), management makes estimates and assumptions baseditable information. These estimates and assongaffect the amour
reported in the financial statements and the disoks provided, and future results could differe |lowance for loan losses, mortg
servicing rights, deferred tax assets, goodwilheotintangible assets, stobksed compensation, impairment of securities aimdvédue o
financial instruments are particularly subject baege and the effect of such change could be rabterihe financial statements.

Interest-bearing Deposits in Other Financial Institutions Interestbearing deposits in other financial institutionstaniag in less than 90 da
are carried at cost.

Cash Flows: Cash and cash equivalents include cash, depesitother financial institutions maturing in legan 90 days, and daily fede
funds sold. Net cash flows are reported for custolbpen and deposit transactions, interest beariggpsits in other financial institutiol
borrowings, and advance payments by borrowersab@s and insurance.

Securities : Debt securities are classified as availablesfde when they might be sold before maturity. Bquiecurities with readi
determinable fair values are classified as avaldbi-sale. Securities available-feale are carried at fair value, with unrealizeddimg gain:
and losses reported in other comprehensive incdmss)( net of tax. Interest income includes amatiin of purchase premium or discol
Premiums and discounts on securities are amorbtipethe level-yield method without anticipating pagments, except for mortgageacke:
securities where prepayments are anticipated. Gaiddosses on sales are based on the amortizedfdbg security sold. Declines in the
value of securities below their cost that are othan-temporary are reflected as realized lossegletermining if losses are other-than
temporary, management considers: (1) the lengthmaf and extent that fair value has been less thahor adjusted cost, as applicable, (2
financial condition and near term prospects ofisiseer, and (3) whether the Company has the inbesll the debt security or it is more lik
than not that the Company will be required to gedl debt security before the anticipated recovery.

Securities also include investments in certificatedeposit with maturities of greater than 90 daysese certificates of deposit are placed
insured institutions for varying maturities and amts that are fully insured by the Federal Depositirance Corporation (“FDIC”).

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock The Bank is a member of theederal Home Loan Bank system. Members are reqtiregvn a certai
amount of stock based on the level of borrowings @her factors, and may invest in additional anteuRederal Home Loan Bank of Chic.
(“FHLBC") stock is carried at cost and classified as a wdsttisecurity. Accounting guidance for FHLBC stqechvides that, for impairme
testing purposes, the value of long term investsisauth as our FHLBC common stock is based on thienate recoverability’of the par valu
of the security without regard to temporary dedimevalue. Both cash and stock dividends are tedas income.

Loans Held—for-Sale Mortgage loans originated and intended for salthe secondary market are carried at the lowexggfegate cost
estimated fair market value, as determined by antbhg commitments from investors. Net unrealizes$és, if any, are recorded as a valu
allowance and charged to earnings. Mortgage loatd—forsale are generally sold with servicing rights metdi. The carrying value
mortgage loans sold is reduced by the fair valuthefservicing right. Gains and losses on saleamtgage loans are based on the differ
between the selling price and the carrying valuthefrelated loan sold.

Held for investment loans that have been trandletweheld-for-sale are carried at the lower of awstair value. For held-fosale loans, ar
decreases in value after transfer below cost aregrézed in mortgage banking revenue in the Codatdd Statements of Operations
increases in fair value above cost are not recegnimtil the loans are sold. The credit componéiatng write down upon transfer to held-for-
sale is reflected in charge-offs to the allowararddan losses.
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NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair market value is determined based on quotedkehaates and our judgment of relevant market d@mmi. Gains and losses on
disposition of loans held-fagale are determined on the specific identificatiethod. Transferred mortgage loans sold in therskny marke
are sold without retaining servicing rights.

Loans and Loan Income: Loans that management has the intent and aldityold for the foreseeable future or until maguctr payoff an
reported at the principal balance outstandingoh¢he allowance for loan losses, premiums andodists on loans purchased, and net def
loan costs. Interest income on loans is recognizéttome over the term of the loan based on theusaof principal outstanding.

Premiums and discounts associated with loans psechare amortized over the contractual term ofdée using the level-yield method.

Interest income is reported on the interest metmud includes amortization of net deferred loan feed costs over the contractual loan t
adjusted for prepayments. Interest income is dicoad at the time a loan is 90 days past due @nwhe do not expect to receive full payn
of interest or principal. Past due status is basethe contractual terms of the loan.

All interest accrued but not received for loand theve been placed on nonaccrual status is revagsadst interest income. Interest receive
such loans is accounted for on the cash—basisstrremovery method until qualifying for return toceual status. Once a loan is placed on no
accrual status, the borrower must generally dematestit least six months of payment performancerbethe loan is eligible to return
accrual status. Generally, the Company utilizes“8#fe days delinquent, still accruingategory of loan classification when: (1) the las
repaid in full shortly after the period end dat), the loan is well secured and there are no a&skbertpending legal barriers to its collectior
(3) the borrower has remitted all scheduled paymant is otherwise in substantial compliance withterms of the loan, but the processir
payments actually received or the renewal of a lenot occurred for administrative reasons.

Impaired Loans:Impaired loans consist of nonaccrual loans andbteslidebt restructurings (“TDRs”A loan is considered impaired wh
based on current information and events, managebmgigves that it is probable that we will be umabd collect all amounts due (b
principal and interest) according to the originahtactual terms of the loan agreement. Once aitodatermined to be impaired, the amoul
impairment is measured based on the loan's obdervfaib value, the fair value of the underlying latéral less selling costs if the loar
collateraldependent, or the present value of expected fumsh flows discounted at the loan's effective agerate. If the measurement of
impaired loan is less than the recorded investriretite loan, the bank's allowance for the impairetfateral dependent loan under ASC 31(
10-35 is based on fair value (less costs to dalif the charge- off (the confirmed “loss8)based on the higher appraised value. The reng
recorded investment in the loan after the chaffewvill have a loan loss allowance for the amobgtwhich the estimated fair value of
collateral (less costs to sell) is less than itwraised value.

Impaired loans with specific reserves are reviegearterly for any changes that would affect thecBmereserve. Any impaired loan for whi
a determination has been made that the economie v&lpermanently reduced is chargéfiagainst the allowance for loan losses to refies
current economic value in the period in which tleéedmination has been made.

At the time a collateralependent loan is initially determined to be imedjrwe review the existing collateral appraisalthé most rece
appraisal is greater than a year old, a new aprasobtained on the underlying collateral. Appadé are updated with a new indepen
appraisal at least annually and are formally reegwy our internal appraisal department upon réadig new appraisal. All impaired lo¢
and their related reserves are reviewed and updstel quarter. With an immaterial number of exoEst all appraisals and internal revi
are current under this methodology at Decembe313 .

Purchased Impaired LoansPurchased impaired loans are recorded at themeatgd fair values on the respective purchase datdsar
accounted for prospectively based on expected ftasis. No allowance for credit losses is recordedtteese loans at the acquisition datt
determining the acquisition date fair value of fnaged impaired loans, and in subsequent accounitieg;ompany reviews these loans o
individual basis. Expected future cash flows inesscof the fair value of loans at the purchase (atzretable yield") are recorded as intt
income over the life of the loans if the timing aachount of the future cash flows can be reasonabtimated. The noaecretable yiel
represents estimated losses in the portfolio aedusl to the difference between contractually iregipayments and the cash flows expect:
be collected at acquisition.

Subsequent to the purchase date, increases in fagh over those expected at the purchase dateremmegnized as interest inco
prospectively. The present value of any decreasegpected cash flows after the purchase datedgnized by ecording a chargeff througt
the allowance for loan losses.
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NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Troubled Debt Restructurings A loan is classified as a troubled debt restriotuwhen a borrower is experiencing financial idiffties tha
leads to a restructuring of the loan, and the Comggants concessions to the borrower in the refstring that it would not otherwise consic
These concessions may include rate reductionscipahforgiveness, extension of maturity date atidep actions intended to minim
potential losses.

In determining whether a debtor is experiencingdicial difficulties, the Company considers if thebtbr is in payment default or would b¢
payment default in the foreseeable future withdwat modification, the debtor declared or is in thecpss of declaring bankruptcy, ther
substantial doubt that the debtor will continueaging concern, the debtor has securities thag baen or are in the process of being deli
the debtor's entitgpecific projected cash flows will not be suffidig¢n service any of its debt, or the debtor carofmifin funds from sourc
other than the existing creditors at a market f@telebt with similar risk characteristics.

In determining whether the Company has grantednaession, the Company assesses, if it does notetgeollect all amounts due, whet
the current value of the collateral will satisfyetmounts owed, whether additional collateral cargntees from the debtor will serve
adequate compensation for other terms of the @sting, and whether the debtor otherwise has admeinds at a market rate for debt \
similar risk characteristics.

A loan that is modified at a market rate of inténegl not be classified as troubled debt restruicty in the calendar year subsequent tc
restructuring if it is in compliance with the maéid terms. Payment performance prior and subsedaehe restructuring is taken into accc
in assessing whether it is likely that the borrowan meet the new terms. This may result in tha loging returned to accrual at the tim
restructuring. A period of sustained repaymentfdeast six months generally is required for metioraccrual status.

Periodically, the Company will restructure a notitwo separate notes (A/B structure), chargirfghaf entire B portion of the note. The
note is structured with appropriate loanvelue and cash flow coverage ratios that provideafbigh likelihood of repayment. The A noti
classified as a noperforming note until the borrower has displayetiistorical payment performance for a reasonable tprior to an
subsequent to the restructuring. A period of sasthirepayment for at least six months generaltgdgsiired to return the note to accrual st
provided that management has determined that th@rpwnce is reasonably expected to continue. Thaote will be classified as
restructured note (either performing or nonperfaghithrough the calendar year of the restructuttiag the historical payment performance
been established.

Allowance for Loan LossesThe Company establishes provisions for loan lossbigh are charged to the Compasyésults of operations
maintain the allowance for loan losses to absodbaile incurred credit losses in the loan portfdilodetermining the level of the allowal
for loan losses, the Company considers past anértuloss experience, trends in classified loanaluations of real estate collateral, cur
economic conditions, volume and type of lendingyeaisle situations that may affect a borroweability to repay a loan and the level:
nonperforming and other classified loans. The arhofithe allowance is based on estimates and tiveate losses may vary from the estim
as more information becomes available or eventagiha

The Company provides for loan losses based onllineaance method. Accordingly, all loan losses dnarged to the related allowance an
recoveries are credited to it. Additions to thewaknce for loan losses are provided by chargesduonie based on various factors that, ir
judgment, deserve current recognition in estimagirabable incurred credit losses. The Company vevthe loan portfolio on an ongoing b
and makes provisions for loan losses on a quarberdys to maintain the allowance for loan lossegcitordance with GAAP. The allowance
loan losses consists of two components:

» specific allowances established for any impairesidential non-owner occupied mortgage, nfaltvily mortgage, nonresidential r
estate, construction and land, commercial, and cenial lease loans for which the recorded investrrethe loan exceeds the measi
value of the loan; and

» general allowances for loan losses for each loassdbased on historical loan loss experience; djudtanents to historical loss experie
(general allowances), maintained to cover uncditanhat affect our estimate of probable incurcestit losses for each loan class. If
remaining unamortized discount related to a spepiiol of purchased performing loans exceeds ttimat®d credit losses associated
these loans, no general valuation allowance isrdecbagainst the loans.

The adjustments to historical loss experience ased on our evaluation of several factors, inclgdavels of, and trends in, past due
classified loans; levels of, and trends in, chaoffs-and recoveries; trends in volume and termiearfs, including any credit concentration
the loan portfolio; experience and ability of lemglimanagement and other relevant staff; and ndteonthlocal economic trends and conditic
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NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The Company evaluates the allowance for loan lolsased upon the combined total of the specific gameral components. Generally, w
the loan portfolio increases, absent other factbesallowance for loan loss methodology resulta iigher dollar amount of estimated prob
incurred credit losses than would be the case witioe increase. Conversely, when the loan poctfdecreases, absent other factors
allowance for loan loss methodology generally rissil a lower dollar amount of estimated probabksés than would be the case withou
decrease.

The loss ratio used in computing the required garlean loss reserve allowance for a given clas®anf consists of (i) the actual loss r
(measured on a weighted, rolling twelgearter basis), (ii) the change in credit qualifyhvm the specific loan class during the period) the
actual inherent risk factor assigned to the speddfan class and (iv) the actual concentrationigK factor assigned to the specific loan c
(collectively, “the Specific Loan Class Risk Fastdr The Specific Loan Class Risk Factors are weightpthBy in the calculation. In additic
two additional quantitative factors, the NationatoBomic risk factor and the Local Economic risktéac are also components of

computation but are given different weightingsheit computation due to their relative applicapitio the specific loan class in the conte>
the effect of national and local economic condgiom their risk profile and performance.

Mortgage Servicing Right: Mortgage servicing rights are recognized sepbrathen they are acquired through sales of loanseiimortgag
loans are sold, servicing rights are initially reted at fair value and gains on sales of loangegerded in the statement of operations.
value is based on market prices for comparablegag# servicing contracts, when available, or atiévaly, is based on a valuation model
calculates the present value of estimated fututeseevicing income. The valuation model incorpasaéssumptions that market participi
would use in estimating future net servicing incoswech as the servicing cost per loan, the discratat the escrow float rate, an inflation r
ancillary income, prepayment speeds and defawdsrand losses. The Company compares the valuatdelrmputs and results to publisl
industry data in order to validate the model resalhd assumptions. All classes of servicing asaetssubsequently measured using
amortization method which requires servicing riglisbe amortized into noninterest income in prapartto, and over the period of, -
estimated future net servicing income of the unyiegl loans.

Servicing assets are evaluated for impairment baped the fair value of the rights as comparedatoying amount. Impairment is determil
by stratifying rights into groupings based on pmadwnt risk characteristics, such as interest ftatm type and investor type. Impairmer
recognized through a valuation allowance for anviddal grouping, to the extent that fair valueléss than the carrying amount. If
Company later determines that all or a portiorhefimpairment no longer exists for a particularugiag, a reduction of the allowance may
recorded as an increase to income. Changes intialuallowances are reported with amortization andairment of servicing assets on
statement of operations. The fair values of semgiaights are subject to significant fluctuatiorssaaresult of changes in estimated and a
prepayment speeds and default rates and losses.

Servicing fee income that is reported on the statdémf operations as loan servicing fees is reabfde fees earned for servicing loans.
fees are based on a contractual percentage ofitemnding principal; or a fixed amount per load are recorded as income when earned.
fees and ancillary fees related to loan serviciegrnet material.

Other Real Estate Owned Real estate properties acquired in collectioradban are initially recorded at fair value lesstcto sell ¢
acquisition, establishing a new cost basis. If f@ilue declines subsequent to foreclosure, a vatluatlowance is recorded through expe
Operating expenses, gains and losses on dispgsitimhchanges in the valuation allowance are re@on noninterest expense as operatio
other real estate owned ("OREQ").

Premises and Equipmer: Land is carried at cost. Premises and equipmentsiated at cost less accumulated depreciatiopreDition i
included in noninterest expense and is computedhenstraightine method over the estimated useful lives of élssets. Useful lives ¢
estimated to be 25 to 40 years for buildings angravements that extend the life of the originallding, ten to 20years for routine buildir
improvements, five to 15 years for furniture andipment, two to five years for computer hardward aoftware and no greater than fgear:
on automobiles. The cost of maintenance and rejzadisarged to expense as incurred and signifiepdirs are capitalized.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets Goodwill represents the excess of cost over #ievialue of the net assets of businesses acq
Goodwill and other intangible assets acquired ipuechase business combination and determined te havindefinite useful life are r
amortized, but instead tested for impairment astlemnually. The Company has selected Decembes3headate to perform the anr
impairment test. Intangible assets with definitefuklives are amortized over their estimated usefas to their estimated residual values.
annual impairment analysis of goodwill includesnitigcation of reporting units, the determinatiohtbe carrying value of each reporting u
including the existing goodwill and intangible assand estimating
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NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

the fair value of each reporting unit. The Compasntified one significant reporting unitbanking operations. The Company determine:
fair value of our reporting unit and compared it carrying amount. If the carrying amount ofeparting unit exceeds its fair value, we
required to perform a second step to the impairrrestt

Our annual impairment analysis as of December 811 2indicated that the step two analysis was sacgslt was determined that the imp
value of goodwill was less than the carrying ampant the Company reduced the full carrying amofigoodwill with a charge to earnings.

Core deposit intangible assets (“CDI'gre recognized apart from goodwill at the time ofjsition based on valuations preparec
independent third parties or other estimates offalue. In preparing such valuations, variableshsas deposit servicing costs, attrition r:
and market discount rates are considered. CDIsaasetamortized to expense over their useful lives.

Bank Owned Life Insurance The Company has purchased life insurance policieseatain key executives. The Company owned lifeiianc
is recorded at the amount that can be realizedruhdeinsurance contract at the balance sheet whieh is the cash surrender value adju
for other charges or other amounts due that areale at settlement.

Long-Term Assets Premises and equipment, core deposit and otkemgible assets, and other lotegm assets are reviewed for impairn
when events indicate that their carrying amount matybe recoverable from future undiscounted chsist If impaired, the assets are recol
at fair value.

Loan Commitments and Related Financial Instrument Financial instruments include off-balansieeet credit instruments, such
commitments to make loans and commercial lettersredlit, issued to meet customer financing needi® fhce amount for these ite
represents the exposure to loss, before considetsigmer collateral or ability to repay. Such fio@l instruments are recorded when the)
funded.

Income Taxes: Income tax expense is the total of the curremtr yjpcome tax due or refundable and the changeeferigbd tax assets &
liabilities. Under GAAP, a deferred tax asset vahraallowance is required to be recognized isitmore likely than notthat the deferred ti
asset will not be realized. The determination & thalizability of the deferred tax assets is highlibjective and dependent upon judgr
concerning managemestevaluation of both positive and negative evidetice forecasts of future taxable income, applieabk plannin
strategies, and assessments of current and futare@mic and business conditions. The Company cerssiabth positive and negative evide
regarding the ultimate realizability of our defetrax assets. Examples of positive evidence mdudecthe existence, if any, of taxes pai
available carryback years and the likelihood that taxable incorieb® generated in future periods. Examples ofatieg evidence may inclu
a cumulative loss in the current year and prior ywears and negative general business and econmenitst Deferred tax assets and liabil
are measured using enacted tax rates expecteglyp taptaxable income in the years in which thommporary differences are expected t
recovered or settled. The effect on deferred taetasand liabilities of a change in tax rates gaized in income in the period of
enactment date.

Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuatiowatfioe when, in the opinion of management, it iseritely than not that some portion, or
of the deferred tax asset will not be realizedageessing the realization of deferred tax assetsagement evaluates both positive and ne¢
evidence, including the existence of any cumulatosses in the current year and the prior two yetles amount of taxes paid in availe
carryback years, the forecasts of future income, taking account applicable tax planning strategies, assessments of current and fu
economic and business conditions. This analysispidated quarterly and adjusted as necessary. Aerbleer 31, 2013 and 201_2afte
considering both positive and negative evidenae Qbmpany determined that a full valuation alloveafur deferred tax assets was required.

Retirement Plans: Employee 401(k) and profit sharing plan expersséhe amount of matching contributions and any ahdiscretionar
contribution made at the discretion of the ComparBoard of Directors. Deferred compensation expatiseates the benefits over year:
service.

Employee Stock Ownership Plar‘ESOP”) : The cost of shares issued to the ESOP, but notlj@tated to participants, is shown ¢
reduction of stockholderstquity. Compensation expense is based on the mariat of shares as they are committed to be reteds
participant accounts. Dividends on allocated ESR¥Pes reduce retained earnings; dividends on uedd&B8OP shares reduce debt and ac
interest.

Earnings (Loss) Per Common Shar: Basic earnings (loss) per common share is neiniec(loss) divided by the weighted average numt
common shares outstanding during the period. ES@es are considered outstanding for this calaratinless unearned. Diluted earn|



(loss) per common share is net income (loss) di/lWethe weighted average number of common
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NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

shares outstanding during the period plus the iddueffect of restricted stock shares and the amidit potential shares issuable under <
options.

Loss Contingencie: Loss contingencies, including claims and legaibas arising in the ordinary course of business,racorded as liabiliti
when the likelihood of loss is probable and an amha@u range of loss can be reasonably estimatedalyiement does not believe that there
such matters that will have a material effect anfthancial statements as of December 31, 2013 .

Restrictions on Casl: Cash on hand or on deposit with the Federal ResBank which is required to meet regulatory reseamd clearin
requirements, based on a percentage of deposits.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments: Fair values of financial instruments are estirdaising relevant market value information and ¢
assumptions, as more fully disclosed in a sepawatie. Fair value estimates involve uncertaintieds matters of significant judgment regarc
interest rates, credit risk, prepayments, and ddwors, especially in the absence of broad marketparticular items. Changes in assump:
or in market conditions could significantly affébe estimates.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net iredloss) and other comprehensive income (loss)et
comprehensive income (loss) includes unrealizeshsgand losses on securities, which are also rezednas separate component:
stockholders’ equity.

Stocl-based CompensationCompensation cost is recognized for stock options rastricted stock awards issued to employeegdbas th
fair value of these awards at the date of grané BlackScholes model is utilized to estimate the fair gabdi stock options, while the mar
price of the Compang’ common stock at the date of grant is used fdrictsd stock awards. Compensation cost is receghiwer the require
service period, generally defined as the vestingpgde

Transfers of Financial AssetsTransfers of financial assets are accounted fosadess when control over the assets has been ridhvey
Control over transferred assets is deemed to lrermigred when the assets have been isolated frer@ampany, the transferee obtains
right (free of conditions that constrain it fronkitag advantage of that right) to pledge or exchahgetransferred assets, and the Company
not maintain effective control over the transferasdets through an agreement to repurchase theme bkéir maturity.

Operating SegmentsWhile management monitors the revenue streams eofvéttious products and services, operations areageahan
financial performance is evaluated on a Compaide basis. Operating results are not reviewed dnics management to make reso!
allocation or performance decisions. Accordinglyoéthe financial service operations are consédeby management to be aggregated ir
reportable operating segment.

Reclassifications: Certain reclassifications have been made in the pear’s financial statements to conform to therent yeais presentatior
Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

In July 2013, the FASB amended existing guidandated to the presentation of an unrecognized taefitewhen a net operating lc
carryforward, a similar tax loss or a tax creditrgiorward exists. These amendments provide thatraecognized tax benefit, or a pori
thereof, be presented in the financial statementsraduction to a deferred tax asset for a natatipg loss carryforward, a similar tax loss,
tax credit carryforward, except to the extent thaiet operating loss carryforward, a similar tass|mr a tax credit carryforward is not availi
at the reporting date to settle any additional inedaxes that would result from disallowance ofvaosition, or the tax law does not req
the entity to use, and the entity does not intendige, the deferred tax asset for such purposs,tttee unrecognized tax benefit shoulc
presented as a liability. Early adoption and regteasive application is permitted. The effect of piilog this standard did not have a mat
effect on the Company's operating results or firdroondition.

In February 2013, the FASB amended existing guidaretated to reporting amounts reclassified oubtber comprehensive income ou
accumulated other comprehensive income. These amamd do not change the current requirements foortieg net income or oth
comprehensive income in financial statements. Thesendments require an entity to provide infornmaibout the amounts reclassified ot
accumulated other comprehensive income by compoheatdition, an entity is required to presenthei on the face of the statement wil
net income is presented or in the notes, signifieamounts reclassified out of accumulated otherprelmensive income by the respective
items of net income but only if the amount reclfdiis required under U.S. GAAP to be reclassifiechet income in its entirety in the se
reporting period. For other amounts that are ngtired under U.S. GAAP to be reclassified in tlegitirety to net income, an entity is requ



to cross-reference to other
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NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

disclosures required under U.S. GAAP that providditeonal details about those amounts. These amenthrare effective prospectively
interim and annual reporting periods beginningraftecember 31, 2012. The effect of adopting thesmdard did not have a material effec
the Company's operating results or financial caolit

NOTE 2 - EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

Amounts reported in loss per share reflect losdlabda to common stockholders for the period diddey the weighted average numbe
shares of common stock outstanding during the gesgclusive of unearned ESOP shares and unvesséricted stock shares. Stock opti
and restricted stock are regarded as potential aamstock and are considered in the diluted earniegsshare calculations to the extent
they would have a dilutive effect if converted tmmamon stock.

For the years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

Net income (loss) available to common stockholders $ 3,29¢ % (27,109 ¢ (48,69¢)
Average common shares outstanding 21,091,39 21,072,96 21,072,96
Less:

Unearned ESOP shares (1,054,14) (1,182,49) (1,294,47)

Unvested restricted stock shares (16,42 (1,959 (8,465
Weighted average common shares outstanding 20,020,83 19,888,51 19,770,02

Add - Net effect of dilutive stock options and ustex restricted stock 4,48: — —
Weighted average dilutive common shares outstanding 20,025,32 19,888,51 19,770,02
Basic earnings (loss) per common share $ 0.1¢ $ (1.3¢) $ (2.46)
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share $ 0.1¢ $ (1.3¢) $ (2.4¢€)
Number of antidilutive stock options excluded frime diluted earnings per share

calculation — — 2,075,55:
Weighted average exercise price of anti-dilutivéapshares $ — 8 — ¢ 16.5¢
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NOTE 3 - SECURITIES

The fair value of securities and the related gros®alized gains and losses recognized in accuetltther comprehensive income (loss)

follows:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

December 31, 2013
Certificates of deposit $ 65,01C $ — 3 — 3 65,01(
Municipal securities 18C 7 — 187
Equity mutual fund 50C — 3 497
Mortgage-backed securities - residential 27,22¢ 1,29¢ (160) 28,36¢
Collateralized mortgage obligations - residential 16,85 35 (72 16,81«
SBA-guaranteed loan participation certificates 35 — — 35

$ 109,80! $ 1,337 % (23%) ¢ 110,90
December 31, 2012
Certificates of deposit $ 33,45¢ $ — ¢ — 3 33,45¢
Municipal securities 35C 19 — 36¢
Equity mutual fund 50C 28 — 52¢
Mortgage-backed securities - residential 32,57: 1,661 — 34,23:
Collateralized mortgage obligations - residential 9,111 95 ()] 9,20¢
SBA-guaranteed loan participation certificates 42 — — 42

$ 76,03. $ 1,80 $ 2 % 77,83

Mortgage-backed securities and collateralized namggobligations reflected in the preceding tableevigsued by U.S. governmesponsore
entities and agencies, Freddie Mac, Fannie MaeGindie Mae, and are obligations which the governnies affirmed its commitment
support. All securities reflected in the precedialgle were classified as available-for-sale at rdwr 31, 2013 and 2012 .

The amortized cost and fair values of securitieBetember 31, 2018y contractual maturity are shown below. Securities due at a sing
maturity date are shown separately. Expected ntiggimnay differ from contractual maturities becabeerowers may have the right to cal

prepay obligations with or without call or prepaympenalties.

December 31, 2013

Amortized Fair
Cost Value
Due in one year or less $ 65,19C $ 65,19’
Equity mutual fund 50C 497
Mortgage-backed securities - residential 27,22¢ 28,36¢
Collateralized mortgage obligations - residential 16,85 16,81«
SBA-guaranteed loan participation certificates 35 35
$ 109,80! $ 110,90°

Investment securities available for sale with cagyamounts of $8.0 million and $9.4 million at Beaber 31, 2013 and 2012espectively

were pledged as collateral on customer repurchgtgements and for other purposes as required orifped by law.
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Sales of securities were as follows:

Proceeds
Gross gains
Gross losses

Securities with unrealized losses at December 313 2nd 2012 not recognized in income are as fallow

December 31, 2013
Equity mutual fund

Mortgage-backed securities - resident
Collateralized mortgage obligations -

residential

December 31, 2012

Collateralized mortgage obligations -

residential

Less than 12 Months

BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Table amounts in thousands, except share anchpez data)

For the years ended December 31,

12 Months or More

Unrealized
Loss

2012 2011
— % 9,677
Total
Fair Unrealized
Value Loss

$

Q) ¢
(160)

(72)

$

(235) $

— $

497 $ 3)
2,80¢ (160)
11,23: (72)
14,53t $ (235)
1,95¢ $ 2

The Company evaluates marketable investment sesuvitith significant declines in fair value on aagierly basis to determine whether t
should be considered other-themporarily impaired under current accounting gog which generally provides that if a marketedgeurity
is in an unrealized loss position, whether dueeioegal market conditions or industry or issspecific factors, the holder of the securities t

assess whether the impairment is other-than-temypora

An equity mutual fund and certain residential maggbacked securities and collateralized mortgage atitigs that the Company holds in
investment portfolio were in an unrealized lossitpms at December 31, 201,3ut the unrealized loss was not considered sggmif under th
Companys impairment testing methodology. In addition, Bempany does not intend to sell these securitied, iais not likely that th

Company will be required to sell the securitiesobeftheir anticipated recovery occurs.
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE

Loans receivable are as follows:

December 31,

2013 2012
One-to-four family residential real estate $ 201,38: $ 218,59t
Multi-family mortgage 396,05¢ 352,01¢
Nonresidential real estate 263,56 264,67:
Construction and land 6,57( 8,55z
Commercial loans 54,25t 61,38¢
Commercial leases 187,11. 139,78:
Consumer 2,313 2,74~
1,111,26. 1,047,75!
Net deferred loan origination costs 97C 745
Allowance for loan losses (14,159 (18,03%)
Loans, net $ 1,098,07 $ 1,030,46!

Loan Origination/Risk ManagementThe Company has certain lending policies and pnaeedin place that are designed to maximize
income within an acceptable level of risk. The Camypreviews and approves these policies and proesdn a periodic basis. A report
system supplements the review process by providiagagement with frequent reports related to loadywetion, loan quality, concentratic
of credit, loan delinquencies and nonperforming paténtial problem loans. The Company requires titsurance insuring the priority of «
lien, fire and extended coverage casualty insuraame, if appropriate, flood insurance, in ordeptotect our security interest in the underl

property.

The majority of the loans the Company originates iavestment and business loans (mfaltiily, nonresidential real estate, commer
construction and land loans, and commercial leagegddition, we originate one-four family residential mortgage loans and consulo@ns
and purchase and sell loan participations fromioagme. The following briefly describes our pripal loan products.

The Company originates real estate loans pringifgtured by first liens on nonresidential reahtestThe nonresidential real estate prope
are predominantly office buildings, light industriauildings, shopping centers and mixese developments and, to a lesser extent,

specialized properties such as nursing homes drat bealthcare facilities. The Company may, frometito time, purchase commercial

estate loan participations.

Multi-family mortgage loans generally are securgdulti-family rental properties such as apartment builgijrigcluding subsidized apartm
units. In general, loan amounts range between $280nd $3.0 million . Approximately 2286 the collateral is located outside of our prin
market area; however, we do not have a concentratiany single market outside of our primary matkeritory. In underwriting multfamily
mortgage loans, the Company considers a numbeactdrs, which include the projected net cash flovthe loans debt service requiremi
(generally requiring a minimum ratio of 115% forilts below $400,000 and 120% for loans above $400,0he age and condition of 1
collateral, the financial resources and income llefghe borrower and the borrowsrexperience in owning or managing similar props
Multi-family mortgage loans are generally origimdt@ amounts up to 80%f the appraised value of the property securingldbe. Person
guarantees are usually obtained from multi-famiyrtgage borrowers.

Loans secured by multi-family mortgages generallyolve a greater degree of credit risk than ondotw-family residential mortgage loa
and carry larger loan balances. This increaseditcrist is a result of several factors, includifgetconcentration of principal in a limi
number of loans and borrowers, the effects of g@neronomic conditions on income producing propsrtiand the increased difficulty
evaluating and monitoring these types of loanstifleumore, the repayment of loans secured by rfartily mortgages typically depends uj
the successful operation of the related real egiatperty. If the cash flow from the project is wedd below acceptable thresholds,
borrower’s ability to repay the loan may be impdire

The Company emphasizes nonresidential real estats lwith initial principal balances between $280,and $3.0 million Substantially all ¢
our nonresidential real estate loans are securguidperties located in our primary market area. Thepany’s
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

nonresidential real estate loans are generallytemrias three - or five -year adjustabdée mortgages or mortgages with balloon maturibif
three or five years. Amortization on these loangy/@cally based on 20 - to 25 -year schedules. Chmpany also originates some &al
fixed-rate, fully amortizing loans.

In the underwriting of nonresidential real estatens, the Company generally lends up to 80% opthperty’s appraised value. Decisions
lend are based on the economic viability of thepprty as the primary source of repayment and teditwvorthiness of the borrower.
evaluating a proposed commercial real estate anemphasize the ratio of the property’s projecteticash flow to the loas’'debt servic
requirement (generally requiring a minimum ratiol@0%), computed after deduction for a vacancy factat property expenses we de
appropriate. Personal guarantees are usually @gtdiom nonresidential real estate borrowers.

Nonresidential real estate loans generally carghdui interest rates and have shorter terms thasetbo on- to fourfamily residentic
mortgage loans. Nonresidential real estate loamwetier, entail significant additional credit riskempared to one- to fodamily residentic
mortgage loans, as they typically involve largemidoalances concentrated with single borrowersargs of related borrowers. In addition,
payment of loans secured by incopr@ducing properties typically depends on the ss&ft operation of the related real estate pr@ectthu
may be subject to a greater extent to adverse tionslin the real estate market and in the gerem@homy.

The Company makes various types of secured anccureske commercial loans to customers in our markead #or the purpose of financi
equipment acquisition, expansion, working capitad ather general business purposes. The termesé tlhans generally range from less
one year to five years. The loans are either natgmtion a fixedate basis or carry adjustable interest rates iedlé® (i) a lending rate that
determined internally, or (ii) a short-term markate index.

Commercial credit decisions are based upon ouitaesessment of the loan applicant. The Compatgrm@es the applicarg’ability to repa
in accordance with the proposed terms of the I we assess the risks involved. An evaluatiomasle of the applicant to determ
character and capacity to manage. Personal guasnfethe principals are usually obtained. In addito evaluating the loan applicant’
financial statements, we consider the adequacheftimary and secondary sources of repaymenthfoitdan. Credit agency reports of
applicant’s credit history supplement our analgdithe applicans creditworthiness and at times are supplementtdinguiries to other ban
and trade investigations. Collateral supportingeused transaction also is analyzed to determimérketability. Commercial business Ic
generally have higher interest rates than residehdans of like duration because they have a higis& of default since their repaym
generally depends on the successful operationeobtiirowers business and the sufficiency of any collateretify of commercial loans
based primarily on the credit risk of the borroweith due consideration given to borrowers with riympiate deposit relationships.

The Company also lends money to small and siid-leasing companies for equipment financingdsa&enerally, commercial leases
secured by an assignment by the leasing compatiyeolease payments and by a secured interest inghment being leased. The le:
acknowledges our security interest in the leasadpetent and agrees to send lease payments directls. Consequently, the Comp
underwrites lease loans by examining the creditwmogess of the lessee rather than the lessor. LUeass generally are namcourse to tt
leasing company.

The Companys commercial leases are secured primarily by tdolggcequipment, medical equipment, material hamdéquipment and oth
capital equipment. Lessees tend to be publiclyetdlacbmpanies with investmegtade rated debt or companies that have not igsulglit deb
and therefore do not have a public debt rating. Tohepany requires that a minimum of 5@¥%our commercial lessees have an invest
grade public debt rating by Moodybr Standard & Poors, or the equivalent. CommeElesses to these entities have a maximum mataf
seven years and a maximum outstanding credit expagi$15.0 millionto any single entity. Lessees without public delbings generally ha
net worth in excess of $25.0 milliorif the lessee does not have a public debt rathrey, are subject to the same internal credit amals an
other customer. Commercial leases to these lessamsa maximum maturity of five years and a maxinoutstanding credit exposure $6.(
million to any single entity. In addition, the Coamy will originate commercial leases to lesseed Wwitlowinvestment grade public dt
ratings, but these leases are limited to 10% oftourmercial lease portfolio and have a maximumtantting credit exposure of $3a@llion to
any single entity. Lease loans are almost alwaly &imortizing, with fixed interest rates.

Although the Company does not actively originatastauction and land loans presently, constructiot land loans generally consist of i
acquisition loans to help finance the purchasauod lintended for further development, including&rfamily homes, multfamily housing an
commercial income property, development loans titddbrs in our market area to finance improvementseial estate, consisting mostly
single-family subdivisions, typically to financeetleost of utilities, roads, sewers
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

and other development costs. These builders géyneedy on the sale of singlamily homes to repay development loans, althoughami
cases the improved building lots may be sold totlarobuilder, often in conjunction with developméoans. Construction and land lo
typically involve a higher degree of credit rislathfinancing on improved, owneccupied real estate. The risk of loss on consom@nd lan
loans is largely dependent upon the accuracy ofnitial appraisal of the property’value upon completion of construction or develeptmthe
estimated cost of construction, including interest;] the estimated time to complete and/or sekase such property. The Company see
minimize these risks by maintaining consistent iegdpolicies and underwriting standards. Howevethée estimate of value proves to
inaccurate, the cost of completion is greater thgmected, the length of time to complete and/draselease the collateral property is gre
than anticipated, or if there is a downturn in kbeal economy or real estate market, the propesticchave a value upon completion the
insufficient to assure full repayment of the lodinis could have a material adverse effect on thalityuof the construction and land Ic
portfolio, and could result in significant lossesdelinquencies.

The Company offers conforming and non-conformiixgd-rate and adjustable-rate residential mortdages with maturities of up to 3@ar:
and maximum loan amounts generally of up to $2iani. The Company currently offers fixadte conventional mortgage loans with te
of 10 to 30 years that are fully amortizing with miitly payments, and adjustabige conventional mortgage loans with initial termhdetwee
one and five years that amortize up to 30 yeare-@mfourfamily residential mortgage loans are generallyamaditten according to Fant
Mae guidelines, and loans that conform to suchejinds are referred to as “conforming loans.” TlemPany generally originates both fixed:
and adjustable-rate loans in amounts up to the maxi conforming loan limits as established by Famiée, which is currently $417,0G6r
single-family homes. Private mortgage insuranaedgiired for first mortgage loans with loan-to-v@ahatios in excess of 80% .

The Company also originates loans above conforriinigs, sometimes referred to as “jumbo loarthdt have been underwritten to the cr
standards of Fannie Mae. These loans are genaiaiple for sale to various firms that specialinethe purchase of such naoenforming
loans. In the Chicago metropolitan area, largadesgial loans are not uncommon. The Company aigpnates loans at higher rates that dc
fully meet the credit standards of Fannie Mae betdeemed to be acceptable risks.

The primary markets served by the Company have gemtually broadening signs of stability amid wislesad economic weakness and |
unemployment. The ability of the Compasyborrowers to repay their loans, and the valu¢hefcollateral securing such loans, coul
adversely impacted by a return to economic weakimeiss local markets as a result of unemploymdatlining real estate values, or incre:
residential and office vacancies. This not onlyldaesult in the Company experiencing chaodfs-and/or nonperforming assets, but also ¢
necessitate an increase in the provision for lossds. These events, if they were to recur, woale lan adverse impact on the Company
results of operations and its capital.
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The following tables present the balance in thevadince for loan losses and the loans receivablmbtjolio segment and based on impairn
method:

Allowance for loan losses Loan Balances
Individually Purchased Collectively Individually Purchased Collectively
evaluated for impaired evaluated for evaluated for impaired evaluated for
impairment loans impairment Total impairment loans impairment Total
December 31, 2013
One-to-four family
residential real estate $ 26 $ 5 ¢ 3817 $ 384t $ 369z % 10C $ 197,59C $ 201,38
Multi-family mortgage 25t — 4,18¢ 4,444 7,031 — 389,02° 396,05¢
Nonresidential real estate 77 — 3,65¢ 3,73¢ 4,381 1,63: 257,55: 263,56
Construction and land 12 — 381 393 38: — 6,187 6,57(
Commercial loans — — 731 731 — 23 54,23: 54,25¢
Commercial leases — — 94¢€ 94¢€ — — 187,11. 187,11.
Consumer — — 57 57 77 — 2,24( 2,317
$ 37C % 5 ¢ 13,77¢ $ 14,15 $ 1556¢ $ 1,75¢ $ 1,093,94. 1,111,26.
Net deferred loan origination costs 97C
Allowance for loan losses (14,15¢)
Loans, net $ 1,098,07
Allowance for loan losses Loan Balances
Individually Collectively Individually Collectively
evaluated Purchased evaluated evaluated Purchase evaluated
for impaired for for impaired for
impairment loans impairment Total impairment loans impairment Total
December 31, 2012
One-to-four family
residential real estate $ 137 % 5 $ 458/ $ 472t $ 525¢ % 38C $ 212,96( $ 218,59
Multi-family mortgage 72¢ — 3,851 4,58( 4,801 — 347,21¢ 352,01¢
Nonresidential real estate 401 8 5,13¢ 5,54¢ 11,91¢ 2,56¢ 250,18t 264,67.
Construction and land 294 96 641 1,031 2,21( 1,021 5,321 8,552
Commercial loans 23 1 1,30C 1,32¢ 25€ 20 61,11: 61,38t¢
Commercial leases — — 66€ 66€ — — 139,78: 139,78:
Consumer — — 163 163 — — 2,74¢ 2,74¢
$ 1,58¢ 11C $ 16,34. $ 18,03t $ 2444. $ 3,98 $ 1,019,322 1,047,75'
Net deferred loan origination costs 74E
Allowance for loan losses (18,03%)
Loans, net $ 1,030,46
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Activity in the allowance for loan losses is adduls:

For the years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

Beginning balance $ 18,03t $ 31,72¢ $ 22,18(

Loans charged offs:
One-to-four family residential real estate (1,50%) (22,36¢€) (5,316
Multi-family mortgage (1,832 (7,209 (3,519
Nonresidential real estate (577) (18,167 (69¢)
Construction and land (9439) (4,31)) (2,519
Commercial loans (42%) (4,960 (1,399
Commercial leases — (127 (72
Consumer (55) (209 (93
(5,337) (47,237 (13,60¢)

Recoveries:

One-to-four family residential real estate 447 233 51
Multi-family mortgage 23€ 53¢ 12t
Nonresidential real estate 51¢ 32¢ 73
Construction and land 463 25C —
Commercial loans 47C 62€ 17:
Consumer 8 42 7
2,14: 2,01¢ 42¢
Net charge-off (3,199 (45,219 (23,177
Provision for (recovery of) loan losses (687) 31,52: 22,72
Ending balance $ 14,15: $ 18,03: $ 31,72¢

Impaired loans

Several of the following disclosures are presebiettecorded investment,” which the FASB definesth® amount of the investment in a Ic
which is not net of a valuation allowance, but whitoes reflect any direct write-down of the investta” The following represents t
components of recorded investment:

Loan principal balance

Less unapplied payments

Plus negative unapplied balance

Less escrow balance

Plus negative escrow balance

Plus unamortized net deferred loan costs
Less unamortized net deferred loan fees
Plus unamortized premium

Less unamortized discount

Less previous charge-offs

Plus recorded accrued interest

Less reserve for uncollected interest

= Recorded investment
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The following table presents loans individually exeded for impairment by class loans, excludingchased impaired loans:

Allowance Average
for Loan Investment Interest
Loan Recorded Partial Losses in Impaired Income
Balance Investment Charge-off Allocated Loans Recognized
December 31, 2013
With no related allowance recorded
One-to-four family residential real estate $ 365¢ $ 254C $ 1,102 $ — $ 3,69 $ 20
One-to-four family residential real estate - nonrewoccupied 87t 70€ 137 — 591 —
Multi-family mortgage 5,46¢ 4,44¢ 4 — 6,09¢ 27
Wholesale commercial lending — — — — 30¢€ —
Nonresidential real estate 4,062 3,31: 253 — 4,05¢ 33
Land 274 263 8 — 16¢ —
Commercial loans - secured 77 77 — — 83 —
14,41( 11,34¢ 1,504 — 14,99 80
With an allowance recorded
One-to-four family residential real estate - nonrewoccupied 49( 43¢ 38 26 39:¢ 2
Multi-family mortgage 3,14¢ 2,541 573 25E 2,99¢ 12t
Nonresidential real estate 1,34: 1,04¢ 25k 77 2,14¢ 15
Land 18C 11¢ 6C 12 1,26t —
5,157 4,14¢ 92¢ 37C 6,80 14z

$ 19,567 $ 1549 $ 2,43( $ 37C $ 21,79¢ $ 222
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Allowance Average
for Loan Investment Interest
Loan Recorded Partial Losses in Impaired Income
Balance Investment Charge-off Allocated Loans Recognized
December 31, 2012
With no related allowance recorded
One-to-four family residential real estate $ 525( $ 421¢ $ 1,027 $ — $ 281z § 14¢
One-to-four family residential real estate - nonrewoccupied 567 534 34 — 4,32 a0
Multi-family mortgage 2,95¢ 2,10¢ 81¢ — 9,30z 18¢
Nonresidential real estate 11,85( 9,22( 2,49( — 6,21¢ 347
Commercial loans - unsecured 52¢ 52 a77 — 25 21
21,15t 16,12¢ 4,84 — 22,68: 79€
With an allowance recorded
One-to-four family residential real estate - nonrewoccupied 62€ 49¢ 12¢ 137 1,99¢ 13
Multi-family mortgage 3,18 2,64t 521 72¢ 6,562 20
Nonresidential real estate 2,82¢ 2,54¢ 26¢€ 401 21,077 20
Land 3,812 2,21( 1,60z 294 2,93: 112
Commercial loans - secured 38¢ 204 182 23 1,84¢ —
10,83: 8,107 2,69¢ 1,58¢ 34,41° 16€

$ 31,98¢ $ 2423t $ 754 $ 158/ $ 57,09¢ $ 962

Purchased Impaired Loans
As a result of its acquisition of Downers Grove iNaal Bank, the Company holds purchased loans fhiclwthere was evidence

deterioration of credit quality since originationdafor which it was probable that all contractuatbguired payments would not be collecte
of the date of the acquisition. The carrying amafrthese purchased impaired loans is as follows:

December 31,

2013 2012

One-to—four family residential real estate $ 10C $ 38C
Nonresidential real estate 1,63: 2,56¢
Land — 1,021
Commercial loans 23 20
Outstanding balance $ 1,75¢ $ 3,98¢
Carrying amount, net of allowance

($5 at December 31, 2013, $110 at December 31,)2012 $ 1,751 % 3,87¢
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Accretable yield, or income expected to be collgctelated to purchased impaired loans is as faliow

For the years ended Decembe

31,
2013 2012
Beginning balance $ 19¢ $ 2,27(
Disposals — 74E
Reclassifications from nonaccretable difference 35 —
Accretion of income 194 1,32¢
Ending balance $ 37 % 19¢

For the above purchased impaired loans, the Comgaoseased the allowance for loan losses by $105@0the year endeBecember 3:
2013 and increased the allowance for loan loss& 9,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012 .

Purchased impaired loans for which it was probablie date of acquisition that all contractuaiguired payments would not be collectec
as follows:

December 31,

2013 2012
Contractually required payments receivable of Igaunshased
One-to-four family residential real estate $ 83z $ 1,14z
Nonresidential real estate 1,99¢ 3,88¢
Land — 1,60(
Commercial loans 222 597

$ 3,05: $ 7,224

At acquisition, cash flows expected to be colleatede $18.8 million , compared to the fair valugpafchased impaired loans of $15.4 million
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Nonaccrual loans

The following table presents the recorded investiirenonaccrual and loans past due over 90 day®staccrual by class of loans, excluc
purchased impaired loans:

Loans Past
Due Over 90
Recorded Days, still
Loan Balance Investment accruing

December 31, 2013
One-to-four family residential real estate $ 3,51¢ $ 3,49¢ $ —
One-to-four family residential real estate — nomewoccupied 1,19C 1,14: —
Multi-family mortgage 8,14: 7,09¢ 22¢
Nonresidential real estate 4,74¢ 4,21 —
Land 387 382 —
Commercial loans — secured 77 77 —
Consumer 12 12 —

$ 18,07 $ 16,42: $ 22¢
December 31, 2012
One-to-four family residential real estate $ 7,28¢ $ 6,15¢ $ 70
One-to-four family residential real estate — nomewoccupied 1,42( 1,14t —
Multi-family mortgage 5,24¢ 3,517 24z
Nonresidential real estate 12,24¢ 8,98t —
Land 3,817 2,21( —
Commercial loans — secured 38¢€ 204 —
Commercial loans — unsecured 552 52 17

$ 30,95¢ $ 22,267 $ 32¢

Nonaccrual loans and impaired loans are definddreifitly. Some loans may be included in both caiegpand some may only be include
one category. Nonaccrual loans include both smbhiéance homogeneous loans that are collectivedjuated for impairment and individue
classified impaired loans.

The Company’s reserve for uncollected loan intenezt $1.3 million and $942,000 at December 31, 20182012 respectively. Except f
purchased impaired loans, when a loan is onawmmual status and the ultimate collectability lod total principal of an impaired loan is
doubt, all payments are applied to principal unither cost recovery method. Alternatively, when anlég on noraccrual status but there
doubt concerning only the ultimate collectabilifyimterest, contractual interest is credited t@iast income only when received, under the
basis method pursuant to the provisions of FASB A30-10, as applicable. In all cases, the average baedaare calculated based on
month—end balances of the financing receivablelsimthe period reported pursuant to the provismSASB ASC 310-10, as applicable.
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Past Due Loans

The following tables presents the aging of the rded investment in past due loans at December@li3 By class of loans:

90 Days or
30-59 Days 60-89 Days Greater Total Past Loans Not
Past Due Past Due Past Due Due Past Due Total

One-to-four family residential real estate $ 751 $ 424 $ 2,87¢ % 4,051 $ 142,05¢ $ 146,10¢
One-to-four family residential real estate -

non-owner occupied 90t 96( 1,86t 52,67¢ 54,54
Multi-family mortgage 2,19: 1,71¢ 6,354 10,26: 303,90¢ 314,16t
Wholesale commercial lending — — — 78,53 78,53:
Nonresidential real estate 4,43: 1,36: 3,96¢ 9,76¢ 249,19: 258,95¢
Construction — — — 2,48¢ 2,48¢
Land — 382 382 3,68¢ 4,06¢
Commercial loans:

Secured 9 — 15,97 15,98(

Unsecured 25 — 25 4,113 4,142

Municipal loans — — — 2,84¢ 2,84¢

Warehouse lines — — — 1,927 1,927

Health care — — — 19,38: 19,38:

Aviation — — — 1,102 1,102

Other — — — 9,00¢ 9,00¢
Commercial leases:

Investment rated commercial leases — — — 147,37: 147,37:

Below investment grade 8 — 8 14,73¢ 14,747

Non-rated — — — 23,17¢ 23,17¢

Lease pools — — — 3,011 3,011
Consumer 3 4 11 2,313 2,32¢
Total $ 8,32¢ $ 3,50 $ 1454 $ 26,37¢ $ 1,077,500 $ 1,103,87!

90 Days or
30-59 Days 60-89 Days Greater Total Past Loans Not
Past Due Past Due Past Due Due Past Due Total

Purchased impaired loans
One-to-four family residential real estate

- non-owner occupied $ — 3 — 3 10C % 10C — % 10C
Nonresidential real estate — — 1,631 1,631 — 1,631
Commercial loans — secured — — 23 23 — 23

$ — 3 — % 1,75¢ % 1,75¢ — % 1,75¢
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The following tables presents the aging of the réed investment in past due loans as December(32, By class of loans:

Greater than

30-59 Days 60-89 Days 90 Days Past Total Past Loans Not
Past Due Past Due Due Due Past Due Total
One-to-four family residential real estate $ 1,58¢ $ 77¢ $ 446 $ 6,82t $ 153,27¢ $ 160,10:
One-to-four family residential real estate -
non-owner occupied 85t 57¢ 24¢ 1,68: 55,90¢ 57,58¢
Multi-family mortgage 5,39: 3,04¢ 3,21¢ 11,66( 291,10¢ 302,76
Wholesale commercial lending 1,481 — — 1,481 44,34: 45,82
Nonresidential real estate 863 39¢ 5,50¢ 6,76¢ 252,36¢ 259,13
Construction — —
Land 702 1,22( 63C 2,557 4,95¢ 7,50¢
Commercial loans:
Secured 65¢ 3 204 86¢€ 22,33t 23,20:
Unsecured 81 78 1€ 17t 5,77¢ 5,94¢
Municipal loans — — — — 4,75z 4,75z
Warehouse lines — — — — 2,98¢ 2,98¢
Health care — — — — 17,60: 17,60:
Other — — — — 6,971 6,971
Commercial leases:
Investment rated commercial leases — — — — 102,72 102,72
Below investment grade — — — — 9,29 9,29
Non-rated — — — — 25,657 25,657
Lease pools — — — — 3,02¢ 3,02¢
Consumer 15 — — 15 2,741 2,75¢€
$ 11,63 $ 6,10¢ $ 14,28¢ $ 32,02¢ $ 1,00582° $ 1,037,85.
90 Days or
30-59 Days 60-89 Days Greater Total Past Loans Not
Past Due Past Due Past Due Due Past Due Total
Purchased impaired loans
One-to-four family residential real
estate - non-owner occupied  $ 327 % — 53 % 38C $ — 8 38C
Nonresidential real estate — — 1,12¢ 1,12¢ 1,44: 2,56¢
Land — — 1,021 1,021 — 1,021
Commercial loans — secured — — 20 20 — 20
$ 327 $ — 8 2,21¢ $ 2,54¢ $ 1,447 $ 3,98¢
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Troubled Debt Restructurings

The Company evaluates loan extensions or modificatin accordance with FASB ASC 3H@-with respect to the classification of the loa
a TDR. In general, if the Company grants a loaremsion or modification to a borrower for other tham insignificant period of time tt
includes a belowmarket interest rate, principal forgiveness, payifierbearance or other concession intended to nizeirthe economic loss
the Company, the loan extension or loan modificaisoclassified as a TDR. In cases where borroasrgranted new terms that provide f
reduction of either interest or principal then dunel payable, management measures any impairmehéaastructured loan in the same ma
as for impaired loans as noted above.

The Company had $3.3 million of TDRs at December2813 , compared to $11.2 million at December281,2 , with $53,000 an$i318,00!
in specific valuation reserves allocated at Decerlie 2013 and 2012 , respectively. The Company fadutstanding commitments
borrowers whose loans are classified as TDRs.

The following table presents loans classified a&RED

December 31,

2013 2012

One-to-four family residential real estate $ 2,09 $ 2,80z
Multi-family mortgage 51¢ 1,201
Nonresidential real estate — 5,18¢
Accrual troubled debt restructured loans 2,611 9,192
One-to-four family residential real estate 34z 767
Multi-family mortgage 384 93¢
Nonresidential real estate — 27C
Nonaccrual troubled debt restructured loans 72€ 1,97¢
$ 333 $ 11,167

During the years ending December 31, 2013 and 2€H&2terms of certain loans were modified andsifi@sl as TDRs. The modification of 1
terms of such loans included one or a combinatibthe following: a reduction of the stated intereste of the loan; an extension of
maturity date at a stated rate of interest lowantthe current market rate for new debt with similak; or a permanent reduction of
recorded investment in the loan.

The following tables present TDRs that occurredrdythe year:

For the years ended December 31,

2013 2012
Pre- Post- Pre- Post-
Modification ~ Modification Modification ~ Modification
outstanding  outstanding outstanding outstanding
Number recorded recorded Number recorded recorded
of loans investment investment of loans investment investment
One-to-four family residential real estate 7 % 124¢ $  1,24¢ 24 $ 2,091 $ 2,091
One-to-four family residential real estate -
non-owner occupied 1 71 46 — — —
Multi-family mortgage — — — 1 70C 503
Nonresidential real estate — — — 7 7,14 5,06:
8 $ 1,32 $ 1,29t 32 % 9,93t $ 7,65¢€
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Due to
permanent
Due to Due to reduction in
reduction in extension of recorded
interest rate maturity date investment Total
For the year ended December 31, 2013
One-to-four family residential real estate $ — % 1,24¢  $ 46 % 1,29t
For the year ended December 31, 2012
One-to-four family residential real estate $ 50¢ $ 1,58: $ — 3 2,091
Multi-family mortgage — — 50z 503
Nonresidential real estate — — 5,062 5,062
$ 50¢ $ 1,58: $ 556 $ 7,65¢€

The TDRs described above had no impact on intémestne, resulted in nohange to the allowance for loan losses allocatedrasulted i
charge offs of $25,000 for the year ended Decer@be2013 . The TDRs decreased interest income [B089increased the allowance for I¢
losses allocated by $62,000 and resulted in chaffgef $2.0 million during the year ended December2012 .

The following table presents TDRs for which theresva payment default within twelve months followthg modification:

For the years ended December 31,

2013 2012
Number Recorded Number Recorded
of loans investment of loans investment
One-to-four family residential real estate —  $ — 5 $ 864
Nonresidential real estate — — 4 3,30¢
— — 9 % 4,172

A loan is considered to be in payment default dhise90 days contractually past due under the fremtiterms.

The TDRs that subsequently defaulted described ealtad nomaterial impact on the allowance for loans lossesnd the year endir
December 31, 2012 .

The terms of certain other loans were modifiedrtythe year ending December 31, 2@i& did not meet the definition of a TDR. Thesanl
have a total recorded investment of $1.7 milliod 1.2 million at December 31, 2013 and 20IThe modification of these loans invol
either a modification of the terms of a loan torbarers who were not experiencing financial diffioes or a delay in a payment that
considered to be insignificant.

In order to determine whether a borrower is expeiieg financial difficulty, an evaluation is perfoed of the probability that the borrower \
be in payment default on any of its debt in theeéeeable future without the modification. This ea#ibn is performed under the Company’
internal underwriting policy.

Credit Quality Indicators:

The Company categorizes loans into risk categdmdsgd on relevant information about the abilitypofrowers to service their debt, includ
current financial information, historical paymentperience, credit documentation, public informatiand current economic trends, am
other factors. The Company analyzes loans indiVigley classifying the loans based on credit riSkis analysis includes ndmmogeneot
loans, such as commercial and commercial realeekians. This analysis is performed on a monthbisha he Company uses the follow
definitions for risk ratings:

Special Mention.A Special Mention asset has potential weaknessggitserve managemesitiose attention. If left uncorrected, tr
potential weaknesses may result in deterioratiothefrepayment prospects for the asset or in te#tution’s credit position at sor
future date. Special Mention assets are not adyecdassified and do not expose an institution wdfisient risk to warrant adver



classification.
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Substandard. Loans categorized as substandard continue to agwierest, but exhibit a wetlefined weakness or weaknesses that
jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. The loaastmue to accrue interest because they are welired and collection of principal a
interest is expected within a reasonable time. fidlerating guidance published by the Office of @emptroller of the Currency clarifi
that a loan with a weltlefined weakness does not have to present a ptitpabidefault for the loan to be rated Substaigand that ¢
individual loan’s loss potential does not have éadistinct for the loan to be rated Substandard.

Nonaccrual. An asset classified Nonaccrual has all the wealaseisdierent in one classified substandard withatided characteristic tt
the weaknesses make collection or liquidation ih @in the basis of currently existing facts, cdimtis, and values, highly questione
and improbable. The loans were placed on nonacstatils.

Loans not meeting the criteria above that are aealyndividually as part of the above describedtpss are considered “Pass” rated loans.

As of December 31, 2013, and based on the moshtremalysis performed, the risk category of Idanslass of loans is as follows:

Special
Pass Mention Substandard Nonaccrual Total

One-to-four family residential real estate $ 140,71¢ $ 26 % 1,941 $ 3,60¢ $ 146,43
One-to-four family residential real estate - non-

owner occupied 53,01( — 693 1,24t 54,94¢
Multi-family mortgage 299,05¢ 6,471 3,89( 7,031 316,45(
Wholesale commercial lending 75,74: 2,69¢ 1,17z — 79,60¢
Nonresidential real estate 237,75 6,30¢ 13,64¢ 5,86¢ 263,56°
Construction 2,48¢ — — — 2,48¢
Land 2,871 — 832 383 4,08¢
Commercial loans:

Secured 15,82« — 78 10C 16,00:

Unsecured 3,17: 67 89¢ — 4,13¢

Municipal loans 2,812 — — — 2,812

Warehouse lines 1,90¢ — — — 1,90¢

Health care 19,33( — — — 19,33(

Aviation 1,10¢ — — — 1,10¢

Other 8,96¢ — — — 8,96¢
Commercial leases:

Investment rated commercial leases 146,47: — — — 146,47:

Below investment grade 14,62¢ — — — 14,62¢

Non-rated 22,80t — 21C — 23,01t

Lease pools 3,00¢ — — — 3,00(¢
Consumer 2,31¢ — 1 — 2,317

$ 1,053,960 $ 15,807 $ 23,36: $ 18,13: $ 1,111,26:
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

As of December 31, 2012 , and based on the moshtremalysis performed, the risk category of Idanslass of loans is as follows:

Special
Pass Mention Substandard Nonaccrual Total

One-to-four family residential real estate $ 152,71: $ — 3 1,42t % 6,15¢ $ 160,29
One-to-four family residential real estate - non-

owner occupied 51,84¢ 1,48¢ 3,44( 1,52¢ 58,29¢
Multi-family mortgage 275,33t 6,13¢ 21,12¢ 3,55¢ 306,16
Wholesale commercial lending 44,07 — 1,781 — 45,85¢
Nonresidential real estate 199,80:. 30,89¢ 22,34¢ 11,627 264,67.
Land 2,76¢ 15¢ 2,39/ 3,231 8,55:
Commercial loans:

Secured 19,57¢ 2,41¢ 98¢ 22t 23,21(

Unsecured 4,061 32¢ 1,497 52 5,93¢

Municipal loans 4,751 — — — 4,751

Warehouse lines 2,971 — — — 2,971

Health care 17,56¢ — — — 17,56¢

Other 6,957 — — — 6,951
Commercial leases:

Investment rated commercial leases 102,10: — — — 102,10:

Below investment grade 9,20¢ — — — 9,20t

Non-rated 25,46¢ — — — 25,46¢

Lease pools 3,011 — — — 3,011
Consumer 2,742 — 3 — 2,74¢

$ 924,95 $ 41,42 $ 55,00 $ 26,37¢ $  1,047,75!

NOTE 5 — SECONDARY MORTGAGE MARKET ACTIVITIES

First mortgage loans serviced for others are noluded in the accompanying consolidated statemehfinancial condition. The unpe

principal balances of these loans were $164.6 onilli $186.8 million , and $206.1 million at DecemB#&, 2013 , 2012 , and 2011
respectively. Custodial escrow balances maintainesbnnection with the foregoing loan servicingidties were $3.5 million , $4.9 million

and $5.8 million at December 31, 2013, 2012 , 201l , respectively.
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NOTE 5 — SECONDARY MORTGAGE MARKET ACTIVITIES (continued)

Capitalized mortgage servicing rights are incluthedther assets in the accompanying consolidatdrsents of financial condition. Activity
for capitalized mortgage servicing rights and thlated valuation allowance was as follows.

December 31,

2013 2012
Servicing rights
Beginning of year $ 1,09C $ 1,21¢
Additions 74 13€
Amortized to expense (239) (265)
End of year $ 931 $ 1,09(
Valuation allowance
Beginning of year $ 70 $ 15
Additions expensed — 61
Reductions credited to expense (65) (6)
End of year $ 5 % 70
Carrying value of mortgage servicing rights $ 92¢ % 1,02(
Fair value of mortgage servicing rights $ 1,27¢  $ 1,34(

The estimated fair value of mortgage servicing tdgh the present value of the expected future flasls over the projected life of the lo
Assumptions used in the present value calculatrenbased on actual performance of the underlyingicgeg along with general mark
consensus. The expected cash flow is the net ammfuall mortgage servicing income and expense itehte expected cash flows
discounted at an interest rate appropriate foais®ciated risk given the current market conditi@ignificant assumptions are as follows:

December 31,

2013 2012
Prepayment speed 14.22% 15.8€6%
Discount rate 12.0(% 12.0%
Average servicing cost per loan $65.0C $72.0C
Escrow float rate 1.61% 0.8€%

Key economic assumptions used in measuring thevédire of the Company’s mortgage servicing riglst®tiDecember 31, 201d the effe
on the fair value of our mortgage servicing rigintsn adverse changes in those assumptions, adlasd:

Fair value of mortgage servicing rights $ 1,27¢

Weighted average annual prepayment speed 14.2:%
Decrease in fair value from 10% adverse change (27
Decrease in fair value from 20% adverse change (53

Weighted-average annual discount rate 12.0(%
Decrease in fair value from 10% adverse change 47
Decrease in fair value from 20% adverse change (92

These sensitivities are hypothetical and shouldidsel with caution. As the above table indicateangks in fair value based on variation
individual assumptions generally cannot be usqutédict changes in fair value based upon furtheatians of the same assumptions. Also
effect of a variation in a particular assumptiontba fair value of the retained interest is caltadain the above table independently, witl
changing any other assumption. In reality, changese factor may result in changes in anothemfasthich might magnify or counteract
sensitivities.
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NOTE 5 — SECONDARY MORTGAGE MARKET ACTIVITIES (continued)

The weighted average amortization period is 51 h®nfThe estimated amortization expense for eatiheafiext five years is as follows:

2014 $ 20€
2015 13¢
2016 111
2017 89
2018 73
NOTE 6 — PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT
Year end premises and equipment are as follows:
December 31,
2013 2012
Land and land improvements $ 13,60C $ 13,60:
Buildings and improvements 37,61¢ 37,77
Furniture and equipment 9,95( 10,17:
Computer equipment 6,411 6,39¢
67,571 67,95:
Accumulated depreciation (32,249 (29,700
$ 35,32¢ $ 38,25

Depreciation of premises and equipment was $2.flomi| $3.1 million and $3.1 million for the yeaemided December 31, 2013 , 20d4r&

2011 , respectively.

The Company leases certain branch facilities umdercancelable operating lease agreements expiringiiows years through 2032. R
expense, net of sublease income, for facilities $4&6,000 , $444,000 , and $601,000 in 2013 , 2@I®@ 2011 respectively, excluding tax:
insurance, and maintenance. The projected mininamal expense under existing leases, not incluidirgs, insurance, and maintenance,

December 31, 2013 is as follows:

2014 $ 43¢
2015 44C
2016 44x
2017 46¢
2018 47¢
Thereafter 5,63

$ 7,90¢

The Company has subleased some of its branchtiegitind currently is entitled to receive incoméadisws:

2014 $ 39
2015 15
2016 14
2017 1

$ 69
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NOTE 7 — GOODWILL AND CORE DEPOSIT INTANGIBLE

Goodwill and intangible assets acquired in a pwehausiness combination and determined to havadsiinite useful life are not amortiz
but instead tested for impairment at least annu8lye to high levels of volatility and dislocatiombank stock prices nationwide during 2(
as well as the Comparg/internal evaluation process, the Company engageéddependent valuation firm to determine the ietpfair value c
the Bank. The implied fair value of the Bank wasneated using weighted averages based on a pritantible book value discount deri
from the quoted market trading prices for similastitutions plus an estimated control premium argjegted, discounted cash flows. Ing
from sales of comparable institutions were notgassi a weighting due to the small size of the group

Our annual impairment analysis as of December G811 2indicated that the step two analysis was acgsStep two requires that the imp
fair value of the reporting unit’'s goodwill be coarpd to the carrying amount of that goodwill. 1&tbarrying amount of the reporting usit’
goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that dadll, an impairment loss must be recognized iraerount equal to that excess. As a rest
the step two evaluation, it was determined thatitigied value of goodwill of the reporting unit wdess than the carrying amount, anc
Company reduced the full carrying amount of goobwith a charge to earnings.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill aodumulated impairment charge are as follows:

As of and for the

year ended
December 31, 2011
Balance at the beginning of the year $ 22,56¢
Additions 1,29¢
23,86:
Impairment charge (23,867)

Net Carrying Value $ —

The following table presents the changes in theyray amount of core deposit intangible, grossyiag amount, accumulated amortizat
and net book value:

December 31,

2013 2012
Balance at the beginning of the year $ 3,03t $ 3,671
Amortization (605) (63%)
Additions = =
Net Carrying Value $ 2,43 % 3,03¢
Gross carrying amount $ 593 $ 5,932
Accumulated amortization (3,499 (2,899
Net Carrying Value $ 243: § 3,03¢

Aggregate amortization expense was $605,000 , $683nd $1.7 million for 2013 , 2012 and 2011 peesively.

Estimated amortization expense for each of the finextyears is as follows:

2014 $ 57¢
2015 551
2016 52¢
2017 49¢

2018 28¢
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NOTE 8—DEPOSITS

Composition of deposits are as follows:

December 31,

2013 2012
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits $ 126,68( $ 134,59
Savings deposits 149,60: 144,72¢
Money market accounts 347,01 349,09:
Interest-bearing NOW accounts 353,78 348,68
Certificates of deposit 275,62. 305,25:

$ 1,252,700 $ 1,282,35:

Certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more wer@.39nillion and $97.0 million at December 31, 2@I®&I 2012 , respectively.

Scheduled maturities of certificates of deposittfar next five years are as follows:

2014 $ 203,41¢
2015 46,78¢
2016 17,51(
2017 4,89
2018 3,00¢

NOTE 9—BORROWINGS

Year end borrowed funds are as follows:

December 31,

2013 2012
Contractual Contractual
Rate Amount Rate Amount
Fixed-rate advance from FHLBC due - Within 1 year —% $ — 29% $ 3,00(
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 0.2t 3,05¢ 0.2t 2,561
0.25% $ 3,05¢ 17% $ 5,567

The Company maintains a collateral pledge agreeswrdring secured advances whereby the Compangdraed to keep on hand, free o
other pledges, liens, and encumbrances, specyfiggtified whole first mortgages on improved desitial property not more than @@y
delinquent to secure advances from the FHLBC. Athe Banks FHLBC common stock is pledged as additional tedéd for these advanc
At December 31, 2013 , $192.8 million and $203.0ioni of first mortgage and mulfamily mortgage loans, respectively, collateral
potential advances. At December 31, 2013 , we hadability to borrow an additional $251.4 milliamder our credit facilities with fl
FHLBC. The Company also had available pre-appravegtnight federal funds borrowing. At December 3013 and 2012 , there was
outstanding balance on these lines.

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase seetged by mortgage-backed securities with a icgrrgmount of $8.0 million an89.4
million at December 31, 2013 and 2012 , respegtivel
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NOTE 10 — INCOME TAXES

The income tax expense is as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Current $ — % — ¢ (6)
Deferred benefit (1,310 (11,206 (10,220
Deferred tax valuation allowance 1,31(C 11,20¢ 22,60:
Total income tax expense $ — 3 — $ 12,37¢

A reconciliation of the provision for income taxesmputed at the statutory federal corporate tax 0&t34% for 2013 , 2012 and 20fdl the
income tax expense in the consolidated statemémsevations follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

Benefit computed at the statutory federal tax rate $ 1,121  $ (9,217 $ (12,349
State taxes and other, net 92 (1,75%) (1,395
Tax adjustments (2,390 — —
Bank owned life insurance (10€) (149 (219)
ESOP/Share based compensation (27) (893) (144
Goodwill impairment — — 4,271
Purchase price accounting adjustments — — (39¢)
Deferred tax valuation allowance 1,31( 11,20¢ 22,60:

$ — 3 — 3 12,37¢
Effective income tax rate —% —% N.M. @

Retained earnings at December 31, 2013 and 201m&14.9 millionfor which no deferred federal income tax liabilitgs been recorde
This amount represents an allocation of incomeatbdebt deductions for tax purposes alone.

(1) The effective tax rate for the year ended DecerBle2011 is not meaningful due to the size of querating loss relative to the income expense rieguftom the
deferred tax valuation allowance.
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NOTE 10 — INCOME TAXES (continued)

The net deferred tax asset is as follows:

December 31,

2013 2012
Gross Deferred tax assets

Allowance for loan losses $ 5561 $ 7,031
Alternative minimum tax, general business credd aat operating loss carryforward 30,31 25,04(
Tax deductible goodwiill 2,14¢ 2,42¢
Accumulated depreciation 263 —
OREO valuation adjustments 714 2,98¢
Other 1,49( 1,20¢
40,49 38,69¢

Gross Deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred loan origination costs (1,426 (1,169
Purchase accounting adjustments (2,557 (1,429
Accumulated depreciation — (46%)
Mortgage servicing rights (3649) (39¢)
Other (600) (739
Unrealized gain on securities (439 (709
(5,37¢) (4,897
Valuation allowance (35,11) (33,807
$ —  $ —

A deferred tax asset valuation allowance is regluioebe recognized if it is “more likely than naliat the deferred tax asset will not be reali
The determination of the realizability of the deéet tax assets is highly subjective and dependeon judgment concerning management’
evaluation of both positive and negative evidetice,forecasts of future taxable income, applicédeplanning strategies, and assessmel
current and future economic and business conditibhe Company considered both positive and negawedence regarding the ultim
realizability of its deferred tax assets. Exampépositive evidence may include the existencgnif, of taxes paid in available caftrgck
years and the likelihood that taxable income wéllgenerated in future periods. Examples of negatiwgence may include a cumulative los
the current year and prior two years and negatemeral business and economic trends. In assedsngealization of deferred tax assel
December 31, 2013 and 201the Company concluded that it was more likelynthat that the Company will not realize the besefit thes
deductible differences at December 31, 2013 an® 2@hd therefore, a full valuation allowance foreteéd tax assets was recorded ir
amount of $35.1 million and $33.8 million at DeceamB1, 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

At December 31, 2013 , the Company had a federtabperating loss carryforward of $60.4 milliorwhich will begin to expire in 2029,
federal tax credit carryforward of $1.3 million whi will begin to expire in 2022, a $2.5 milli@iternative minimum tax credit carryforwi
that can be carried forward indefinitely, and a.$58illion federal alternative minimum tax net operating loagyforward which will begin
expire in 2031. In addition, at December 31, 288 Company had a federal net operating loss acamyrd relating to its acquisition
Downers Grove National Bank, which is subject tiiaation limitations under Section 382 of the Imtal Revenue Code, of $8.6 millievhich
will begin to expire in 2030. At December 31, 2Q1iBe Company had a state net operating loss cawgfd for the State of lllinois &§96.¢
million , which will begin to expire in 2025.
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NOTE 10 — INCOME TAXES (continued)

Unrecognized Tax Benefits

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoeininrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

December 31,

2013 2012
Beginning of year $ 128 % 227
Additions based on tax positions related to theentryear — —
Additions for tax positions of prior years 2 18
Reductions due to the statute of limitations artlicions for tax positions of prior years (62 (11€)
End of year $ 65 $ 12¢

The Company does not expect the total amount afaagnized tax benefits to significantly increaselecrease in the next twelve months.
Company recognizes interest and/or penalties eeladeincome tax matters in income tax expense. Atdmnber 31, 2013 and 2012he
Company has immaterial amounts accrued for poldanterest and penalties.

The Company and its subsidiary are subject to féckeral income tax as well as income tax of théeStaf lllinois, New Jersey, Colorado,
Minnesota and Texas. Beginning in 2013, the Barmabe subject to income taxes in the States of Miotaeand Texas due to the physical
presence of Wholesale Commercial bankers in thegaljctions. The Company is no longer subjectdangination by the federal taxing
authorities for years before 2010 and the lllirtaigng authorities for years before 2010.

NOTE 11- REGULATORY MATTERS

The Bank is subject to regulatory capital requireteeadministered by the federal banking agenciedufe to meet minimum capi
requirements can initiate certain mandatory, argsipdy additional discretionary, actions by thei@dfof the Comptroller of the Currency tt
if undertaken, could have a direct material effestthe Banks financial statements. Under capital adequacyedluies and the regulatc
framework for prompt corrective action, the Banksthmneet specific capital guidelines that involvegfitative measures of the Baaldsset
liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet itemsalsulated under regulatory accounting practi¢ée Banks capital amounts and classifica
are also subject to qualitative judgments by regutaabout components, risk weightings, and otlhetofs. The prompt corrective act
regulations provide five classifications, includingll capitalized, adequately capitalized, undeitediped, significantly undercapitalized, ¢
critically undercapitalized, although these termes ot used to represent overall financial conditiddequately capitalized institutions req!
regulatory approval to accept brokered depositsnifercapitalized, a financial instituti@ncapital distributions, asset growth and expanare
limited, and for the submission of a capital restion is required.
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NOTE 11- REGULATORY MATTERS (continued)

Actual capital levels and minimum required levelsthe Bank were:

Minimum required To Be Well

Capitalized Under Prompt Minimum Capital Ratios Established
Actual Corrective Action Provisions under Capital Plans
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
December 31, 2013
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets):
Consolidated $ 186,25: 17.28% $ 86,21: 8.0(% N/A N/A
BankFinancial, F.S.B. 160,83¢ 14.9: 86,19 8.0C % 129,28t 12.0(%
Tier 1 (core) capital (to risk-weighted assets):
Consolidated 172,77! 16.0: 43,10¢ 4.0C N/A N/A
BankFinancial, F.S.B. 147,36: 13.6¢ 43,09¢ 4.0C 86,19: 8.0C
Tier 1 (core) capital (to adjusted average totabts
Consolidated 172,77! 11.92 58,00: 4.0C N/A N/A
BankFinancial, F.S.B. 147,36: 10.1¢ 57,99: 4.0C 115,98 8.0C
December 31, 2012
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets):
Consolidated $ 181,40: 18.01% $ 80,57 8.0(% N/A N/A
BankFinancial, F.S.B. 154,29¢ 15.32 80,55: 8.0C % 120,83 12.0(%
Tier 1 (core) capital (to risk-weighted assets):
Consolidated 168,73: 16.7¢ 40,28" 4.0C N/A N/A
BankFinancial, F.S.B. 141,62¢ 14.07 40,277 4.0C 80,55! 8.0C
Tier 1 (core) capital (to adjusted average totabts
Consolidated 168,73: 11.4: 59,05 4.0C N/A N/A
BankFinancial, F.S.B. 141,62¢ 9.6( 59,02¢ 4.0C 118,05¢ 8.0C

A reconciliation of the Bank’s equity under GAAPregulatory capital is as follows:

December 31,

2013 2012
GAAP equity $ 150,21! $ 145,78!
Disallowed goodwill and other intangible assets (2,439 (3,039
Accumulated other comprehensive income (unrealiggd on securities) (419) (1,119
Tier 1 capital 147,36: 141,62¢
General regulatory loan loss reserves allowed 13,47¢ 12,65¢
Unrealized gains on securities available for shtenvad — 13
Total regulatory capital $ 160,83¢ $ 154,29t

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012 , the OCC categpbthe Bank as weltapitalized under the regulatory framework for ppbroorrectivi
action. There are no conditions or events sinceahwtifications that management believes have gdththe institution’s welkapitalize
status.

The Company and the Bank have adopted Capital Rt@hsequires the Bank to maintain a Tier 1 legergatio of at least 8% and a total risk
based capital ratio of at least 12%. The minimuipitahratios set forth in the Capital Plans will mereased and other minimum cag
requirements will be established if and as necggsacomply with the Basel Il requirements as suefuirements become applicable to
Company and the Bank. In accordance with the Capl#as, neither the Company nor the Bank will
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NOTE 11- REGULATORY MATTERS (continued)

pursue any acquisition or growth opportunity, dexkany dividend or conduct any stock repurchasevtbald cause the Bank’s total riflase:
capital ratio and/or its Tier 1 leverage ratio &l below the established minimum capital levefs.alddition, the Company will continue
maintain its ability to serve as a source of finahstrength to the Bank by holding at least $5illion of cash or liquid assets for that purpose.

Federal regulations require the Bank to comply veitQualified Thrift Lender (“QTL")test, which generally requires that 65% of asse
maintained in housingelated finance and other specified assets. IfQfAd test is not met, limits are placed on growthartthing, ne
investment, FHLBC advances, and dividends or thétirtion must convert to a commercial bank chatanagement considers the QTL
to have been met as of December 31, 2013 .

The Bank is subject to restrictions on the amodrdiwidends it may declare and pay to the Compaitiiout prior regulatory approval.
December 31, 2013 , the Bank does not have presepgrapproval for future dividends.

NOTE 12 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Employee Stock Ownership Ple. Employees are eligible to participate in the ES@Erattainment of age 21 and completion of one péa
service. In connection with the conversion and ganization, the ESOP borrowed $19.6 millioom the Company, and used the procee:
the loan to purchase 1,957,300 shares of commak s&sued in the subscription offering at $10p@0 share. The loan is secured by the s
and will be repaid by the ESOP with funds from Bemnk’s discretionary contributions to the ESOP and egsion ESOP assets. The Bank
committed to make discretionary contributions te #8SOP sufficient to service the loan over a periotito exceed 20 yearsWhen loa
payments are made, ESOP shares are allocatedtimpzarts based on relative compensation and expengcorded. Participants receive t
earned shares at the end of employment.

Contributions to the ESOP were $1.5 million for trears ended December 31, 2013 and 20b2luding dividends and interest receivec
unallocated shares of $49,000 and $40,000 in 20642812 , respectively.

Expense related to the ESOP, net of dividends mtedeist received on unallocated ESOP shares, wes@® , $686,000 and $228,00 the
years endeDecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 , respectively.

Shares held by the ESOP were as follows:

December 31,

2013 2012
Allocated to participants 725,78: 654,69(
Distributed to participants (33,519 (26,779
Unearned 1,125,44 1,223,31.
Total ESOP shares 1,817,711 1,851,22!
Fair value of unearned shares $ 10,30¢ $ 9,077

Profit Sharing Plan/401(k) Plan. The Company has a defined contribution plan (“prsifiaring plan”)covering all of its eligible employet
Employees are eligible to participate in the prefiaring plan after attainment of age 21 and cotigpie®f one yeaof service. The Compa
provides a match of $ 0.50 on each $1.00 of camioh up to 6%of eligible compensation beginning April 1, 200heTCompany may al
contribute an additional amount annually at thermdton of the Board of Directors. Contributionsaling $346,000 , $384,000 , af896,00!
were made for the years ended December 31, 20082, &hd 2011 , respectively.

NOTE 13 — EQUITY INCENTIVE PLANS

On June 27, 2006, the Compasystockholders approved the BankFinancial Corpamafl006 Equity Incentive Plan, which authorized
Human Resources Committee of the Board of Direatbthe Company to grant a variety of cash- andtgchased incentive awards, includ
stock options, stock appreciation rights, restdctock, performance shares and other incentivedsys employees and directors aggreg:
up to 3,425,275 shares of the Company’s commork stoc

The Human Resources Committee may grant stock roptio purchase shares of the Compamommon stock to certain employees
directors of the Company. The exercise price feratock options is the fair market value of the swn stock on the dates
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NOTE 13 — EQUITY INCENTIVE PLANS (continued)

of the grants. The stock options generally vesualiy over 3 to 5/ear periods; vesting is subject to acceleratioceirtain circumstances. T
stock options will expire if not exercised withiry&ars from the date of grant.

The fair value of each option award is estimatedhendate of grant using a closed form option widna(Black-Scholes) model that uses
assumptions noted in the table below. The risk-interest rate was determined using the yield akbgl on the option grant date for a zerc
coupon U.S. Treasury security with a term equiviatenthe expected life of the option. The expedififor options granted represents
period the option is expected to be outstandingwasidetermined by applying the simplified method aswa#id by SAB 107. The expec
volatility for options issued in 2009 was deterntineing the Compang’historical data. Estimated forfeitures were assito be zero due
the lack of historical experience for the Compartyere were no options granted in 2013 or 2012 .

The Company recognized $12,000 of stbelsed compensation expenses relating to the ggawofinstock options for the year en
December 31, 2011 . There was no expense recoodéitef years ended December 31, 2013, and 2012 .

On September 2, 2011, the Human Resources Comnaitidééhe Board of Directors of the Company approaexheyear extension of sto
options granted in prior years that were schedtdezkpire in September and December of 2011. Affterextensions, the stock options exg
in September and December of 2012. The extensiolysivolved the expiration date of the stock opticand do not affect their other ter
There was no expense recorded with the extensidheobptions. The extended stock options providkedhiolders with an option to purch
1,858,403 shares of the Company’s common stocknatighted average exercise price of $16.68s of December 31, 2013 and 201there
were no stock options outstanding.

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Weighted Contractual Aggregate
Number of Average Term Intrinsic
Stock Options Shares Exercise Price (in years) Value @
Stock options outstanding at December 31, 2011 2,075,55. $ 16.5¢ 0.7 $ —
Stock options granted — —
Stock options exercised — —
Stock options expired (2,064,55) (16.59)
Stock options forfeited (12,000 —
Stock options outstanding at December 31, 2012 — 3 — — —
Stock options outstanding at December 31, 2013 — 3 = — % =
Fully vested and expected to vest — 3 — —  $ —
Q) Stock option aggregate intrinsic value represdr@syumber of shares subject to options multipligthle difference (if positive) in the closing matkeice of the commc

stock underlying the options on the date shownthadveighted average exercise price.

The Human Resources Committee of the Board of Rireamay grant shares of restricted stock to aeramnployees and directors of
Company. The awards generally vest annually oveying periods from three to fivgears and vesting is subject to acceleration imam
circumstances. The cost of such awards will beusttratably as compensation expense over suchctagpperiods based on expected ve:
dates. The Company recognized $86,000 , $41,00d $41,0000f expenses relating to the grant of shares oficéstl stock during the yes
ended December 31, 2013 , 2012 and 2011 , resphctixs of December 31, 2013the total unrecognized compensation cost relat
unvested shares of restricted stock was $150,06@ cost is expected to be recognized over a waiigiterage period of 18 months.
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NOTE 13 — EQUITY INCENTIVE PLANS (continued)

Weighted Weighted
Average Fair Average Aggregate
Number of Value at Term to Vest Intrinsic

Restricted Stock Shares® Grant Date (in years) Value @
Shares outstanding at December 31, 2011 433: $ 9.54 05 $ 24

Shares granted — —

Shares vested (4,339 (9.59

Shares forfeited — —
Shares outstanding at December 31, 2012 — — — 3 —

Shares granted 29,00( 8.14

Shares vested (3,250 —

Shares forfeited — —
Shares outstanding at December 31, 2013 25,75C % 8.1¢4 12 % 23€
1) The end of period balances consist only of unvesiede:
2) Restricted stock aggregate intrinsic value repisstie number of shares of restricted stock migtipby the market price of the common stock undeglyhe outstandir

shares on the date shown.
NOTE 14 — LOAN COMMITMENTS AND OTHER OFF-BALANCE SH EET ACTIVITIES

The Company is party to various financial instrutsesith off-balancesheet risk. The Company uses these financial im&nts in the norm
course of business to meet the financing needssibmers and to effectively manage exposure todsteate risk. These financial instrume
include commitments to extend credit, standby fistté credit, unused lines of credit, and committae¢a sell loans. When viewed in term:
the maximum exposure, those instruments may inydtvevarying degrees, elements of credit and isterate risk in excess of the amc
recognized in the consolidated statements of filgucondition. Credit risk is the possibility thatcounterparty to a financial instrument will
unable to perform its contractual obligations. teg rate risk is the possibility that, due to afesin economic conditions, the Compange
interest income will be adversely affected.

The following is a summary of the contractual ortiowal amount of each significant class of off-alasheet financial instrumer
outstanding. The Comparsy'exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperéorce by the counterparty for commitments to extensdlit
standby letters of credit, and unused lines ofitisdepresented by the contractual notional amof@ithese instruments.

The contractual or notional amounts are as follows:

December 31,

2013 2012
Financial instruments wherein contractual amougpsasent credit risk
Commitments to extend credit $ 29,25: $ 15,97:
Standby letters of credit 922 1,237
Unused lines of credit 118,16 120,73:
Commitments to sell mortgages 22z 1,26¢

Commitments to extend credit are generally madegpésiods of 60 days or less. The fixed-rate loasmmitment totaled $17.3 milliowith
interest rates ranging from 2.25% to 5.04% and ritegsi ranging from 1 to 30 years.

Since many of the commitments are expected to expithout being drawn upon, the total commitmenbans do not necessarily repre:
future cash requirements. The Company evaluatds @stomer’s creditworthiness on a casechge basis. The amount of collateral obta
if it is deemed necessary by the Company upon siderof credit, is based on managemegtedit evaluation of the customers. The colld
held varies, but primarily consists of single-famiésidential real estate.



The Bank, as a member of Visa USA, received 51 4004stricted shares of Visa, Inc. Class B commonksin connection with Visa, In&’
initial public offering in 2007, and 32,398 addital shares of Class B common stock that were desgbisito a
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NOTE 14 — LOAN COMMITMENTS AND OTHER OFF-BALANCE SH EET ACTIVITIES (continued)

litigation escrow that Visa, Inc. established unierretrospective responsibility plan. The rettoae responsibility plan obligates all forn
Visa USA members to indemnify Visa USA, in proportito their equity interests in Visa USA, for cartditigation losses and expens
including settlement expenses, for the lawsuitseoed by the retrospective responsibility plan. Frenary method for discharging 1
indemnification obligations under the retrospectiesponsibility plan is a reduction of the rationdttich the Visa, Inc. Class B shares held ir
litigation escrow can be converted into publiclpded Class A common shares of Visa, Inc. Due tordisérictions that the retrospect
responsibility plan imposes on the Company'’s Visa, Class B shares, the Company has not recohde@lass B shares as an asset.

NOTE 15 - FAIR VALUE

Fair value is the exchange price that would beivedefor an asset or paid to transfer a liabiligki{ price) in the principal or mc
advantageous market for the asset or liabilitynnoederly transaction between market participamsh® measurement date. There are
levels of inputs that may be used to measure Hires:

» Level 1 —Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assetlg@bilities in active markets that the entity has ability to access as of
measurement date.

» Level 2 —Significant other observable inputs other than Leverices such as quoted prices for similar assetgbilities; quote
prices in markets that are not active; or otheuigphat are observable or can be corroboratedbgreable market data.

* Level 3 — Significant unobservable inputs theflect a compang own assumptions about the assumptions that mpekétipant
would use in pricing an asset or liability.

The Company used the following methods and sigaifi@ssumptions to estimate the fair value of &god of financial instrument:

Securities: The fair values of marketable equity securities generally determined by quoted prices, in aciharkets, for each speci
security (Level 1). If Level 1 measurement inputs aot available for a marketable equity securitg, determine its fair value based on
quoted price of a similar security traded in arivactmarket (Level 2). The fair values of debt sé@s are generally determined by ma
pricing, which is a mathematical technique widebgd in the industry to value debt securities withelying exclusively on quoted prices
the specific securities, but rather by relying ba securities’ relationship to other benchmark gdatecurities (Level 2).

Loans Held for SalelLoans held for sale are carried at the lower of cogair value, which is evaluated on a pémlel basis. The fair value
loans held for sale is determined using quotedeprfor similar assets, adjusted for specific aiteb of that loan or other observable me
data, such as outstanding commitments from thirty pavestors (Level 2).

Impaired Loans: At the time a loan is considered impaired, managemeeasures impairment in accordance with ASC T8aie. The fai
value of impaired loans is estimated using oneevkerl methods, including collateral value, manatie of similar debt, enterprise val
liquidation value and discounted cash flows. Im@ditoans carried at fair value generally requipgagtial charge off and a specific valuai
allowance for loan losses. For collateral dependeans, fair value is commonly based on recent essdte appraisals. These real e
appraisals may include up to three approacheslt®vthe sales comparison approach, the incomeoappr(for incomegsroducing propert
and the cost approach. Adjustments are routinelgenia the appraisal process by the independentieggps to adjust for differences betw
the comparable sales and income data availaldgpifcable. Such adjustments may be significanttgpidally result in a Level 3 classificati
of the inputs for determining fair value. In additj a discount is typically applied to account $ates and holding expenses. Neat estat
collateral may be valued using an appraisal, nekb@lue per the borrowex’financial statements, or aging reports, adjustediscounte
based on management’s historical knowledge, chaimgetsarket conditions from the time of the valuati@and managemestexpertise ar
knowledge of the client and clieatbusiness, resulting in a Level 3 fair value dfasgion. Impaired loans are evaluated on a quigrteasis fo
additional impairment and adjusted accordingly. Tiethod utilized to estimate the fair value of lpatoes not necessarily represent an
price.

Other Real Estate Ownedissets acquired through foreclosure or transfet@inof foreclosure are initially recorded at faalue less costs
sell when acquired, establishing a new cost basisse assets are subsequently accounted for at tdwest or fair value less estimated c
to sell. Fair value is commonly based on recent estate appraisals. Although the fair value of pneperty normally will be based on
appraisal (or other evaluation), the valuation $thdne consistent with the price that a market pgudint will pay to purchase the property at
measurement date. Circumstances may exist thaaitedihat the appraised
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NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUE (continued)

value is not an accurate measurement of the préperrrent fair value. Examples of such circumsgsninclude changed economic condit
since the last appraisal, stale appraisals, oramigion and subjectivity in the appraisal process, (actual sales for less than the appr:
amount). Such adjustments are usually significadttgpically result in a Level 3 classificationtbe inputs for determining fair value.

Mortgage Servicing Right: On a quarterly basis, loan servicing rights araluated for impairment based upon the fair valfithe rights a
compared to carrying amount. The fair values oftgame servicing rights are based on a valuationeinibt calculates the present valu
estimated net servicing income. The valuation madebrporates assumptions that market participartald use in estimating future |
servicing income. The Company is able to compaesvluation model inputs and results to widely ke published industry data
reasonableness (Level 2).

The following table sets forth the Compasyinancial assets that were accounted for awtlire and are classified in their entirety basethe
lowest level of input that is significant to therfaalue measurement.

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted
Prices in
Active
Markets for Significant Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Fair Value
December 31, 2013
Securities:
Certificates of deposit $ — 3 65,01C $ — 3 65,01(
Municipal securities — 187 — 187
Equity mutual fund 497 — — 497
Mortgage-backed securities — residential — 28,36« — 28,36¢
Collateralized mortgage obligations — residential — 16,81 — 16,81«
SBA-guaranteed loan participation certificates — 35 — 35
$ 497 $ 110,41 $ — % 110,90
December 31, 2012
Securities:
Certificates of deposit $ — 33,45t $ — 3 33,45¢
Municipal securities — 36¢ — 36¢
Equity mutual fund 52¢ — — 52¢
Mortgage-backed securities - residential — 34,23 — 34,23:
Collateralized mortgage obligations — residential — 9,20¢ — 9,20¢
SBA-guaranteed loan participation certificates — 42 — 42
$ 52¢ $ 77,30 $ —  $ 77,83:
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NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUE (continued)

The following table sets forth the Company’s astieds were measured at fair value on a non-requirasis:

Fair Value Measurement Using
Quoted Prices in

Active Markets Significant Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs Fair
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Value

December 31, 2013
Impaired loans:

One-to—four family residential real estate $ — $ — 3 46C $ 46C

Multi-family mortgage — — 2,28¢ 2,28¢

Nonresidential real estate — — 971 971

Construction and land loans — — 107 107
Impaired loans $ — $ — % 3,822 % 3,824
Other real estate owned:

One—to—four family residential real estate $ — $ — 3 297 % 297

Nonresidential real estate — — 46C 46C

Land — — 1,01¢ 1,01¢
Other real estate owned $ —  $ — 1,77¢ % 1,77¢
Mortgage servicing rights $ — 3 — 8 196§ 19¢
December 31, 2012
Impaired loans:

One-to—four family residential real estate $ — % — 3 41C % 41C

Multi-family mortgage — — 1,91¢ 1,91¢

Nonresidential real estate — — 3,10z 3,10z

Construction and land — — 2,841 2,841

Commercial loans — — 181 181
Impaired loans $ — 3 — 3 8,45( $ 8,45(
Other real estate owned:

One-to—four family residential real estate $ — $ — 3 1,50 $ 1,50¢

Multi-family mortgage — — 72C 72C

Nonresidential real estate — — 3,64¢ 3,64¢

Land — — 3,49¢ 3,49¢
Other real estate owned $ — 3 — % 9,36¢ $ 9,36¢
Mortgage servicing rights $ — $ — 8 20€ $ 20¢
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NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUE (continued)

Impaired loans, which are measured for impairmeairtgithe fair value of the collateral for collateidependent loans, had a carrying amou
$4.2 million , with a valuation allowance of $37600at December 31, 2013 , compared to a carryinguatof $10.1 millionand a valuatic
allowance of $1.7 million at December 31, 2012suteng in a decrease in the provision for loarséssof $1.3 milliorfor the year ende
December 31, 2013 .

OREQO is carried at the lower of cost or fair valegs costs to sell, had a carrying value of $2Ifianiless a valuation allowance of $902,000
or $1.8 million at December 31, 2013 , compare810.5 million less a valuation allowance of $1.2lion , or $9.4 million atDecember 3:
2012 . There were $550,000 of valuation adjustmehtgher real estate owned recorded for the yede@ December 31, 2013 .

Mortgage servicing rights, which are carried at éowef cost or fair value, had a carrying amoun$©98,000 at December 31, 2013anc

$208,000 at December 31, 2012 . A pre—tax recogkf65,0000n our mortgage servicing rights portfolio was ugd in noninterest incor
for the year ended December 31, 2013 , comparadhbtb,000 provision for the same period in 2012 .
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NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUE (continued)

The following table presents quantitative inforroati based on certain empirical data with respedteteel 3 fair value measurements
financial instruments measured at fair value ol recurring basis at December 31, 2013 :

Range
Valuation Unobservable (Weighted
Fair Value Technique(s) Input(s) Average)
Impaired loans
Discount
_ , , applied to 7.5%-12.8%
One-to-four family residential real estate $ 46(C Sales comparison valuation (10%)
Comparison

between sales
and income 12.3%-19.4%

Multi-family mortgage 2,28€ sales comparison approaches (17%)
7.25% to 13.8%
Income approach Cap Rate (9%)
Comparison
between sales
. . and income -3.0%-45.1%
Nonresidential real estate 971 Sales comparison  approaches (11%)
10%-10.7%
Income approach Cap Rate (10%)
Discount
) _ applied to
Construction and land loans 107 sales comparison valuation 21.2%
$ 3,82¢
Other real estate owned
Discount
- . . ) applied to 5.0%-9.4%
One-to-four family residential real estate $ 297  Sales comparison valuation (8%)
Comparison
between sales
. . and income 0%-10.1%
Nonresidential real estate 46C  Sales comparisor  approaches (7%)
Discount
applied to 0%-10.2%
Land 1,01¢  sales comparison  valuation (2%)

$ 1,77¢

Present value ¢
future servicing
income based

Third party on prepayment  11.4 % - 23.5%

Mortgage servicing rights $ 19¢ valuation speeds (15.21%)
Present value ¢
future servicinc
Third party income based
valuation on default rate: 12%
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NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUE (continued)

The following table presents quantitative inforroati based on certain empirical data with respedteteel 3 fair value measurements
financial instruments measured at fair value ol recurring basis at December 31, 2012 :

Range
Valuation Unobservable (Weighted
Fair Value Technique(s) Input(s) Average)
Impaired loans
Discount
. . . applied to 6%-90%
One-to-four family residential real estate $ 41C Sales comparison valuation (58%)
Comparison
between sales
. . and income 204-95%
Multi-family mortgage 1,91¢ sales comparison approaches (42%)
8.3% to 9.5%
Income approach Cap Rate (8.95%)
Comparison
between sales
. . and income 6%-99%
Nonresidential real estate 3,102z Sales comparison ~ approaches (61%)
8% to 10%
Income approach Cap Rate (8.61%)
Discount
_ applied to -3% to 53%
Construction and land 2,841 sales comparison valuation (22%)
Discount
. applied to 0%-11%
Commercial loans 181 sales comparison valuation (43%)
$ 8,45(
Other real estate owned
Discount
. . . applied to 7%-78%
One-to-four family residential real estate $ 1,50  sales comparison valuation (17%)
Comparison
between sales
. . and income 13%-62%
Multi-family mortgage 72C  Sales comparisor  approaches (42%)
Comparison
between sales
. . and income 7%-37%
Nonresidential real estate 3,64¢  sales comparison  approaches (27%)
Discount
applied to 7%-21%
Land 3,49¢€  sales comparisor valuation (10%)
$ 9,36¢
Present value ¢
future servicing
income based
o ) Third party on prepaymen’  12.7 % - 28.6%
Mortgage servicing rights $ 20€ valuation speeds (18.62%)
Present value ¢
future servicing
Third party income based
valuation on default rates 12%
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NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUE (continued)

The carrying amount and estimated fair value dadririal instruments is as follows:

Fair Value Measurements at
December 31, 2013 Using:

Carrying
Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 160,95 $ 15,78, % 14517¢  $ — 160,95
Securities 110,90 497 110,41( — 110,90°
Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses 1,098,07 — 1,049,11 3,82¢ 1,052,93!
FHLBC stock 6,06¢ — — — N/A
Accrued interest receivable 3,93: — 3,93: — 3,93¢
Financial liabilities
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits $ 126,68( $ — 126,68( $ — 126,68(
Savings deposits 149,60: — 149,60:. — 149,60:
NOW and money market accounts 700,80« — 700,80 — 700,80:
Certificates of deposit 275,62. — 276,02: — 276,02:
Borrowings 3,05¢ — 3,057 — 3,057
Accrued interest payable 112 — 112 — 112
Fair Value Measurements at
December 31, 2012 Using:
Carrying
Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 275,76:¢ $ 20,36 $ 255400 $ — $ 275,76
Securities 77,83: 52¢ 77,304 — 8 77,83:
Loans held-for-sale 2,16¢ — 2,16¢ — 3 2,16¢
Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan
losses 1,030,46! — 1,017,63 8,45( $ 1,026,08
FHLBC stock 8,41 — — — N/A
Accrued interest receivable 4,14¢ — 4,14¢ — 3 4,14¢
Financial liabilities
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits $ 13459 $ — $ 13459 $ — $ 134,59
Savings deposits 144,72t — 144,72¢ — $ 144,72
NOW and money market accounts 697,77! — 697,77" — $ 697,77
Certificates of deposit 305,25: — 306,85¢ — $ 306,85
Borrowings 5,567 — 5,60¢ — 3 5,60¢
Accrued interest payable 157 — 157 — 8 157

For purposes of the above, the following assumptisare used:

Cash and Cash EquivalentsThe estimated fair values for cash and cash atpnts are based on their carrying value due teshioettern
nature of these assets.
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NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUE (continued)

Loans: The estimated fair value for loans has been deted by calculating the present value of futurehcdows based on the current rate
Company would charge for similar loans with simifaaturities, applied for an estimated time periatilihe loan is assumed to be reprice
repaid. The estimated fair values of loans heldstde are based on outstanding commitments from gairty investors.

FHLBC Stock: It is not practicable to determine the fair vabid=HLBC stock due to the restrictions placed tsrtiansferability.

Deposit Liabilities: The estimated fair value for certificates of dgipbas been determined by calculating the pressoe of future cash flov
based on estimates of rates the Company would pauch deposits, applied for the time period umgiturity. The estimated fair values
noninterestearing demand, NOW, money market, and savingsditspare assumed to approximate their carryingegslas managemt
establishes rates on these deposits at a levedplpabximates the local market area. Additionaltgse deposits can be withdrawn on demand.
Borrowings: The estimated fair values of advances from th&€BEl and notes payable are based on current maatedt for similar financin
The estimated fair value of securities sold undgeements to repurchase is assumed to equal iisrepvalue due to the shaierm nature ¢
the liability.

Accrued Interest: The estimated fair values of accrued interestiveble and payable are assumed to equal theyicgvalue.

Off - Balance-Sheet Instruments Off-balancesheet items consist principally of unfunded loamoutments, standby letters of credit,

unused lines of credit. The estimated fair valuesirdunded loan commitments, standby letters oflitr@nd unused lines of credit are
material.

While the above estimates are based on managemedgment of the most appropriate factors, ashefhalance sheet date, there i
assurance that the estimated fair values would baea realized if the assets were disposed ofeolidhilities settled at that date, since me
values may differ depending on the various circamsts. The estimated fair values would also ndyappsubsequent dates.

In addition, other assets and liabilities that ao¢ financial instruments, such as premises andpewnt, are not included in the ab
disclosures.

NOTE 16 — COMPANY ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMAT ION

Condensed financial information of BankFinanciar@wation as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 anthéothree years end&ktcember 3.
2013 follows:

Condensed Statements of Financial Condition

December 31,

2013 2012
Assets
Cash in subsidiary $ 11,44. $ 11,84¢
Loan receivable from ESOP 13,74 14,65+
Investment in subsidiary 150,21! 145,78!
Income tax receivable — 461
Other assets 252 162
$ 175,65( $ 172,91:
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 23 21
Total stockholders’ equity 175,62 172,89(
$ 175,65( $ 172,91:
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NOTE 16 — COMPANY ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMAT ION (continued)

Condensed Statements of Operations

For the years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

Interest income $ 62 $ 66z $ 69€
Other income — 57 —
Other expense 1,47: 1,42: 1,381
Loss before income tax and undistributed subsidizagme (850 (709 (685)
Income tax expense = = 254
Loss before equity in undistributed subsidiary imeo (850 (709 (939
Equity in undistributed subsidiary excess distrids 4,14¢ (26,40¢) (47,757
Net income (loss) $ 3,29t § (27,109 ¢ (48,699

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income (loss) $ 3,29¢ % (27,109 $ (48,69¢)
Adjustments:

Equity in undistributed subsidiary excess distritis (4,149 26,40¢ 47,75

Change in other assets 373 1,14: 35C

Change in accrued expenses and other liabilities 2 (780) (89
Net cash used in operating activities (475) (340 (67¢€)
Cash flows from investing activities

Principal payments received on ESOP loan 912 873 84C
Net cash from investing activities 912 872 84C
Cash flows from financing activities

Cash dividends paid on common stock (844) (633) (4,636
Net cash used in financing activities (844) (639) (4,63¢6)

Net change in cash in subsidiary (407) (100) (4,479
Beginning cash in subsidiary 11,84¢ 11,94¢ 16,42:
Ending cash in subsidiary $ 11,44. % 11,84¢ $ 11,94¢
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NOTE 17 — SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (unaudi ted)

Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income
Provision for (recovery of) loan losses
Net interest income
Noninterest income
Noninterest expense
Income before income taxes
Income tax expense (benefit)
Net income
Basic earnings per common share
Diluted earnings per common share

(Table amounts in thousands, except share anchpez data)

For the year ended December 31, 2013

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
$ 12,711 % 12,27¢ $ 12,107 $ 12,29¢
994 93t 882 84z
11,71¢ 11,34: 11,22¢ 11,45
722 20¢ 437 (2,17¢)
10,997 11,13t 11,66: 12,63:
3,02¢ 1,70: 1,735 1,66t
13,34¢ 12,76: 12,36( 12,79:
67¢ 76 1,03¢ 1,50t
$ 67¢ $ 7€ $ 1,03¢ % 1,50t
$ 0.0 % — % 0.0t % 0.0¢
$ 0.0: $ — 8 0.0t $ 0.0¢

The Company recorded net income of $1.5 milliontfar fourth quarter of 2013 . The Companget interest income before provision for |
losses increased to $11.5 million due to strongen loriginations and improved asset quality. Then@any’s fourth quarter 201@peratiny
results included a $1.2 milliorecovery of loan losses. The recovery is primadile to the growth in our loan portfolio was focusedloar
types with lower loss ratios based on our histolimss experience and the historical loan lossof@gcimproved as the losses incurred in et
periods aged, therefore are weighted less in thmiletion. Noninterest expense included $811,60@onperforming asset management
OREO expense.

For the year ended December 31, 2012

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Interest income $ 16,63: $ 15,82: $ 14,46¢ $ 13,801
Interest expense 1,24( 1,117 1,03¢ 1,05¢
Net interest income 15,39¢ 14,71 13,43: 12,74
Provision for loan losses 99¢ 1,74¢ 4,45¢ 24,32¢
Net interest income 14,39¢ 12,967 8,97¢ (12,586
Noninterest income 2,04 1,641 2,05¢ 1,98¢
Noninterest expense 13,64¢ 14,26 16,25¢ 15,42(
Income (loss) before income taxes 2,79¢ 341 (5,227 (25,027
Income tax expense (benefit) 457 (457) — —
Net income (loss) $ 2,331 $ 79¢ $ (5,227 $ (25,02)
Basic earnings (loss) per common share $ 0.1z $ 0.0¢ $ (0.2¢) $ (2.25)
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share $ 0.1z $ 0.0¢ $ (0.26) $ (1.2

The Company recorded a net loss of $25.0 milliarttie fourth quarter of 2012. The Companjourth quarter 2012 operating results inclt
a $24.3 millionprovision for loan losses. In late 2012, the Comypammpleted several actions to materially redu¢er&inonperforming as¢
expenses. The Company completed two bulk salegrmdin nonperforming assets with a carrying valté22.7 million , reclassifiec7.£
million of loans as held-for-sale in preparatiom éthird bulk sale, and restructured $7.1 millmnperforming classified loans to enable
basis for their classification to be resolved ill20These actions resulted in pre-tax charges 8f4$illion . Noninterest expense incluc
$3.6 million of nonperforming asset management@REO expense.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

Not Applicable.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and proceslure

Under the supervision and with the participatioroof management, including our Principal Execudféicer and Principal Financial Offict
we evaluated the effectiveness of the design aedatipn of our disclosure controls and proceduassiéfined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 1Bsle’
under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the figeal ( “Evaluation Date")Based upon that evaluation, the Principal Execui¥fécer anc
Principal Financial Officer concluded that, asiud Evaluation Date, our disclosure controls andgaares were effective.

(b) Management’s Annual Report on Internal ConBuér Financial Reporting.

The annual report of management on the effectiveeokeur internal control over financial reportiagd the attestation report thereon issue
our independent registered public accounting firmmset forth under “Report of Management on Inte@entrol Over Financial Reportinginc
“Report of Independent Registered Public Accountiivgn on Internal Control Over Financial Reportingider Iltem 8 - Financial Statemer
and Supplementary Data.”

(c) Changes in internal controls.

There were no changes made in our internal contitoii®ig the fourth quarter of 2018, to our knowledge, in other factors that haveemially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallieaf these controls.

See the Certifications pursuant to Section 30hef3arbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

Not Applicable.
PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Directors and Executive Officers

The information concerning our directors and exeeufficers required by this item will be filed tithe Securities and Exchange Commis
by amendment to this Form 10-K, not later than d&s after the end of our fiscal year.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

The information concerning compliance with the mpg requirements of Section 16(a) of the SeaesitExchange Act of 1934 by «
directors, officers and 10 percent stockholdersiireq by this item will be filed with the Securgi@and Exchange Commission by amend:
to this Form 10-K, not later than 120 days aftereéhd of our fiscal year.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Ethics for Senior Firr@fficers that applies to our principal executivfficer, principal financial office
principal accounting officer, and persons perforgnéimilar functions. A copy of our Code of Ethicasvattached as Exhibit 14 to our Ant

Report on Form 1@ filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissionMarch 27, 2006. We have also adopted a CodBusines
Conduct, pursuant to NASDAQ requirements, thatiapmlenerally to our directors, officers, and erypks.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information concerning compensation requiredhiisyitem will be filed with the Securities anddiange Commission by amendment to
this Form 10-K, not later than 120 days after the ef our fiscal year.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information concerning security ownership ata@i@ beneficial owners and management requiretthisyitem will be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission by amendmehisté-orm 10-K, not later than 120 days after the ef our fiscal year.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Comensation Plans

The following table sets forth information regamlithe securities that were authorized for issuamzker our 2006 Equity Incentive Plan a
December 31, 2013 :

Column (A) Column (B) Column (B)

Number of Securities
Remaining Available fo
Future Issuance under
Number of Securities to  Weighted-Average 2006 Equity Incentive

be Issued Upon Exerci Exercise Price of Plan (Excluding

of Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, Securities Reflected in
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Column (A))
Equity compensation plans approved by stockholders 25,75( — 3,425,27!
Equity compensation plans not approved by stocldreld — — —
Total 25,75( — 3,425,27!

Column (A) represents stock options and restristedk outstanding under the Compang006 Equity Incentive Plan. Future equity awandder the 2006 Equity Incentive P
may take the form of stock options, stock appremiatights, performance unit awards, restrictectlstoestricted performance stock, restricted stawits, stock awards or ca
Column (B) represents the weightaderage exercise price of the outstanding stodkmpbnly; the outstanding restricted stock awarésnot included in this calculation. Colu
(C) represents the maximum aggregate number ofefietguity awards that can be made under the 200&yHqcentive Plan as of December 31, 2013 .

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information concerning certain relationshipd eglated transactions required by this will bedilwith the Securities and Exchange
Commission by amendment to this Form 10-K, not ldtan 120 days after the end of our fiscal year.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information concerning principal accountansfaad services will be filed with the Securitiesl @xchange Commission by amendment tc
this Form 10-K, not later than 120 days after the ef our fiscal year.

PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDUL ES

(a)(1) Financial Statements

The following consolidated financial statement o registrant and its subsidiaries are filed as @fathis document under Item 8 Fihancia
Statements and Supplementary Data.”

(A) Report of Independent Registered Accounting
(B) Consolidated Statements of Financial Conditiat December 31, 2013 af@1:
© Consolidated Statements of Operations foydas ended December 31, 2013 , 2012241d

(D) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive lrecfiross) for the years ended December 31, 20132 aAd2011

(E) Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stodeng| Equity for the years ended December 31, 2@IR.2 and2011

(F) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows foydas ended December 31, 2013, 2012201d



(G) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem
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(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules

None.
(a)(3) Exhibits

The documents set forth below are filed herewitmoorporated herein by reference to the locatialicated.

Exhibit Location
Exhibit 3.1 to the Registration Statement on Forh @& the
3.1 Articles of Incorporation of BankFinancial Corpacat Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange

Commission on September 23, 2004

Exhibit 3.2 to the Registration Statement on Forh & the
3.2 Bylaws of BankFinancial Corporation Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBhange
Commission on September 23, 2004

Exhibit 3.3 to the Registration Statement on Forh & the
3.3 Articles of Amendment to Charter of BankFinancialr@@oration Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on September 23, 2004

Exhibit 3.4 to the Annual Report on Form KOof the
3.4 Restated Bylaws of BankFinancial Corporation Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on March 15, 2007

Exhibit 4 to the Registration Statement on Forri &Ff the
4 Form of Common Stock Certificate of BankFinanciak@bration Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on September 23, 2004

Exhib it 10.1 tothe Registration Statement on F&m
10.1 Employee Stock Ownership Plan 1 of the Company, originally filed with the Securities ¢

Exchange Commission on September 23, 2004

Exhibit 10.2 to the Registration Statement on F@# of
10.2 Deferred Compensation Plan the Company, originally filed with the Securitiend

Exchange Commission on September 23, 2004

Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on FormK8ef the
10.3 BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with F. Morgsasior Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange

Commission on May 5, 2008

Exhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on FormK8ef the
10.4 BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with Jam&dnnan  Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on May 5, 2008.

Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on FormK8ef the
10.5 BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with PauChautier Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on May 5, 2008

Exhibit 10.5 to the Current Report on FormK8ef the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on May 5, 2008

Exhibit 10.1 to the Report on Formk3-of the Company
10.12  Form of Incentive Stock Option Award Terms originally filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on September 5, 2006

Appendix C to the Definitive Form 14A, originallited with
10.13 2006 BankFinancial Corporation Equity IncentiverPla the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 286

(File No. 000-51331)

Exhibit 10.2 to the Report on Formk3-of the Company
10.14  Form of Performance Based Incentive Stock OptiorafnTerms originally filed with the Securities and Exchar

Commission on September 5, 2006

Exhibit 10.3 to the Report on Formk3-of the Company
10.15 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Award Terms originally filed with the Securities and Exchar

Commission on September 5, 2006

Exhibit 10.4 to the Report on Formk8- of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on September 5, 2006

BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with Chrishh

106 Calabrese

Form of Performance Based NQualified Stock Option Awar

LIS Terms
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10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

14

21

23
31.1

Exhibit Location
Exhibit 10.5 to the Report on Form 8-K of the Compa
Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement originally filed with the Securities and Exchar

Form of Performance Based Restricted Stock AwancAment

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement

Form of Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement

BankFinancial Corporation Employment Agreement vithMorgar
Gasior

BankFinancial Corporation Employment Agreement wRhul A.
Cloutier

BankFinancial Corporation Employment Agreement wimes .
Brennan

BankFinancial Corporation Employment Agreement whiizabett
A. Doolan

BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with ElizhbeA.
Doolan

BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with Gregg\dams

BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with JohiM@nos

BankFinancial
Deutsch, Jr.

FSB Employment Agreement with Williad.

Form of Amendment No. 1 to BankFinancial FSB Empiepnt
Agreement

Form of Amendment No. 1 to BankFinancial FSB Empieynt
Agreement

Form of Amendment No. 1 to BankFinancial

Employment Agreement

Corpona

Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers

Subsidiaries of Registrant
Consent of Crowe Horwath LLP

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuamt Section 302 ¢
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

104

Commission on September 5, 2006

Exhibit 10.6 to the Report on Formk3-of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on September 5, 2006

Exhibit 10.7 to the Report on Formk3-of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on September 5, 2006

Exhibit 10.8 to the Report on Formk3-of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on September 5, 2006

Exhibit 10.1 to the Report on Formk3-of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on October 20, 2008

Exhibit 10.2 to the Report on Formk3-of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on October 20, 2008

Exhibit 10.3 to the Report on Formk3-of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on October 20, 2008.

Exhibit 10.28 to the Annual Report on Form KOef the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBhange
Commission on February 23, 2009.

Exhibit 10.29 to the Annual Report on Form KOef the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBhange
Commission on February 23, 2009.

Exhibit 10.30 to the Annual Report on Form KA of the
Company originally filed with the Securities anddBange
Commission on April 30, 2010.

Exhibit 10.31 to the Annual Report on Form KA of the
Company originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on April 30, 2010.

Exhibit 10.32 to the Annual Report on Form KOA of the
Company originally filed with the Securities anddBange
Commission on May 2, 2011.

Exhibit 10.33 to the Annual Report on Form KOef the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on March 11, 2013

Exhibit 10.34 to the Annual Report on Form KOef the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on March 11, 2013

Exhibit 10.35 to the Annual Report on Form KOef the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBhange
Commission on March 11, 2013

Exhibit 14 to the Annual Report on Form KO-of the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBhange
Commission on March 27, 2006

Exhibit 21 to the Registration Statement on Forrh &-the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBhange
Commission on September 23, 2004

Filed herewith

Filed herewith
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Exhibit Location

312 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuait $ection 302 of tr
’ Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and ChiEfnancial Officel
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2D02*

The following financial statements from the Banldinial
Corporation Quarterly Report on Form KOfor the year ende
December 31, 2013, formatted in Extensive BusinBsporting
101 Language (XBRL): (i) consolidated statement of dbads, Filed herewith
(ii) consolidated  statements of operations, (iihsolidate
statements of cash flows and (iv) the notes to alateed financia
statements.

Filed herewith

Furnished herewith

» A signed original of this written statement reqditey Section 906 has been provided to the Compadynél be retained by the Compe
and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cosionior its staff upon request.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regiidthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduty authorized.

BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
Date: March 14, 2014 By: /s/F. Morgan Gasior

F. Morgan Gasior
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officad@resident
(Duly Authorized Representative)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xg of 1934, this report has been signed belothdyjollowing persons on behalf of the
Registrant and in the capacities and on the dathsated.

Signatures Title Date
/sl F. Morgan Gasior Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer drdsident March 14, 2014
F. Morgan Gasior (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Paul A. Cloutier Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office March 14, 2014
Paul A. Cloutier (Principal Financial Officer)
/sl Elizabeth A. Doolan Senior Vice President and Controller March2e1.4
Elizabeth A. Doolan (Principal Accounting Officer)
/sl Cassandra J. Francis Director March 14, 2014

Cassandra J. Francis

/s/ John M. Hausmann Director March 14, 2014
John M. Hausmann

/s/ Thomas F. O'Neill Director March 14, 2014
Thomas F. O'Neill

/sl Joseph A. Schudt Director March 14, 2014
Joseph A. Schudt

/sl Terry R. Wells Director March 14, 2014
Terry R. Wells
/sl Glen R. Wherfel Director March 14, 2014

Glen R. Wherfel
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Exhibit 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statements No. 333-127737 and No.133®82 on Form 8- of
BankFinancial Corporation, of our report dated Mwatd, 2014, with respect to the consolidated financial staets of BankFinanci
Corporation and the effectiveness of the Compamyternal control over financial reporting, whiodport appears in this Annual Repor
Form 10-K of BankFinancial Corporation for the yeaded December 31, 2013 .

/s/ Crowe Horwath LLP

Oak Brook, lllinois
March 14, 2014



Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

I, F. Morgan Gasior, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on FormKLOf BankFinancial Corporation, a Maryland corparaj

Based on my knowledge, this report does not cor@ajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéde a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, néauisg with respect to t
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,ader financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

The registran$’ other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtsubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpor, or caused such internal control over finaheporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assaraegarding the reliability of financial repodimnd the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtisis report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contral$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetlis report based
such evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the segnts internal control over financial reporting thatcoored during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrdts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finalceporting; and

The registrant’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdih on our most recent evaluation of internal abrdver financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaemmmittee of the registrarstboard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesge the design or operation of internal controkmfinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refinencia
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesamagement or other employees who have a signifioalet in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: March 14, 2014 /sl F. Morgan Gasior

F. Morgan Gasior

Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer and President



Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

I, Paul A. Cloutier, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on FormKLOf BankFinancial Corporation, a Maryland corparaj

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cor@ajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéde a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, néauisg with respect to t
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,ader financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4, The registran$’ other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtsubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpor, or caused such internal control over finaheporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assaraegarding the reliability of financial repodimnd the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtisis report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contral$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetlis report based
such evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the segnts internal control over financial reporting thatcoored during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrdts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finalceporting; and

5. The registrant’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdih on our most recent evaluation of internal abrdver financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaemmmittee of the registrarstboard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesge the design or operation of internal controkmfinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refinencia
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesamagement or other employees who have a signifioalet in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: March 14, 2014 /s/ Paul A. Cloutier
Paul A. Cloutier

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32
Certification of Chief Executive Officer and ChiefFinancial Officer
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Aof 2002

F. Morgan Gasior, Chairman of the Board, Chief Exiwe Officer and President of BankFinancial Cogimm, a Maryland corporation (1
“Company”) and Paul A. Cloutier, Executive Vice President &fdef Financial Officer of the Company, each cgriif his capacity as

officer of the Company that he has reviewed theuahreport on Form 10-K for the year ended DecemtieR013 (the “Report"and that t
the best of his knowledge:

1. the Report fully complies with the requirementsSefctions 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchakgeof 1934; an

2. the information contained in the Report fairly gmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of

Company.
Date: March 14, 2014 /sl F. Morgan Gasior
F. Morgan Gasior
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer
and President
Date: March 14, 2014 /s/ Paul A. Cloutier

Paul A. Cloutier

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadyall be retained by the Company
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commigsidts staff upon request.



